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Dear Shareholder:

We invite you to join Marriott International in “going green” by electing to receive your proxy materials
electronically, thereby saving the paper, ink and energy involved in printing and mailing proxy materials to
you. For every shareholder who makes this election, more than 60 pages of paper will be saved each year.

Once enrolled, you will be able to view all proxy materials, including the Marriott Annual Report, in a
secure environment, and cast your vote electronically or by phone at any time until the expiration of the
voting period. The enrollment process is simple, but differs depending on how your shares are held.

If your shares are registered in your own name: Log on to Investor ServiceDirect, the Internet site
maintained by our transfer agent, Mellon Investor Services LLC, at www.melloninvestor.com/isd and
follow the step-by-step instructions. You will need your unique 12-digit Investor ID, which is located on
your account statements and the "Tax Information and Transaction Detail” section of your dividend checks.

[f your shares are registered in "street name" through a broker or other nominee: You may sign up for
electronic delivery directly with your broker or other nominee if they offer that service. 1f your broker or

other nominee is listed in Broadridge's online sign-up brokerage directory, you may initiate the process by
going to www.icsdelivery.com/live/ (the site includes an alphabetical list of participants).

If your broker or other nominee does not provide an online sign-up program, you must first vote your shares
using the Internet, at www.proxyvote.com. Immediately after voting, fill out the consent form that appears
on screen. To do this, you will need your Investor ID number from your broker.

For more details on this process, please see the reverse side of this letter.

On behalf of the management and Board of Directors of Marriott International, | thank you for joining in
this effort to benefit the environment, and for investing in Marriott International.

Sincerely,

Bancraft Gordon
Corporate Secretary




MORE DETAILS ABOUT ELECTRONIC DELIVERY OF PROXY MATERIALS

You must have an e-mail account and access to an Internet browser to enroll for electronic delivery. When
you have finished the sign-up process, you will receive an e-mail confirming your election. If you hold
Marriott shares in more than one account, you will need to enroll separately for each account.

Each year, about four to six weeks prior to the Annual Meeting, you will receive an e-mail with instructions
for accessing Marriott’s Proxy Statement and Annual Report electronically, and how to vote your shares
electronically. Please read both the Proxy Statement and the Annual Report before you cast your vote.
Marriott does not charge for this service. However, you may incur costs to electronically access the
Marriott documents, such as usage charges from your Internet access provider and/or telephone company.

If your Marriott shares are registered in the name of your broker or other nominee, and you choose to use
the online services, your choice will also apply to the securities of other companies in your account. As a
result, if those companies make their shareholder communications available over the Internet, you will
receive their proxy statements and annual reports in electronic form only.

Once you have consented to electronic delivery, your consent will remain in effect until it is withdrawn.
You are free to withdraw your consent at any time by:

e If your shares are registered in your own name. Accessing Investor ServiceDirect, the Internet site
maintained by our transfer agent, Mellon Investor Services LLC, at www.melloninvestor.com/isd or
calling Meilon at 1-800-311-4816 (U.S. and Canada) or +1 201-680-6693 (International).

s If your shares are registered in "street name" through a broker or other nominee. Accessing
www.investordelivery.com on the Internet.




Marriott International.
Powered by our Spirit to Serve’

Like all general managers, Booker Massey
knows his hotel inside and out ... so your
stay is productive and memorable.

PO,
Townepy,
!trixugrr:l‘“’,

Marroy

Booker Massey, Jr.
Regional/General Manager
TowneFlace Suites Sterling
Virginia

.. For an online version of this Annual
*% Report, visit www.Marrictt.com/investar.
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With its expansive views and Asian-influenced menu, Chop Suey at
the Renaissance New York Hotel Times Square is one of the city's
most unique restaurant and bar destinations.
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Worldwide locations.
Breakfast by Chef Loan.

Start your day with something extraordinary
by award-winning Chef Loan Co, whose
Marriott career spans nearly 20 years.

Linhmne o

Loan Co

Assistant Pastry Chef
San Francisco Marriott
California

To make reservations at this hotel or
K restaurant, go to www.nycrenaissance.com
©  of www.chopsueynyc.com.




One of eight Marriott International hotels in Russia, The Ritz-Carlton,
Moscow lies at the edge of the famed Red Square and serves as a
cultural epicenter of one of the world's great cities.
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3,000 hotels spanning 19 brands.

Warm welcome by Marcelo.

After a long trip, enjoy a friendly greeting,
gracious service and signature sightseeing
tips by Marcelo Jakubovic.

M

Marcelo Jakubovic
Doorman

The Ritz-Carlton, Key Biscayne
Flonida

% To make reservations at this hotel,
- visit www.ritzcarlton.com.



The Courtyard Fairfax Fair Oaks in Virginia showcases the brand's
new lobby design, which lends itself to both form and function

. and demonstrates that a moderately priced brand can be stylish
and sophisticated.
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Everyday ingenuity.
Delivered by Tanja...and
300,000 employees
worldwide:

You'll find an oasis for work or
relaxation in our immaculately
maintained hotel lobbies and
guest rooms.

Tanja Zier
Housekeeper

Renaissance Hamburg Hotel
Germany

k To learn more about Courtyard's new
“ % lobby, go to www.gecourtyard.com.

* Inckxdes those employed at our 3,000 managed and franchised properties systemwide.
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On China's Hainan Island, the Sanya Marriott Resort & Spa
is an environmental leader, installing a "gray water” tank and
solar panels on its roof.
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Working toward a cleaner, healthier planet.

One hotel at a time.

Together, we can make a difference,
whether it's conserving water and energy,
recycling or making other decisions that
are good for the environment.

;}%

EJ Hilts
Regional Director of Energy
Western Region, U.S.A.

. For more information about the Greening of
N Marniott, visit www.Marmiott.com/environment.




To Our Shareholders

William J. Shaw J.W. Marriott, Jr.
President and Chairman and
Chief Operating Officer Chief Executive Officer

Global reach. Personal service. In pictures,
our Annual Report tells the story of how
Marriott International has become the world’s
leading lodging company — not just through

its diverse portfolio of 3,000 lodging properties,
representing 19 brands in almost 70 countries
and territories — but by training and engaging
the very best employees to deliver exceptional
service. In the end, success depends on the
guest experience and hespitality delivered by
the 300,000 employees at our managed and

franchised hotels worldwide.

This legendary service is the foundation of Marriott
International and owes its success to our unigue culture,
which values opportunity and respects the goals and
aspirations of our people. This, combined with a solid
management team and our tested business model of
managing and franchising hotels owned by others, has
provided us with a significant competitive advantage.

We have stayed trus to these pillars evan as we continue
to innovate. It's why we are able to report another solid
year in 2007.

Our worldwide systemwide Revenue Per Available
Room (RevPAR) rose 6.5 percent in 2007, driven by strong
demand from our best corporate customers and other busi-
ness travelers. More than 20 percent of our fee revenue
derives from properties located outside North America.

With our owners and franchisees, we added more than
200 properties to our system. Full year incentive manage-
ment fees totaled a record-breaking $369 million in 2007,
up 31 percent over the prior year. We generated diluted

14 Marriott International, Inc. 2007




earnings per share (EPS) from continuing operations of $1.75
for 2007, an increase of 6 percent, as we and our hote! owners
improved profit margins in our hotels by more than 1.5 percentage
points. These strong improvements in hotel-level profitability
resulted from efficiencies achieved through technology and
workforce effectiveness. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $778 million in 2007.

We're committed to delivering value to shareholders and
in 2007 we returned nearty $1.9 billion to our investors through
share repurchases and dividends. The company repurchased
41 million shares for $1.8 billion in 2007, and at year-end 2007
we had 33 million shares remaining in buybacks authorized by
our Board. Return on invested capital for 2007 topped 25 per-
cent, nearly double our performance just four years ago.

Building Our Brands

With the introduction of two new brands in 2007, Marriott’s
portfolio encompasses nearly every segment of the lodging and
timeshare industries. At the same time, two of our proven brands
will celebrate mitestories in 2008 — Marriott Hotels & Resorts will
welcome its 500th hotel, and Courtyard its 800th.

We are very excited about the launch of “Edition,” a new
genre of lifestyle brand that will combine the intimate and unique
lodging experience invented by the visionary pioneer lan Schrager
with Marriott's development scale and operational expertise. We
expect the pertfolio to reach more than 100 hotels worldwide,
and have signed preliminary agreements on nine hotels in such
world-class destinations as Paris, Madrid, Costa Rica, Miami,
Washington, D.C., Chicago and Los Angeles.

Through a partnership with Nickelodeon, the top kids'
entertainment brand, Marriott plans to capture the hearts of
our younger customers and the young at heart — their parents.
Powered by Nickelodeon's irreverent and fun entertainment,
these upscale resorts will feature state-of-the-art spas, pools
and water parks, and live entertainment starring Nick characters.

Qur full-service brands — Marriott Hotels & Resorts and
the uniquely stylish Renaissance Hotels & Resorts — are
transforming their public spaces to encourage guests 1o work
and socialize there, incorporating the latest design, technology
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and food and beverage offerings. To date, 20 lobbies have been
redesigned, with another 80 anticipated by 2009. Featured in
this report, the Renaissance New York Hotel Times Square
showcases this new concept, and how our owners are infusing
the brand with a nearly $2 bilion investment in new hotel
construction, conversions and rengvations.

Building on the surging global demand for luxury, The
Ritz-Carlton Hotel Company, L.L..C. has increased its develop-
ment pace with 2007 hotel openings in Beijing, Dallas, Dublin,
Vail, Col., Moscow, and Tokyo. The Ritz-Carlton plans to double
its portfolio over the next eight years, leveraging its reputation
to create new opportunities with The Ritz-Carlton Residences®,
The Ritz-Carlton has scored a virtual *sweep” of prestigious
number one rankings in recent surveys by J.D. Power and
Associates and Consumer Reports. Qur JW Marriott Hotels &
Resorts brand, which offers relaxed luxury, will reach 50 hotels
and resorts in 22 countries by Juty 2009.

In 2007, Residence Inn debuted a breakthrough integrated
marketing campaign, “Master the Long Trip™." The TV and print
ads feature “feat performers” who demonstrate the brand's
dramatic support to business travelers on long stays and high-
light the new décor, which includes stainless steel appliances,
granite kitchen countertops, and more luxurious bedding.

Courtyard is gaining traction from reirwented hotels and
new unit growth, and customers will be delighted by the
brand’s contemporary new lobby design with its cutting-edge
technology platform. Courtyard is growing dramatically outside
the United States, entering new markets such as the Czech
Republic, El Salvador, Japan and Thailand.

Our moderate TownePlace Suites brand is rainventing itself
to meet the needs of a growing segment of salf-sufficient, value-
conscious travelers on extended stays. Warm and functional
lobbies with a floor-to-ceiling TowneMap® encourage guests to
gather and share great places to eat, shop and retax.

SpringHill Suites is evolving to capture the upper-moderate
lifestyle category. It continues its rapid growth, with more than
175 hotels across the United States and Canada at year-end
2007 and more than 120 more in its pipeline, inciuding those
that combine lodging, retail and residential space.
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Fairfield Inn and Fairfield Inn & Suites is our fastest-growing
brand, rejuvenated by an aggressive “plant and prung” strategy.
The brand expects to expand from more than 535 hotels at
year-end 2007 to 700 hotels over the next three years.

Fueling Qur Growth

When the JW Marriott Hotel Beijing, designated our 3,000th
hotel, opened this year, it symbolized the company’s tremen-
dous global growth, especially in Asia. Both the JW Marriott
Hotel Beijing and The Ritz-Carlton, Beijing look forward to
welcoming the world to China for the 2008 Olympic Games.
We operate more than 30 hotels in China, and we expect to
open another 24 through 2010. In India, we have six hotels
and 18 more scheduled to open through 2010. In Thailand,
we have nine hotels and 12 mere in our pipeling,

in the Middle East, including Egypt, we operate or franchise
28 hotels, with more than 25 in the pipeline.

The company's worldwide pipeline of hotels under construc-
tion, awaiting conversion or approved for development totals
approximately 800 hotels and 125,000 rooms. More than
B0 percent of our full-service pipeline is outside the United
States. We expect to open 85,000 to 100,000 rooms from
2008 through 2010,

Qur timeshare business continues to be a strong source of
revenue across four brands, from traditional weekly vacation
ownership to fractional ownership. As the number of affluent
U.S. households continues to rise, Marriott expects growth in
this category.

Customer loyalty remains high. Today, over 370,000 time-
share owners possess an average of 1.3 weeks. Eighty percent
of those owners redeem their investments for a “Marriott experi-
ence” at one of our timeshare properties or Marriott-branded
hotels, or exchange them for Marriott Rewards points.

Wa have entered the Asian timesharing market with our Asia
Pacific points program, providing leisure travelers in that rapidly
growing region with more vacation opportunities. In 2008, we
expect contract sales at new properties to begin in Kauai,
Hawaii; Orlando and Singer Island in Florida; and Lake Tahoe,
Calif., where our Grand Residences by Marrictt and Marriott’s
Timber Lodge® were both recently recognized by Condé Nast
Travefer as among the top 50 ski hotels in North America.

Technology remains one of our strongest competitive advan-
tages, especially when combined with our global distribution.
Technology powers Marrictt Rewards, cur award-winning guest
loyatty program with over 28 million members, and Marriott.com,
one of the world's top 10 retail Web sites, with $5.2 billion in
gross revenue, including referrals to its customer care group.

. M3,

J.W. Marriott, Jr.
Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer
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Marriott.com is customized for nine countries, and is available
on your PDA or Internet-enabled phone.

By the end of 2008, we project that nearly all of our hotels
in the United States will have high-definition flat-screen TVs. Qur
unique plug-in panel, which is in 40,000 Marmictt Hotels & Resorts
and Renaissance rooms, enables guests to easily connect their
iPeds, digital cameras, camcorders and laptops to the TV,

Connecting with our customers has never been more
important, and over the next three years, we are realigning our
sales organization so that corporate and group customers can
work with a primary point of contact. This new structure wil
reduce duplication, enable us te call on more customers and
help us serve them even better.

We are also in touch with more customers through social
media and online video. With nearly 350,000 visits to our
podcast and blog, “Marriott on the Move,” we can interact with
thousands of guests. Plus, people visiting the blog have booked
mere than $3 million in gross sales. We also have videos on
YouTube.com, which is a fun way to learn about our company.

Sustaining Our Progress

Sustainability means being a good corporate citizen and
environmental steward, and promoting economic growth,
diversity and inclusion in our communities worldwide. Guided
by our Board of Directors, we have exceeded our objective
to spend $1 billion with diverse suppliers three years ahead
of schedule, and are expanding our efforts into the United
Kingdom and Brazil. Through continued outreach, we now
have nearly 450 hotels owned cr under development by
minorities and women — close to our goal of 500 by 2010,

In partnership with Conservation International, Marriott is
ramping up its efforts to integrate environmental and sustainable
practices into its business in 2008 in four key areas: supply
chain; green buildings; waste, water and energy; and employee
and guest engagement. This strategy builds on the company's
established plans to get greener, including an effort to reduce
greenhouse gases by nearly 415,000 metric tons by 2010. At
our headguarters building, we have become waste neutral
through an aggressive recycling and composting program, and
by replacing 20 tons of Styrofoam and plastic a year with
biodegradable products.

The Future Beckons

Our ability to grow, innovate and deliver superb service, combined
with our tested, highly successful business model, positions us
to perform well in a wide range of economic scenarics. We're
looking forward to our future — the best is yet to come.

William J. Shaw
President and
Chief Operating Officer
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Risk Factors

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
We make forward-locking statements in Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations and elsewhere in this report based on the beliefs
and assumptions of our management and on information
currently available to us. Forward-looking statements includa
information about our possible or assumed future results of
operations which follow under the headings “Business and
Overview,” "Liguidity and Capital Resources,” and other
statements throughout this report preceded by, followed by
or that inchude the words “believes,” “expects,” “anticipates,”
‘intends,” “plans,” “estimates” or similar expressions.
Forward-looking statements are subject to a number of
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to dif-
fer materially from those expressed in these forward-looking
statements, including the risks and uncertainties described
below and other factors we describe from time to time in our
periadic fiings with the SEC. We therefore caution you not to
refy unduly on any forward-logking statemsnts. The forward-
looking statements in this report speak only as of the date
of this report, and we undertake no obligation to update or
revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of
new information, future developments cr otherwise.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

We are subject to various risks that could have a negative
effect on the Company and its financial condition. You should
understand that these risks could cause results to differ
materially from those expressed in forward-looking state-
ments contained in this report and in other Company com-
munications. Because there is no way to determine in
advance whether, or to what extent, any present uncertainty
will ultimately impact our busingss, you should give equal
weight to each of the following:

Lodging Industry Risks

The lodging industry Is highly competitive, which may
impact our ability to compete successfully with other
hotel and timeshare properties for custormners. We gener-
ally operate in markets that contain numerous competitors.

Each of our hotel and timeshare brands competes with major
hotel chains in nationa! and international venues and with
independent companies in regional markets. Our ability to
remain compstitive and to attract and retain business and
leisure travelers depends on our success in distinguishing
the quality, value, and efficiency of our lodging products and
services from those offered by others. If we are unable to
compete successfully in these areas, this could limit our
operating margins, diminish our market share, and reduce
our earmings.

We are subjoct to the range of operating risks
common to the hotel, timeshare, and corporate apart-
ment industries. The profitability of the hotels, vacation
timeshare resorts, and corporate apartments that we operate
or franchise may be adversely affected by a number of fac-
tors, including:

(1) the availability of and demand for hotel rooms, time-
shars intervay, fractional gwnership and residential
products, and apartments;

(2) international, national, and regional economic and
geopolitical conditions;

(3) the impact of war, actual or threatened terrorist activity
and heightened travel security measures instituted in
response to war, terrorist activity or threats;

{4) the desirability of particular locations and changes in
travel patterns;

(5) travelers’ fears of exposure to contagious diseases,
such as Avian Flu and Severe Acule Respiratory
Syndrome (“SARS"™);

{6) the occurrence of natural disasters, such as earth-
quakes, tsunamis, and hurricanes;

(7} taxes and government regulations that influence or
determine wages, prices, interest rates, construction
procedures, and costs;

(8) the availability and cost of capital 1o allow us and
potential hotel owners and joint venture partners to
fund investments; ,

(9) regional and national development of competing
properties;

Marriott Intemational, Inc. 2007 17




{10) increases in wages and other labor costs, energy,
healthcare, insurance, transportation and fuel, and
other expenses central to the conduct of our busi-
ness, including recent increases in energy costs; and

(11) organized labor activities, which could cause the
diversion of business from hotels invaived in labor
negotiations, loss of group business, and/or
increased labor costs.

Any ona or more of these factors could limit or reduce
the demand or the prices we are able to obtain for hotel
rooms, {imeshare units, residential units, and corporate
apartments or could increase our costs and thereforas
reduce the profit of our lodging businesses. Reduced
demand for hotels could also give rise to losses under
loans, guarantees, and minority equity investments that we
have made in connection with hotels that we manage. Even
where such factors do not reduce demand, our profit mar-
gins may suffer if we are unable to fully recover increased
operating costs from our customers.

The uncertain environment in the lodging industry
will continue to impact our financial results and growth.
Both the Company and the lodging industry were hurt by
several events occurring over the tast several years, including
the global economic downturn, the terrorist attacks on New
York and Washington in September 2001, the global cut-
break of SARS in 2003, and military action in Iraq. Atthough
by 2007 both the lodging and travel industries had recovered
from the depressed levels during those years, recent con-
cerns over the possibility of an economic slowdown have left
it unctear whether the recent growth environment will con-
tinue. Accordingly, our financial results and growth could be
harmed if the industry recovery stalls or is reversed.

Operational Risks

Our new branded hotel products may not be successful.
We recently announced two new branded hotel products,
Nickelodeon Resorts by Marriott® and Edition®™, and may
launch additional branded hotel products in the future. We
cannot assure that these brands will be accepted by hotel
owners, potential franchisees, or the traveling public, that we
will recover the costs we incurred in developing the brands,
or that the brands will be successful. In addition, each of
these new brands involves cooperation and/or consultation
with a third party, including some shared control over prod-
uct design and development, sales and marketing and brand
standards. Disagreements betweean us and these third par-
ties regarding areas of consultation or shared control could
slow the development of these new brands and/or impair
Marriott's ability to take actions it believes to be advisable for
the success and profitability of such brands.

Qur lodging operations are subject to international,
national, and regional conditions. Because we conduct
our business on a national and internationa! platform, our
activities are susceptible to changes in the performance of
regional and global economies. In recent years, our business
was hurt by decreases in travel resulting from recent eco-
nomic conditions, the military action in lrag, and the height-
ened travel security measures that have resulted from the

threat of further terrorism. Qur future economic performance
is similarly subject to the uncertain economic environment in
the United States and other regions, the resulting unknown
pace of business travel, and the accurrence of any future
incidents in the countries where we operate.

Risks relating to natural disasters, contagious disease,
terrorist activity, and war could reduce the demand for
fodging, which may adversely affect our revenues. S0
called “Acts of God,” such as hurricanes, earthquakes and
other natural disasters, and the spread of contagious dis-
eases, such as Avian Flu and SARS, in locations where we
own, manage or franchise significant properties, and areas of
the worid from which we draw a large number of customers
can cause a decline in the level of business and leisure travel
and reduce the demand for lodging. Actual or threatened
war, terrorist activity, political unrest, civil strife, and other
geopelitical uncertainty can have a similar effect. Any one
or more of these events may reduce the overall demand for
heotel rooms, timeshare units, and corporate apartments or
limit the prices that we are able to obtain for them, both of
which could adversely affect our profits.

We may have disputes with the owners of the hotels
that we manage or franchise. Consistent with our focus
on management and franchising, we own very few of our
lodging properties. The nature of our responsibilities under
our management agreements to manage sach hotel and
enforce the standards required for our brands under both
management and franchise agreements may be subject to
interpretation and may give rise o disagreements in some
instances. We seek to resolve any disagreements in order
to develop and maintain positive relations with current and
potential hotel owners and joint venture partners but have
not aiways bean able to do so. Failure to resolve such dis-
agreements has in the past resulted in litigation, and could
do so in the future.

Damage to or other potential losses involving
properties that we own, manage or franchise may not
be covered by insurance. We have comprehensive prop-
erty and liability insurance policies with coverage features
and insured limits that we believe are customary. Market
forces beyond our control may nonetheless limit the scope
of insurance coverage that we can obtain and our ability to
obtain coverage at reasonable rates. Certain types of losses,
generally of a catastrophic nature, such as earthquakes,
hurricanes and floods, or terrorist acts, may be uninsurable
or too expensive to justify obtaining insurance. As a result,
we may not be successful in obtaining insurance without
increases in cost or decreases in coverage levels. In addi-
tion, in the event of a substantial loss, the insurance cover-
age we carry may not be sufficient to pay the full market
value or replacement cost of our lost investment or that of
hotel owners or in somea cases could result in certain losses
being totally uninsured. As a result, we could fose some or
all of the capital we have invested in a property, as well as
the anticipated future revenue from the property, and we
could remain obligated for guarantees, debt, or other finan-
cial obligations refated to the property.
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Development and Financing Risks

Our growth strategy depends upon third-parly
owners/operators, and future arrangements with these
third parties may be less favorable. Cur present growth
strategy for development of additional lodging facilities entails
entering into and maintaining various arrangements with
property owners. The terms of our management agreements,
franchise agreements, and leases for each of our lodging
faciities are influenced by contract terms offered by our com-
petitors, among other things. We cannot assure you that any
of our current arrangements will continue or that we will be
able to enter into future collaborations, renew agresments, or
enter into new agreements in the future on terms that are as
favorable to us as those that exist today.

Our ability to grow our management and franchise
systems is subject to the range of risks associated with
real estate investments. Our ability to sustain continued
growth through management or franchise agreements for
new hotels and the conversion of existing facilities to man-
aged or franchised Marriott brands is affected, and may
potentially be limited, by a variety of factors influencing real
estate development generally. These include site availability,
financing, planning, zoning and other local approvals, and
other limitations that may be imposed by market and sub-
market factors, such as projected room occupancy, changes
in growth in demand compared to projected supply, territoriat
restrictions in our management and franchise agreements,
costs of construction, and anticipated room rate structure.

We depend on capital to buy and maintain hotels,
and hotel owners or we may be unable to access capital
when necessary. In order to fund new hotsl investments,
as well as refurbish and improve existing hotels, both the
Company and curent and potential hotel owners must peri-
odically spend money. The availability of funds for new
investments and maintenance of existing hotels depends in
large measure on capital markets and liquidity factors over
which we can exert little control. Qur ability to recover loan
and guarantee advances from hotel operations or from own-
ers through the proceeds of hetel sales, refinancing of debt
or otherwise may also affect our ability to recycle and raise
new capital. In addition, downgrades of our public debt rat-
ings by Standard & Poor's, Moody's Investor Service or simi-
lar companies could increase our cost of capital.

Further voiatility in the credit markets could
adversely impact our ability to sell the loans that our
Timeshare business generates. Our Timeshare business
provides financing to purchasers of our timeshare and frac-
tional properties, and we periodically sell interests in those
loans in the securities markets. While we do not believe that
recent volatility in the credit markets will prevent us from con-
tinuing to sell those notes on attractive terms, further volatility
could cause future sale terms to be materially less favorable
to us or prevent us from selling our timeshare notes entirely,
which in turn would reduce future gains and could result in
increased borrowings to provide capital to replace antici-
pated proceeds from such sales.

Cur davelopment activities expose us fo project
cost, completion, and resale risks. \We develop new hotel,

timeshare interval, fractional ownership, and residential prop-
erties, both directly and through partnerships, joint ventures,
and other business structures with third parties. Our involve-
ment In the development of properties presents a number of
risks, including that: (1) construction delays, cost overruns,
or so called “Acts of God” such as earthquakes, hurricanes,
floods or fires may increase overall project costs or result in
project cancellations; (2) we may be unable ta recover devel-
opment costs we incur for projects that are not pursued to
completion; (3) conditions within capital markets may limit
our abllity, or that of third parties with whom we do business,
to raise capital for completion of projects that have com-
menced or development of future properties; and (4) proper-
ties that we develop could become less attractive due to
changes in mortgage ratas, market absorption or oversupply,
with the result that we may not be able to sell such proper-
ties for a profit or at the prices or selling pace we anticipate.

Davelopment activities that involve our co-investment
with third parties may result in disputes that could
increase project costs, impair project operations, or
increase project compietion risks. Partnerships, joint ven-
tures, and other business structures involving our co-invest-
ment with third parties generally include some form of shared
control over the operations of the business and create addi-
tional risks, including the possibility that other investors in
such ventures could become bankrupt or otherwise lack the
financial resources to meet their obligations, or could have
or davelop business interests, policies or objectives that are
inconsistent with ours. Although we actively seek io minimize
such risks before investing in partnerships, joint ventures or
similar structures, actions by another investor may prasent
additionat risks of project delay, increased project costs, or
operational difficulties following project completion.

Risks associated with development and sale of resi-
dential properties that are associated with our lodging
and timeshare properties or brands may reduce our
profits. In certain hotel and timeshare projects we partici-
pate, through minority interests and/or licensing fees, in the
development and sale of residential properties assoclated
with our brands, including luxury residences, and condo-
miniums under our Ritz-Carlton and Mariott brands. Such
projects pose additional risks beyond those generally associ-
ated with our lodging and timeshare businesses, which may
reduce our profits or compromise our brand equity, including
the following:

s Decreases in residential real estate and vacation home
prices or demand generally, which have historically
been cyclical, could reduce our profits or even result in
losses on residential sales, result in significant carmying
costs if the pace of sales is slower than we anticipate,
or make it mora difficult to convince future hotel devel-
opment partners of the value added by our brands;

s Increases in interest rates, reductions in mongage
availabifity, or increases in the costs of residential own-
ership could prevent potential customers from buying
residential products or reduce the prices they are will-
ing to pay; and
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= Residential construction may be subject to warranty
and liabilty claims, and the costs of resolving such
claims may be significant.

Technology, Information Protection, and

Privacy Risks

A failure to keep pace with developments in technology
could impair our operations or competitive position. The
lodging and timeshare industries continue to demand the use
of sophisticated technology and systems, including those
used for our reservation, revenue management and property
managerment systems, our Mardctt Rewards program, and
technologies we make available to our guests. These tech-
nologies and systems must be refined, updated, and/or
replaced with more advanced systems on a regular basis.

If we ara unable to do 50 as quickly as our competitors or
within budgeted costs and time frames, our business could
suffer. We also may not achieve the benefits that we antici-
pate from any new technolegy or system, and a failure to
do so could resutt in higher than anticipated costs or coutd
impair our operating results.

An increase in the use of third-party internet reser-
vation services could adversely impact our revenues.
Some of our hotel rooms are booked through Internet travel
intermediaries, such as Expedia.com®, Travelocity.com®,
and Priceline.com?®, serving both the leisure and, increas-
ingly, the corporate travel and group meeting sectors. While
Marrigtt's Look No Further® Best Rate Guarantes has
greatly reduced the ability of these Internet travel intermedi-
aries 1o undercut the published rates at our hotels, these
intermediaries continue their attempts to commoditize hotet
rooms by aggressively marketing to price-sensitive travelers
and corporate accounts and increasing the importance of
general indicators of quality (such as “three-star downtown
hotel”) at the expense of brand identification. These agen-
cies hope that consumers will eventually develop brand loy-
alties to their travel services rather than to our lodging
brands. Although we expect to continue to maintain and
even increase the strength of our brands in the online mar-
ketplace, if the amount of sales made through Internet
intermediaries increases significantly, our busingss and prof-
itability may be harmed.

Failure to maintain the integrity of Internal or cus-
tomer data could result in faulty business decisions,
damage of reputation and/or subject us to costs, fines
or lawsuits. Qur businesses require collection and retention
of large volumes of internal and customer data, including
credit card numbers and other personally identifiable informa-
tion of our customers as they are entered into, processed by,
summarized by, and reported by our various information sys-
tems. We also maintain personally identifiable information
about our employees. The integrity and protection of that
customer, employee, and company data is critical to us. f
that data is not accurate or complete we could make faulty
decisions. Cur customers also have a high expectation that
we will adequately protect their perscnal information, and the

regulatory environment surrounding information security and
privacy is increasingly demanding, both in the .S, and other
international jurisdictions in which we operate. A significant
theft, loss or fraudulent use of customer, employee or com-
pany data could adversely impact our reputation and could
rasult in remedial and other expenses, fines and litigation.

Changses in privacy law could adversely atfect our
ability to market our products effectively. Our Timeshare
segment, and to a lesser extent our other lodging segments,
rely on a variety of direct marketing technigues, including
telemarketing, email marketing, and postal matlings. Any
further restrictions in laws such as the Telemarketing Sales
Rule, CANSPAM Act, and varlous U.S. state laws, or new
federal laws, regarding marketing and solicitation or interna-
tional data protection laws that govern these activities could
adversely affect the continuing effectiveness of telemarket-
ing, email, and postal mailing techniques and could force
further changes in our marketing strategy. If this occurs, we
may not be able to develop adequats aiternative marketing
strategies, which could impact the amount and timing of our
sales of timeshare units and other products. We also obtain
access to potential customers from travel service providers
or other companies with whom we have substantial relation-
ships and market to some individuals on these lists directly
or by including our marketing message in the other com-
pany's marketing materials. If the acquisition of these lists
was prohibited or otherwise restricted, our ability to develop
new customers and introduce them to our products could
be impaired.

Other Risks

If we cannot attract and retain talented associates our
business could suffer. We compete with other companies
both within and outside of our industry for talented person-
nel. If we are not able to recruit, train, develop and retain suf-
ficient numbers of talented associates, we could experience
increased assoclate turnover, decreased guest satisfaction,
low morale, inefficiency or internal control faitures. Insufficient
nurmbers of talented associates could also limit our ability to
grow and expand our businesses.

Delaware law and our governing corporate docu-
mants contain, and our Board of Directors could imple-
ment, anti-takeover provisions that could deter takeover
attempts. Under the Delaware business combination statute,
a stockhotder holding 15 percent or more of our outstanding
voting stock could not acquire us without Board of Director's
consent for at least three years after the date the stockholder
first held 15 percent or more of the voting stock. Our govern-
ing corporate documents alse, among other things, require
supermajority votes in connaction with mergers and similar
{ransactions. In addition, our Board of Directors could, with-
out stockholder approval, implement other anti-takeover
defenaes, such as a stockholder rights plan to replace the
existing stockholder’s rights plan that will expire in March
2008 and which we do not presently plan to renew.
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Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations

BUSINESS AND OVERVIEW

We are a worldwide operator and franchisor of 2,999 properties
(535,093 roomg) and related facilities. The figures in the preceding
sentence are as of year-end 2007 and include 21 home and condo-
minium projects (1,916 units) for which we manage the related
owners’ associations. In addition, we provided 2,156 furnished cor-
porate housing rental units, which are not included in the totals.

Qur operations are grouped into five business segments: North
American Full-Service Lodging, North American Limited-Service
Lodging, International Lodging, Luxury Lodging, and Timeshare. We
operats, develop, and franchise under 19 separate brand names in
68 countries and territories.

Wa earn base, incentive, and franchise feas based upon the
terms of our management and franchise agreements, Revenues are
also generated from the following sources associated with our
Timeshare segment: (1) selling timeshare interval, fractional owner-
ship, and residential properties; {2) cperating the resorts and residen-
tial properties; and (3} financing customer purchases of timesharing
intervals. We earn revenues from the limited number of hotels we
own or lease. Finally, we earn fees In association with affinity card
endorsements and the sale of branded residential real estate.

Woe sell residential real estate in conjunction with luxury hotel
development (Ritz-Carlton-Residential) and Timeshare segment
projects (Ritz-Cariton Club-Residential and Grand Residences by
Marriott-Residential), Qur Timeshare segment residential projects
are typically opened over time with limited inventory available at any
one time. Residences developed in conjunction with hotels are typi-
cally constructed and sold by hotel owners with limited amounts, if
any, of our capital at risk. While the warldwide residential market is
very large, the luxurious naturs of our residential properties, the
quality and exclusivity associated with our brands, and the hospital-
ity services that we provide, all serve to make our residential proper-
ties distinctive.

Generally, lodging demand remained strong through 2007, driven
by continued strength assogciated with worldwide business travel. In
general, luxury, international, and full-service properties experienced
stronger demand than limited-service properties. Strong demand
enabled us to increase rates at the property level, which resulted in
solid year-over-year RevPAR increases. Revenue mix improvernent is
a function of the strong demand environment and results as some
less profitable business is limited in favor of more profitable business,
such as fewer discounted leisure packages in favor of more corpo-
rate business. This strategy of shifting business to higher rated tiers,
yvielded strong year-over-year average daily rate growth and only
modast occupancy declines. In addition, group rates continue 1o
increase as business negotiated in earfier years at lower rates is
replaced with business negotiated at higher rates.

Demand for our brands is strong in many markets around the
world. For our North Amegrican comparable properties, RevPAR
increases in 2007, as compared to the year-ago period, were par-
ticularty strong in Dallas, New York City, Los Angeles, and San
Francisco. internationally, 2007 RevPAR increases as compared
to the prior year were particularly strong in Central and South East
Asia, South America, the Middle East, and Eastern Europe.

QOur appreach to improving property-level and above-property
productivity has benefited our profitability, as well as that of owners
and franchisees. Driving room rate improvement, benchmarking suc-
cessful performance, and leveraging our size have all contributed to

praperty-level margin improvements and higher incentive manage-
ment fees to us. We continue to enhance the appeal of our propri-
etary Web site, www.Marriott.com, through functionality and service
improvements, and we continue to capture an increasing proportion
of property-level reservations via this cost-efficient channel.

Our brands are strong as a resu't of superior customer service
with an emphasis on guest and associats satisfaction, the world-
wide presence and quality of our brands, our Marriott Rewards loy-
alty program, an information-rich and easy-to-use Web site, a
multi-channel central reservations system, and desirable property
amenities. We, along with owners and franchisees, continue to
invest in our brands by means of new, refreshed, and reéinvented
properties, new room and public space designs and enhancad
amenities and technology offerings.

In 2007, we announced our agreement with the Nickelodeon divi-
sion of Viacom, Inc. and Miller Global Properties, LLC to co-develop a
new lodging resort brand and concept for travelers seeking fun and
advanture, “Nickelodeon Resorts by Marriott." Also during 2007, we
announced our agreement with lan Schrager to create a global bou-
tique lifestyle hotel brand “Edition” on a large scale.

See the “Risk Factors™ of this report for important information
regarding forward-looking statements made in this report and risks
and uncertainties that the Company faces.

CONSQLIDATED RESULTS
The foltowing discussion presents an analysis of results of our oper-
ations for 2007, 2006, and 2005.

Continuing Operations

Revenues

2007 COMPARED TO 2006
Revenues increased by $995 million (8 percent) to $12,890 million
in 2007 from $11,995 million in 2008, as a result of stronger
demand for hotel rooms wortdwide, which allowed us to increase
room rates and favorable exchange rates worldwide. Base manage-
ment and franchise fees incraased by $116 million as a resuit of
stronger RevPAR and unit growth, as we opened 203 properties
(29,200 rooms) throughout 2007, In 2006, we recognized $5 million
of base management fees that were calculated based on prior peri-
ods’ results, but not earned and due unitil 2006, versus no similar
fees in 2007. Incentive management fees increased by $88 milion
due to stronger RevPAR and property-level margin improvements
associated with room rate increases and productivity improvements.
Incentive management fees included $17 million and $10 million for
2007 and 20086, respectively, that were calculated based on prior
periads' results, but not earned and due until the periods in which
they were recognized. Furthermore, incentive management fees for
2007 included $13 million and base management fees for 2007
included $6 million of business interruption insurance proceeds
associated with hurricanes in prior years compared to $1 million
of business interruption insurance proceeds received in 20086,
Stronger catering, food and beverage, spa, and other profits also
drove property-level margins higher. Year-over-year RevPAR
increases were driven prirmarily by rate increases.

Timeshare sales and services revenue increased by $170 million
{11 percent) in 2007 over the prior year. The increase largely
reflected development revenue increases over the prior year as some

Marriott International, Inc. 2007 21



newer projects reached revenue recognition thresholds. In 2008,
s0me projects were in the early stages of development and did not
reach revenue recognition thresholds until 2007. Tha increase in rev-
enue also reflects increased services and financing revenue.

Owned, leased, corporate housing and other revenue increased
by $121 million (11 percent). The increase largely reflected stronger
RevPAR and the mix of owned and leased properties in 2007, as
compared to 2006, and to a lesser extent, higher fees associated
with affinity card endorsements and the sale of branded residential
real estate, offset by the recognition of $19 million of hotel manage-
ment and franchise agreerment termination fees in 2007, as com-
pared to the recognition of $26 million of such fees in 2006.

The $995 million increase in total revenue includes $500 million
of increased cost reimbursements revenue, to $8,575 million in 2007
from $8,075 million in the prior year. This revenue represents reim-
bursements of costs incurred on behalf of managed and franchised
properties and relates, predominantly, to payroll costs at managed
properties where we are the employer. As we record cost reimburse-
ments based upon the costs incurred with no added markup, this
revenue and related expense have na impact on either our operating
income or net income. The increase in reimbursed costs is primarily
attributable to wage increases, sales growth, and the growth in the
number of properties we manage. We added 15 managed proper-
ties (4,870 rooms) and 138 franchised properties {15,983 rooms) to
our system in 2007, net of properties exiting the system.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005
Revenues increased by $866 milion (8 percent) to $11,995 miltion
in 2006 from $11,129 million in 2005, as a result of stronger
demand for hotel rooms worldwide. Base management and iran-
chise fees increased by $117 milion as a result of stronger RevPAR
and unit growth. In 2006, we recognized $5 million of base man-
agement fees that were calculated based on prior periods’ results,
but not earned and due until 2006. Incentive management fees
increased by $80 million due to stronger RevPAR and property-level
margin improvements associated with room rate increases and pro-
ductivity improvements. Incentive management fees include $10
million and $14 million for 2006 and 2005, raspectively, that were
calculated based on prior periods’ earnings but not earned and due
until the periods in which they were recognized. Stronger catering,
food and beverage, spa, and other profits also drove property-level
margins higher. Year-over-year RevPAR increases were driven pri-
marily by rate increases. Owned and leased revenue increased sig-
nificantly, primarily as a result of cur purchase, early in the second
half of 2005, of 13 formerty managed properties from CTF Holdings
Ltd. (*CTF"}. See Footnote No. 8, “Acquisitions and Dispositions,”
later in this report for a detailed description of the CTF transaction.
As planned, eight of the CTF properties were sold during 2006: one
property was sold in the first quarter; five properties were sold in the
second guarter; and two properties were sold in the third quarter.

Timeshare sales and services revenue increased by $90 milion
(6 percent) over the prior year. The increase largely reftects $77 mil-
lion of revenue in 2006 from note securitization gains. As detailed
later in the “Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle”
narrative, note securitization gains of $69 million for 2005 are not
reflected in revenus, but instead are a component of gains and
other income. Additionafly, financing and services revenue increased
in 2006 versus the prior year, as did villa rental revenue. Partially off-
setting these increases, development revenue declined due to proj-
ects in the early stages of development that did not reach revenue
recognition thresholds and limited available inventory associated
with projects that sold out or were nearing sell-out.

The $866 million increase In total revenue includes $404 million
of increased cost reimbursements revenue, to $8,075 milion in
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2006 from $7,671 million in the prior year. The increase in reim-
bursed costs is primarily attributable to the growth in the number of
properties we manage and to wage increases. We added 13 man-
aged properties {4,126 rooms) and 77 franchised properties (11,286
rooms) to our systerm in 2008, net of properties exiting the system,

Operating Income

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Operating income increased by $101 million (9 percent) to $1,188
milion in 2007 from $1,087 million in the prior year, The increase in
operating income reflects stronger combined base management,
incentive management, and franchise fees of $204 million, partially
offset by higher general, administrative, and other expenses of $91
million, lower Timeshare sales and services revenue net of direct
expenses of $7 milion, and lower owned, leased, corporate hous-
ing, and other revenue net of direct expenses of $5 million.

The combined base management, incentive management, and
franchise fees increase of $204 million reflected strong RevPAR
growth, unit growth, and property-level margin improvements and
favorable exchange rates worldwide. In 2008, we recognized $5 mil-
lion of base management fees that were calculated based on prior
periods’ results, but not earned and due until 2008, versus no similar
fees in 2007. Incentive management fees included $17 million and
$10 million for 2007 and 2006, respectively, that were calculated
based on prior periods' results, but not earned and due until the
periods in which they were recognized. Furthermore, incentive man-
agement fees for 2007 included $13 milion and base management
fees included $6 million of business intermuption insurance procesds
associated with hurricanes in prior years compared to $1 million of
business interruption insurance proceeds received in 2006,

As compared to the year-ago pericd, general, administrative,
and other expenses increased by $91 million (13 percent) from
$677 million in 2006 to $768 million in 2007. In 2007, we incurred a
$35 million charge related to excise taxes associated with the set-
tlement of issues raised during the Internal Revenue Service and
Department of Labor examination of our employee stock ownership
plan (*ESCP) feature of our Employees' Profit Sharing, Retirement
and Savings Plan and Trust (the “Plan”}. Ses Footnote No. 3,
“Income Taxes,” for additional information on the ESOP settlement.
Additionally, the increase was attributable to, among other things,
increased costs related to our unit growth, development and sys-
tems improvements, increased legal expenses, and increased other
administrative costs. Also unfavorably impacting general, adminis-
trative, and other expenses, when compared to the prior year, were
foreign exchange losses totaling $2 million in 2007 as compared to
foreign exchange gains of $6 million in 2006 and $1 million of guar-
antee charges in 2007 whils the year-ago period reflected $6 million
of guarantee reversals. Partially offsetting the aforementioned
increases wera $4 million of lower hatel operating agreement per-
formance cure payments in 2007 as compared to 2006 and a $9
million reversal in 2007 of reserves that were no longer required.
Increased legal expenses in 2007 include charges associated with
litigation and other legal matters. Cf the $31 mitlion increase in total
general, administrative, and other expenses, an increase of $13 mil-
lion was attributable to our Lodging segments and a $78 million
increase was unallocated,

Timeshare sales and services revenue net of direct expenses of
$350 million decreased by $7 million, as compared to the prior year,
primarily reflecting flat development revenue net of product costs
and marketing and selling costs and $12 million of increased financ-
ing revenue net of financing expenses, more than offset by the
reversal in 2006 of $15 million reversal of contingency reserves and
$4 million of lower services revenue net of services expenses. Flat




development revenue net of product costs and marketing and sell-
ing costs reflected newer projects that reached reportability thresh-
olds in 2007, offset by several other projects that were approaching
sell-out. The increase in financing revenue net of financing costs pri-
marily reflects increased accretion, interest income, and higher note
sale gains in 2007, as compared to 2006.

The $5 million decrease in owned, leased, comporate housing,
and other revenue net of direct expenses reflected $19 miflion in
hotel management and franchise agreement termination fees
received in 2007, as compared to $26 million in 2006. Depreciation
charges totaling $8 milion were recorded in 2007 associated with
one owned property that was reclassified from “held for sale” to
“held and used” during 2007 as compared to depreciation charges
recorded in 2006 of $7 million associated with two properties that
were reclassified from *held for sale” to *held and used.” Partially
offsetting the aforementicned decreases in owned, leased, corpo-
rate housing, and other revenue net of direct expenses was the
favorable impact of $4 milion associated with both the stronger
demand environment in 2007 and the impact of the sale and pur-
chase of several properties.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

Operating income increased by $388 million (56 percent) to $1,087
million in 2006 from $639 milion in the prior year. The increase in
2006 is, in pant, due to a combined base management, franchise,
and incentive management fee increase of $197 million, reflecting
stronger RevPAR growth, unit growth, and property-level margin
improvements. Stronger owned, leased, corporate housing, and
other revenue net of direct expenses contributed $17 million of the
improvement in operating income and reflected the strong demand
anvironment in 2006 and the impact of the CTF hotel properties
acquired in 2005, The $17 miflion improvement in 2006 versus the
prior year reflects increased owned and leased results of $20 million,
a $12 milion increase in hotel management and franchise agreement
termination fees received and $5 million of higher other income, par-
tially offset by $20 million of lower land lease income. Also reflected
in the year-over-year change in owned and leased results are depre-
ciation charges totaling $7 million recorded in 2006 associated with
two properties that were reclassified in 2006 from “held for sale” to
“held and used.” The depreciation charges totaling $7 million repre-
sented the amount that would have been recognized had the two
properties been continuously classified as “held and used.”

Timeshara sales and services revenue net of direct expenses
increased by $98 million {38 percent) in 2008 and largely reflects
£77 million of revenue in 2006 from note securitization gains. As
noted earlier in the “Revenue” discussion, note securitization gains
of $69 million for 2005 are not reftected in revenue, but instead are
a component of gains and other income. Also reflected in the $98
million favorable variance, development revenue net of expenses
increased by $14 million and financing, services and other revenue
net of expenses increased by &7 miflion. Increased development
revenue net of expenses primarily reflects lower development
expenses associated with projects in 2006 in the early stages of
development that did not reach revenus recognition thresholds and
the timing of expenses associated with Statement of Position 04-2,
*Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions” ("SOP 04-27),
implemented in 2006. Increased financing, services and other rev-
enue net of expenses reflects a $15 miillion reversal of marketing
related contingency reserves in 2006.

As compared to the year-ago period, general, administrative,
and other expenses decreased by $76 million (10 percent} to $677
miflion in 2006 from $753 million in 2005, In 2005, we incurred gen-
eral, administrative, and other expenses of $84 million primarily due

to the non-cash write-off of deferred contract acquisition costs
assoclated with the termination of management agreements result-
ing from the CTF transaction. We also incurred general, administra-
tive, and other expenses of $30 million in 2005 asscciated with our
bedding incentive program. We implemented the bedding incentive
program in the 2005 second quaner to help ensure that guests
could enjoy the comfort and tuxury of our new bedding by year-end
2005, Further impacting general, administrative, and other
expenses, 2005 reflected hotel operating agreement performance
cure payrments of $15 million versus a $6 million similar payment in
2006, and 2005 also reflected $9 million of guarantee charges
associated with three properties versus the reversal of an additional
$5 million of guarantee charges in 2006. Additionally, impacting the
year-over-year general, administrative, and other expenses variance
were foreign exchangs gains totaling $6 million in 2006 as com-
pared to losses of $5 million in 2005. Also impacting the year-over-
year change in general, administrative, and other expenses, an
additional $22 million reflects unit growth, systems improvements,
higher program and joint venture development expenses, and cus-
tomary increases in ordinary costs such as wages and benefits.
Davelopment expenses and deferred compensation expenses
were higher in 2006 by $15 million and $5 million, respectively.

As noted under the heading “New Accounting Standards” in the
“Managerent’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations,” section of our 2006 Form 10-K, we
adopted a new accounting standard in 2006 associated with share-
based compensation. This new standard resulted in incremental
general, administrative, and other expenses of $39 million versus
2005, primarily impacting the unallocated portion of our general,
administrative, and other expenses. Of the $76 million decrease in
total general, administrative, and other expenses, a decrease of
$124 million was attributable to our Lodging segments and a $48
million ingrease was unallocated.

Gains and Other Income (Expense)
The table below shows our gaing and other income for fiscal years
2007, 2006, and 2005:

(% in miflions) 2007 | 2006 2005
Timeshare note sale gains $— | $— 369
Gains on sales of real estate and other 39 26 34
Loss on expected land sale - 37) -
Other note sale/repayment gains 1 2 25
Gains on forgiveness of debt i2 - -

Gain on sale/income on redemption of joint
venture and other investments 31 68 7
Income from cost method joint ventures 14 15 14
$97 | $74 $149

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

The $12 million gain on forgiveness of debt for 2007 was associ-
ated with government incentives. The loans were forgiven in recog-
nition of cur contribution to job growth and economic development.
Gain on sale/income on redemption of joint venture and other
investments of $31 million in 2007 reflected an $18 milion gain
associated with the sale of stock we held and net gains totaling $13
million on the sale of joint venture investments. Gain on salefincome
on redemption of joint venture and other investments of $68 milion
in 2006 comprised $43 million of net gains associated with the sale
of joint venture investments and the redemption of preferred stock
we held in one investes which generated a gain of $25 milion.
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2006 COMPARED TO 2005

Gain on sale/income on redemption of joint venture and other
investments of $68 million in 2006 represents $43 million of net
gains asscciated with the sale of joint venture and other invest-
ments and $25 million of income associated with the redemption of
preferred stock we held in one investee. As further explained in the
earlier “Revenues” discussion for 2008, Timeshare segment note
sale gains of $77 million in 2006 are presented in the "Timeshare
sales and services" revaenue caption.

Interest Expense

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Interast expense increased by $60 milion (48 percent) to $184 mil-
lion for 2007 from $124 million in 2006. Of the $60 million increase
over 2006, $78 milicn was due to: $26 million of higher interest
reflecting a higher outstanding commercial paper balance, primarily
due to increased share repurchages and the ESOP settlement pay-
ments, and refated interest rates; $25 milion of interest associated
with our Series H Senior Notes issuance which occurred lats in
2006 and our Series | and Series J Senior Notes issuances which
occurred in 2007; a charge of $13 million in 2007 related to the
ESOP settlement; charges totaling $53 million and $46 million in
2007 and 2006, respectively, relating to interest on accumulated
cash inflows in advance of our cash outflows for various programs
that we operate on the owners' behalf including Marriott Rewards,
gift certificates, and self-insurance programs; interest totaling $5
million associated with other additional dabt; and the write off of
$2 milion of deferred financing costs associated with the refinanc-
ing of our ravolving credit agreement in 2007. See Footnote No. 3,
“Income Taxes,” for additional information on the ESOP settlement.
The increase in interest on the prograrms we operate on behalf of
the owners over the year-ago period is attributable to higher liability
balances and higher interest rates. Partially affsetting the $78 milion
interest expense increases over 2006 was an $18 million favorable
variance to last year for higher capitalized interest associated with
construction projects.

2006 COMPARED TQ 2005

Interest expense increased by $18 milion (17 percent) to $124 mil-
lion in 2006 from $108 million in 2005. Included within interest
expense for 2006 and 2005 are charges totaling $46 million and
$29 milion, respectively, relating to interest on accumulated cash
inflows, in advance of our cash outflows for various programs that
we operate on the owners' behalf. The increase in interest on these
pregrams over 2005 is related to higher liability balances and higher
interest rates. Interest expense also increased in 2006, due to our
June 2005 Series F Notes Issuance, our June 2008 Series H Notes
issuance, and higher commercial paper balances coupled with
higher rates. Partially offsetting these increases were interest
expense declings associated with the payoff, at maturity, of both
our Series D Notes in April 2005 and Series B Notas in November
2005, and the exchange of our Series C and Series E Notes for
lower interest rate Series G Notes in 2005,

Interest Income, Provision for Loan Losses, and
Income Tax

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Interest income, before the provision for ioan losses, decreased by
$11 million (22 percent) to $38 million in 2007 from $49 million in
2008, primarily reflacting lower interest income associated with
loans that have been repaid to us, partially offset by the impact
associated with new loan fundings.
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Loan loss provisions increased by $20 million versus the prior
year primarily reflacting a $12 million charge assoclated with ane
property and a $5 million charge to write off our remaining exposure
associated with our investment in a Delta Airlines, Inc. (“Delta®
lease versus ioan loss reversals of $3 milion in 2006. For additional
information regarding the Delta lease investment write-off, see the
“Investrment in Leveraged Lease” caption later in this report.

Qur tax provision increased by $61 million (16 percent) from a
tax provision of $380 million in 2006 to a tax provision of $441 mil-
lion in 2007 and reflected higher pretax income from our Lodging
segments as well as a higher tax rate in 2007, primarily reflecting
both increased taxes associated with our international operations
and a less favorable mix of taxable earnings between countries.
Increased taxes also reflect a charge for a German legislative tax
changa in 2007, which had a one-time impact and $6 million of
taxes in 2007 associated with additional interest on the ESOP set-
tlement. See Footnote No. 3, “Income Taxes,” for additional infor-
mation on the ESOP settlement.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005
Interest income, before the provision for loan losses, decreased by
$30 million (38 percent) ta $49 milion in 2006 from $72 miliion in
2005, primarily reflecting the impact of loans repaid to us in 2005.
Loan loss provisions decreased by $31 million versus the prior year
reflecting the reversal of loan loss provisions totaling $3 million in
2008 compared to a charge of $17 million in 2005 due to the
impairment of our Delta lease, see the “Investment in Leveraged
Lease" caption later in this report for additional information and an
%11 million foan loss provision in 2005 associated with one property.
Our tax provision totaled $380 milion in 2006 compared to a tax
provision of $284 million in 2005, The difference of $86 million is
attributable to higher taxes in 2006 associated with higher pretax
income from our todging operations.

Equity in Earnings

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Equity in earnings increased by $12 million from $3 million in 2006
to $15 million in 2007 and reflacted the mix of investments, com-
pared to 2006, and stronger results at several joint ventures reflect-
ing the strong lodging demand environment in 2007, for one joint
venture, the reopening of a hotel, late in 2006, in Mexico, which had
been closed following a hurricane in 2005 and strong demand in
2007 for our timeshare preducts in Hawaii,

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

The $33 million decline from earnings of $36 milion in 2005 to

earnings of $3 million in 2008, attributable to our equity invest-

ments, reflacted the recognition in 2005 of $30 milion of equity
earnings from the sale of hotels by three equity joint ventures in
which we had equity interests. In addition, since 2005 we have
sold several equity joint ventures.

Income from Continuing Operations

2007 COMPARED TO 2008

Compared to 2008, income from continuing operations decreased
by $15 milion {2 percent) to $897 million in 2007, and diluted earn-
ings per share from continuing operations increased by $0.10 (6
percent) to $1.75. As discussed in more detall in the preceding sec-
tions beginning with “Operating Income,” the decrease versus the
prior year is due to higher general, administrative, and other
expenses ($91 million), higher taxes ($61 million), higher interest
axpensa $60 milion), higher toan toss provision ($20 milion), lower
interast income {$11 million), lower timeshare sales and services




revenue net of direct expenses ($7 million), and lower owned,
leased, corporate housing, and other revenue net of direct
expenses ($5 million). Partially offsetting these unfavorable variances
were higher fee income ($204 million), higher gains and other
income ($23 million}, higher equity investment results ($12 million),
and a higher minority interest benefit ($1 million).

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

Compared to 2005, income from continuing operations increased
by $169 million (31 percent) to $712 million in 2006, and diluted
earnings per share from continuing cperations increased by $0.48
{41 percent) to $1.65. As discussed in more detail in the preceding
sections beginning with “Operating Income,” the increase versus
the prior year is due to higher fee income ($197 million), higher
timeshare sales and services revenug net of direct expenses (398
million), lower general, administrative, and other expenses ($76 mil-
lion), a lower loan loss provision ($31 million), higher owned, leased,
corporate housing, and other revenue net of direct expenses (17
million), and lower minority interest expense ($2 million). Partially
offsetting these favorable variances, were significantly higher taxes
{896 million), lower gains and other income ($75 miillion), lower
equity investment results ($33 million), lower interest income {$30
miliion}, and higher interest expense ($18 million).

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

2006

Statement of Position 04-2, “Accounting for Real Estate
Time-Sharing Transactions”

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
("FASB") issued Financial Accounting Standards ("FAS") No. 152,
*Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions-an amend-
ment of FASB Statements No. 66 and 67," and the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued SOP 04-2. Addi-
tionally, the FASB amended FAS No. 66, *Accounting for Sales of
Real Estate,” and FAS No. 67, “"Accounting for Costs and Initial
Rental Operations of Real Estate Projects,” to exclude accounting
for real estate time-sharing transactions from these statements.
We adopted SOP 04-2 at the beginning of the 20086 first quarter.

Under SOP 04-2, we charge the majority of sales and marketing
costs we incur to sell timeshares to expense when incurred. We
also record an estimate of expected uncollectibility on notes receiv-
able that we receive from timeshare purchasers as a reduction in
revenue at the time that we recognize profit on a timeshare sale.
We also account for rental and other operations during holding
periods as incidental operations, which requires us to record any
excess of ravenues over costs as a reduction of inventory costs.

The adopticn of SOP 04-2 in 2006, which we reported as a
cumutative effect of change in accounting principle in our
Consolidated Statements of Income, resulted in a non-cash after-
tax charge of $109 milicn ($0.25 per diluted share). The pretax
charge totaled $173 milion and comprised a $130 million inventory
write-down, the establishment of a $25 milion notes receivable
reserve and an increase in current liabilities of $18 million.

We estimate that, for the 20-year period from 2008 through
2027, the cost of completing improverments and currently planned
amenities for cur owned timeshara properties will be approximately
$1.7 billion,

Business Segments
We are a diversified hospitality company with operations in five
business segments:
« North American Full-Service Lodging, which includes
Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Marriott Conference Centers,

JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts,
and Renaissance ClubSport properties located in the conti-
nental United States and Canada;

= North American Limited-Service Lodging, which includes
Courtyard, Fairfield Inn, SpringHill Suites, Residence Inn,
TownePlace Suites, and Marriott ExecuStay properties
located in the continental United States and Canada;

s International Lodging, which includes Marriott Hotels &
Resorts, JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels &
Resorts, Courtyard, Fairfield Inn, Residence Inn, Ramada
International, and Marriott Executive Apartments properties
located outside the continental United States and Canada;

s Luxury Lodging, which includes The Ritz-Carlton and
Bulgari Hotels & Resorts properties worldwide; and

a Timeshare, which includes the development, marketing,
operation, and sale of timeshare, fractional ownership, and
residential properties worldwide under Marriott Vacation
Club, The Ritz-Carlton Ciub, Grand Residences by Marniott,
and Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club.

In addition to the segments above, in 2007 we exited the syn-
thetic fuel business, which was formerly a separate segment but
which we now report under discontinued operations.

In addition to the brands noted above, in 2007 we announced
our new brand of family-friendly resorts and spas, “Nickelodeon
Resorts by Marriott” and a new brand of lifestyle boutique hotels,
“Edition.” At year-end 2007, no properties were yet open under
gither brand.

In 2006, we analyzed our internal reporting process and imple-
mented changes in the fourth quarter that were designed to
improve efficiency and, as part of this process, we evaluated the
impact on segment reporting. Accordingly, we now report five oper-
ating segments, and no longer allocate indirect administrative
expenses to our seagments. We reflect this revised sagment report-
ing throughout this report for all periods presented, and present
historical figures in a manner that is consistent with the revised seg-
ment reporting. See also the Form 8-K that we filed on March 18,
2007, furnishing quarterty Revenues and Income from Continuing
Operations for each of 2006 and 2005 in the new segment format.

Woe evaluate the performance of our segments based primarily
on the results of the segment without allocating corporate
axpenses, interest expense, indirect general, administrative, and other
expenses, or income taxes. With the exception of the Timeshare
segment, we do not allocate interest income to our segments.
Because note sales are an integral part of the Timeshare segment,
we include note sale gains in our Timeshare segment results. We
includs interest income associated with Timeshare segment notes
in our Timeshare segment results because financing sales are an
integral part of that segment’s operations. We also allocate other
gains or losses as well as equity in earnings or losses from our joint
ventures and divisional general, administrative, and other expenses
to each of our segments. "Other unallocated corporate” represents
that portion of our revenues, general, administrative, and other
expenses, equity in earnings or losses, and other gains or losses
that are not allocable 10 our segments.

Wa aggregate the brands presented within our North American
Full-Service, North American Limited-Service, International,
Luxury, and Timeshare segments considering their similar eco-
nomic characteristics, types of customers, distribution channels,
the regulatory business environment of the brands and operations
within each segment, and our organizational and management
reporting structure.
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Total Lodging Products by Segment
At year-end 2007, we operated or franchised the foilowing properties by segment (excluding 2,156 corporate housing rental units):

Total Lodging Products

Properties Rooms
u.s. Non-U.S5. Total u.s, Non-U.8. Total
North American Full-Service Lodging Segment ™
Marriott Hotels & Resorts 309 12 321 121,842 4,556 126,398
Marriott Conference Centers 13 — 13 3,476 - 3,476
JW Marriott Hotels & Resonis 15 — 15 7.901 — 7.901
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts 70 3 73 25,942 1,034 26,976
Renaissance ClubSport 1 — 1 175 — 175
408 15 423 159,336 5,500 164,926
North American Limited-Service Lodging Segment®
Courtyard 693 16 709 98,759 2,847 99,606
Fairfield Inn 529 7 536 46,930 741 47,671
SpringHill Suites 176 1 177 20,445 124 20,569
Residenca nn 528 17 545 62,805 2,536 65,341
TownePlace Suites 141 — 141 14,122 - 14,122
2,067 a4 2,108 241,061 6,248 247,309
International Lodging Segment
Marriott Hotels & Resorts 4 144 148 2,742 39,396 42,138
JW Marriott Motels & Resorts 1 22 23 g7 8,244 8,631
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts - — 67 67 - 21,783 21,783
Courtyard — 58 58 — 11,174 11,174
Fairfield Inn — 1 1 — 206 208
Residence Inn - 1 1 — 75 75
Marriott Executive Apartments — 18 18 - 2,905 2,905
Ramada International — 2 2 - 332 332
5 313 318 3,129 84,115 87,244
Luxury Lodging Segment
The Ritz-Carlton 36 34 70 11,827 9,978 21,605
Bulgari Hotels & Resorts - 2 2 — 117 17
The Ritz-Carlton-Residential @ 16 1 17 1,614 93 1,707
52 37 89 13,241 10,188 23,429
Timeshare Lodging Segment®
Marriott Vacation Club 37 2] 46 8,987 1,809 10,896
The Ritz-Carlton Club-Fractional 5 2 7 283 105 388
The Ritz-Carlton Club-Residential @ 2 1 3 138 6 144
Grand Residences by Marriott-Fractional 1 1 2 199 49 248
Grand Residences by Marriott-Residential ™ @ 1 - 1 65 — 65
Horizons by Marriott Vacation Club 2 — 2 444 - 444
48 13 81 10,116 2,069 12,185
Total 2,580 419 2,999 426,883 108,210 535,093

11} North American includes properties focated in the continantal United States and Canada. intemational includes properties focated outside the continental United States and Canada.
' Represents projects where we manage the related owners’ association, Residential products are included once they possess a certificate of cocupancy.
A Includes resorts that are in active sales as well ag those that are sold out. Products in active sales may not be ready for occupancy.
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Revenues
($ in mittions) 2007 | 2008 2005
North American Full-Service

Segment $5476 | $ 5196 $ 5116
North American Limited-Service

Segmant 2,198 2,060 1,886
International Segrment 1,594 1,411 1,017
Luxury Segment 1,576 1,423 1,333
Timeshars Segment 2,065 1,840 1,721

Total segment revenues 12,909 11,930 11,073
Other unallccated comorate 81 65 56

$12,990 | $11,995 $11,129

Income from Continuing Operations

(% in miitions) 2007 2006 2005
North American Full-Senvice

Segrnent $ 478 ( & 455 § 349
North American Limited-Service

Segment 461 380 303
International Segment 271 237 133
Luxury Segment 72 63 45
Timeshare Segment 306 280 271

1,588 1,415 1,101
{287) {251) (219)

Total segment financial results
Other unallocated corporate

Interest income, provigion for loan
losses and interest expense (183) {72 (55)

Income taxes (441} (380) (284)
$ 697 | $ 712 $ 543

Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Equity Method Investees

(% in miflions} { 2007 | 2006 2005
North American Full-Service

Segment 3 3(% 2 5§ 21
North American Limited-Service

Segment 2 — 5]
International Segment 3 - 20
Luxury Segment {4 (2) n
Timeshare Segment 10 (2) 1

Total segment equity in

earnings (losses) 14 2) 35

Other unallocated corporate 1 5 1

$ 15|§% 3 $§ 36

Our business includes our North American Full-Service, North
American Limited-Service, International, Luxury, and Timeshare
segments. We consider total segment revenuss and total segment
financial results to be meaningful indicators of our performance
because they measure our growth in profitability and enable
investors to compare the revenues and results of our operations
to those of other lodging companies.

Wa consider RevPAR to be a meaningful indicator of our per-
formanca because it measures the period-over-period change in
room revenues for comparable properties. We calculate RevPAR by
dividing room sales for comparable preperties by room nights avail-
able to guests for the period. RevPAR may not be comparable to
similarly titted measures, such as revenues.

Company-operated house profit margin is the ratio of property-
lavel gross operating profit (also known as house profit} to total
property-lavel revenue. This ratio measures our overall ability as the
operator to produce property-level profits by generating sales and
controlling the operating expenses over which we have the most
direct control. Gross operating profit includes room, food and bev-
erage, and other revenue and the related expenses including payroll
and benefits expenses, as well as repairs and maintenance, utility,
general and administrative, and sales and marketing expenses.
Gross operating profit does not include the impact of management
fees, furniture, fixtures and equipment replacement reserves, insur-
ance, taxes, or other fixed expenses.

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

We added 203 properties (29,200 rooms) and 55 properties (9,722
rooms) exited the system in 2007, not including residential prod-
ucts. We also added three residential properties (347 units).

Total segment financial results increased by $173 million {12 per-
cent) to $1,588 million in 2007 from $1,415 milion in 2006, and
total segment revenues increasad by $979 million to $12,909 millicn
in 2007, an 8 percent increase from revenues of $11,930 million in
2006. The results, as compared to the prior year, reflect a $204 mil-
lion {17 percent) increase in combined base management, fran-
chise, and incentive management fees from $1,224 million in 2006
to $1,428 million in 2007, a $16 million increase in earnings associ-
ated with equity investrments, and a $1 million minority interest ben-
efit. Partially offsetting these favorable variances was a decrease of
$18 mitlion in owned, leased, corporate housing, and cther revenue
net of direct expenses, $13 milion of increased general, administra-
tive, and other expenses, a decrease of $10 milion in gains and
other income, and a decrease of $7 million in timeshare sales and
services revenue net of direct expenses.

Higher RevPAR for comparabla rooms, resulting from both
domestic and international rate increases, higher property-lavel food
and beverage and other revenue, and new unit growth, drove the
increase in base management and franchise fees. In 2008, we rec-
ognized $5 million of base management fees that were calculated
based on prior periods’ results, but not earned and due until 2006,
versus no similar fees in 2007, Incentive management fees
increased by $88 million {31 percent) during 2007, reflecting the
impact of strong room rate increases and property-levet margin
improvements associated with productivity improvements. Incentive
management feas included $17 million and $10 million for 2007
and 2008, respectively, that were calculated based on prior periods’
earnings, but not eamed and due until the periods in which they
were recognized. Furthermore, incentive management fees for 2007
also included $13 million of business interruption insurance pro-
ceeds associated with hurricanes in prior years and base manage-
ment fees included $6 million and $1 million of business interruption
insurance proceeds, also associated with hurricanes in prior years,
received in 2007 and 2006, respectively. In 2007, 67 percent of our
managed properties paid incentive management fees 1o us versus
62 percent in 2006.

Systemwida RevPAR, which includes data from our franchised
properties, in addition to our owned, leased, and managed proper-
ties, for comparable North American properties increased by 6.0
percent over 20086, and RevPAR for our comparable North American
company-operated properties increased by 6.2 percent over 2006.

Systemwide RevPAR for comparable international properties
increased by 8.4 percent, and RevPAR for comparable international
company-operated properties increased by 8.9 percent. Worldwide
RevPAR for comparable systemwide properties increased by 6.5 per-
cent (7.6 percent using actual dollars) while wordwide RevPAR for
comparable company-operated properties increased by 7.0 percent.
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As compared to 2006, 2007 worldwide comparable company-
operated house profit margins increased by 150 basis points, while
North American company-operated house profit margins improved
by 160 basis points versus 2006. For 2007, as compared to 2006,
house profit per available rcom ("HP-PAR") at our full-senvice man-
aged properties in North America increased by 10.6 percent.
HP-PAR at our North American limited-service managed properties
increased by B.9 percent, and worldwide HP-FAR for all cur brands
increased by 11.0 percent on a constant dollar basis.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

We added 136 properties (23,466 rooms) and 45 properties (8.616
rooms) left the system in 2006. Most of the properties that left the
system were limited-service properties.

Total segment financial results increased by $314 million (29 per-
cent} to $1,415 million in 2006 from $1,101 milion in 2005, and
total segment revenues increased by $857 million to $11,930 million
in 2008, an 8 percent increase from revenues of $11,073 million in
2005. The results as compared to the prior year reflect a $197 mil-
lion (19 percent) increase in combined base management, fran-
chise, and incentive management fees from $1,027 million in 2005
to $1,224 millicn in 2006, $124 milion of lower general, administra-
tive, and other expenses, $8 million of increased owned, leased,
corporate housing. and other revenue net of direct expenses, a $98
million increase in timeshare sales and services revenue net of direct
expenses, and an increase in minority interest of $2 million, partiafly
offset by $78 million of lower gains and other income and a $37
million decline in earnings associated with equity investments.
Higher RevPAR for comparable rooms, rasulting from both domes-
tic and internaticnal rate increases, higher property-level food and
beverage and other revenue, and new unit growth drove the
increase in base managemant and franchise fees. In 2006, we rec-
ognized $5 milion of base management fees that were calculated
based on prior periods’ results, but not earned and due until 2006.
Incentive management fees increased by $80 million (40 percent)
during 2008, reflecting the impact of strong room rate improvement
and property-level margin improvements. Incentive management
fees include $10 milicn and $14 million for 2006 and 2005, respec-
tivety, that wers calculaied basaed on pricr periods' earmings, but not
eamed and due unti! the periods in which they were recognized. In
20086, 62 percent of our managed properties paid incentive man-
agement fees to us versus 51 percent in 2005.

+ Systemwide RevPAR for comparable North American properties
increased by 9.1 percent over 2005 and RevPAR for our compara-
ble North American company-operated properties increased by
8.9 percent.

Systemwide RevPAR for comparable international properties,
increased by 10.5 percent, and RevPAR for comparable interna-
tional company-operated properties increased by 11.1 percent.
Worldwide RevPAR for comparable systemwide properties
increased by 9.4 percent while worldwide RevPAR for comparable
company-operated properties increased by 9.5 percent.

In addition, worldwide comparable company-operated house
profit marging increased by 230 basis points, while North American
company-operated house profit margins improved by 240 basis
points versus 2005. For 2006, as compared to 2005, HP-PAR at our
full-service managed properties in North America increased by 16.3
percent, MP-PAR at our North Americar: imited-service managed
properties increased by 12.6 percent, and worldwide HP-PAR for all
our brands increased by 15.4 percent on a censtant dollar basis.

Lodging Development

We opened 203 properties, totaling 29,200 rooms, across our
brands in 2007 and 55 properties {8,722 rooms) left the system, not
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including residential products. We also added three residential prop-
erties (347 units). Highlights of the year included:

»  Converting 26 properties (5,618 rooms), or 18 percent of our
gross room additions for the year, from other brands, and 21
percent of the rooms were located in international markets;

s Opening approximately 16 percent of all the new rooms out-
side the United States;

®  Adding 156 properties (17,517 rooms) to our North Armerican
Limited-Service brands; and

s Opening two new Mariott Vacation Club properties in the West
Indies on the island of St. Kitts, and the U.S. Virgin Islands on
the island of St. Thomas, as well as one new Ritz-Cariton Club
and residences property in San Francisco, California.

We currently have more than 125,000 hotel rooms under con-
struction, awaiting conversion, or approved for development in our
hotel development pipeline and we expect to add over 30,000 hotel
rooms and timeshare units 1o our system in 2008, We expect to
remove approximately 5,000 rooms from our system during the
2008 full year.

We believe that we have access to sufficient financial resources
to finance our growth, as well as to support our ongoing operations
and meet debt service and other cash requirements. Nonetheless,
our ability to sell properties that we develop and the ability of hotel
developers to build or acquire new Marriott-branded properties,
both of which are impartant parts of our growth plan, depend in
part on capital access, availability and cost for other hotel develop-
ers and third-party owners. These growth plans are subject to
numerous risks and uncertainties, many of which are outside of our
control. See the “Forward-Looking Staterments” and “Risks and
Uncertainties” captions earlier in this report and the “Liguidity and
Capital Resources” caption fater in this report.

Statistics. The following tables show occupancy, average daity
rate, and RevPAR for comparable properties, for each of the brands
in our North Amarican Full-Service and North American Limited-
Service segments, for our International segment by region, and the
principal brand in our Luxury segment, The Ritz-Carlton. We have
not presented statistics for company-operated Fairfield Inn proper-
ties in these tables because we operate cnly a limited number of
properties, as the brand is predominantly franchised and such infor-
mation would not be meaningful (identified as “nm” in the tables that
follow). Systemwide statistics include data from our franchised prop-
erties, in addition to our owned, leased, and managed properties.

The cccupancy, average daily rate, and RevPAR statistics used
throughout this report for 2007 include the period from December
30, 2006, through December 28, 2007, the statistics for 2006
inctude the period from December 31, 2005, through December 29,
2006, and the statistics for 2005 include the period from January 1,
20085, through December 30, 2005 (except in each case, for The
Ritz-Carlton brand properties and properties located outside of the
continental United States and Canada, which for them includes the
period from January 1 through
December 31 for each year).

The adjacent graph shows
RevPAR for North American
Comparable Company-Operated
*Composite North American”
properties {which includes
our Marriott Hotels & Resorts,
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, The
Ritz-Carlton, Courtyard, Residence
Inn, TownePlace Suites, Fairfield Inn
and SpringHill Suites brands) for the
last five fiscal years:
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Comparabte Company- Comparable
Operated North Systemwide North
American Properties American Properties

2007 Change vs. 2006 2007 Change vs. 2006

Comparable Company- Comparable
Oporated Properties™  Systemwide Properties't

2007 Change vs. 2006 2007 Change vs. 2008

e —

[CARIBBEAN AND LATIN AMERICA®™

e - -

"MARRIOTY HOTELS & RESORTS™ A ]

Occupancy 76.5% 2.4% pts. 74.8% 2.8% pts.

Occupancy 72.6% 1.0% pts. 70.8% 0.6% pts. Average Daily Rate  $167.56 9.2% $156.76 7.5%
Average Daily Rate  $175.41 5.4% $160.61 5.5% RevPAR $128.25 12.7% $117.20 11 7%
RevPAR $127.43 6.9% $113.656 6.4% LQONTINENTAL EUROPE™ —— T T
RENAISSANCE HOTELS&RESORTS " = 1 Ocoupany 744%  i3%pls. 720%  1.2%pis.
Occupancy 73.1% 0.4% pts. 71.8% -0.4% pts. Average Daily Rate  $173.92 5.8% $174.93 5.4%
Avarage Daily Rate  $160.93 5.4% $157.28 5.8% RevPAR $120.34 7.7% $126.01 7.3%
RevPAR $i417 5% §11296  51% (UNITED KINGDOM® T T
"COMPOSITE NORTH AMERICAN FULL-SERVICE® ] Occupancy 77.8% 0.1% pis. 77.4% 0.3% pts.
Occupancy 72.7% 0.9% pts. 70.9% 0.5% pts. Average Dally Rate  $203.27 5.2% $200.65 4.7%
Average Dally Rate  $174.54 54% $160.10 5.5% RevPAR $158.08 5.2% $155.27 51%
RevPAR $126.92 6.8% $113.56 6.2% [MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA® - T
"THE RITZ-CARLTON NORTH AMERICA i Occupancy 733%  48%pls.  724%  4.9% pts.
Occupancy 72.3% 0.1% pts. 72.3% 0.1% pts. Average Daily Rate  $135.74 9.1% $133.98 5.0%
Average Dally Rate  $331.48 7.3% $331.48 7.3% RevPAR $ ga.57 16.8% $ 96.95 17.0%
.Rev_P{\f%“ o $239.67 7.5% _ $239.67 7.5% _ TASIA PACIFIG ™ - - T
'COMPOSITE NORTH AMERICAN FULL-SERVICE AND LUXURY ® ] Occupancy 75.2% —0.8% ps. 75.4% —0.5% pts.
Occupancy 72.7% 0.8% pts. 71.0% 0.4% pts. Average Daily Rate  $147.79 8.9% $148.67 7.7%
Average Daily Rate  $189.41 57% $169.92 57% RevPAR $111.15 7.8% $111.92 7.0%
Fawan | S\ 6% 912085 4%  (Hgaiows eomposiERs S
(RESIDENGE INN__ - ] Occupancy 75.7% 08%pts.  74.6% 1.0% pts.
Occupancy 777%  05%pts.  782%  -08%npis. Average Daly Rate  $168.30  7.0% $16603  6.3%
Average Daily Rate  $124.24 4,6% $122.44 6.1% RevPAR $127.44 8.2% $123.78 7.8%
FRevPAR $9655  39%  $9580  51% (|NTERNATIONAL LUXURY™ -
(COURTYARD = i Ccoupancy 72.7% 4.0% pts. 72.7% 4.0% pts.
Occupancy 70.4%  -0.4% pts. 72.1% ~0.2% pts. Average Daily Rate  $292.24 6.1% $262.24 6.1%
Average Dally Rate  $127.34 56% $124.12 5.9% RavPAR $212.54 12.2% $212.54 12.2%
RevPAR $ 89.68 4.9% $ 89.53 5.6% (TOTAL INTERNATIONAL ™ e T
(PaRFELONN Occupancy 75.4% 1.2% pts. 74.4% 1% pts.
Qceupancy nm nm 70.5% -0.3% pts. Average Daily Rate  $180.73 7.2% 3176.57 6.6%
Average Daily Rate nm nm $ 88.19 7.2% RevPAR $136.29 8.9% $131.36 8.4%
RevPAR alua] nm $ 8217 6.7% - - - ” -

Y - (1) Financial resuits for al properties are reportod on a perfod-end basis, while statistics for prop-
[TQW_NEELAQE . SUITES ) erﬂqs focated outsids the continantal United Statas and Canada are reported on & 'monrh-eqd
Occupancy % e 735%  2akpls e Tedel i o e
Average Dally Rate $ 85.65 8.9% % 8693 B.4% dodar basis,
RevPAR $ 63.56 7.2% $ 63.89 5.0% 2} Reglonal information includes Marrio Hotels 8 Resorts, Renaissance Hotols & Rasorts, and
{sﬁp_?n_@éﬁlffs'ﬁks — ___j . gmamm located outside of the continental United States and Canada,
QOccupancy 72.6% 0.6% pts. 73.2% -0.6% pts. {4} inchides Hawai.
Average Daily Rate  $107.868 4.2% $106.49 6.5% 5) Regional Composite statistics includa ell proparties located outsida of the continental Urvied
RevPAR $ 7807 5.0% $ 77.97 5.7% States and Canada for Mamott Hotels & Rasorts, Renaissance Hotols & Rasorts, and
(COMPOSITE NORTH AMERICAN LIMITED-SERVICE® (5 holudes Tho Riz-Carfon propertis located outsid of North Amenca and Bufgan Hotels &

Resorts.

Occupancy 72.7% —0.4% pts. 73.6% -0.5% pts. N . ) - §
Average Daly Rate  $12263  5.4% $11334  63% e s o ooy 21405 and satisics for The R-Carien
RevPAR $ 89.18 4.8% $ 83.37 5.6%
'COMPOSITE NORTH AMERICAN® _ S O Comparable Company- Comparable
Occupancy 72.7% 03%pts.  726%  -0.2%pts. Operated Properties™  Systemwide Properties™
Average Dally Rate  $159.01 5.8% $134.62 6.2% 2007 Change vs. 2006 2007 Change vs. 2006
RevPAR $115.60 6.2% $ 97.70 8.0% I U

(1) Statistics are for the fifty-two weeks ended December 28, 2007, and Decembar 29, 2006,
except for The Ritz-Cariton for which the statistics are for the twalve months ended
Decamber 31, 2007, and Decemnber 31, 2006. For proparties located in Canada the
comparnson to 2006 is on @ consiant U.S. dodar basis.

(2} Mamott Hotels & Resorts includes JW Mamiott Hotels & Resorts.

{3} Cemposita North Amencan Full-Service statistics include properties located in the continental
United States end Canada for Marriott Hotels & Resorts end Renaissance Hotels & Resorts.

{4) Composita North American Full-Service and Luxury inciudes Mamott Hotels & Rasorts,
Benaissance Hotels & Resorts, and The Ritz-Cartton.

{5) Composrta North Amencan Limited-Servicg statistics include properties located in the conti-
nental United States and Canada for Rasidence inn, Courtyard, Fairfiakd inn, TownePlace
Suites, and SpringHill Suites.

{6) Carmpostta Nortt: Amenican statishics include properties located in the continental United
States and Canada for Marriolt Hoteis & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, Residence
inn, Courtyarn, Fairfieid inn, TownePlace Suites, SpringHil Suites, and The Ritz-Carfton.

[COMPOSITE LUXURY ® L .
Qccupancy 72.5% 1.8% pis. 72.5% 1.8% pis.

Average Daily Rate  $314.36 6.6% $314.36 6.6%
ReviPAR $227.87 9.4% $227.87 9.4%
{TOTAL WORLOWIDE® T TG
Occupancy 73.5% 0.5% pts. 72.9% 0.1% pts.
Average Daily Rate  $165.19 6.2% $141.60 6.4%
RevPAR $121.34 7.0% $103.19 6.5%

{1} Financial results for aX properties ere reportad on a perdod-end basis, wihlla statistics for prop-
ertios focated outside the continental United States and Cenada ara reported on & month-end
basis. For the properies kocated in countrigs that uss curencies other than the LS. dollar,
the comparison to 2006 is on a constant U.S, dollar basis.

2) Compostte Luxry nchidas workdwida properties for The Ritz-Cartton and Bulgan Hotels & Resorts.

{3) Total Worldwida statistics inchuie aX propertios workiwida for Mariolt Hotals & Resarts,
Ranaissance Hotals & Resorts, Resivence inn, Courtyard, Faifikd inn, TownoPlace Surtes.,
SpringHA Sutes, et The Riz-Cartton. Statistics for properties Jocated in the continental
Linted States and Canada fexcept for The Ritz-Carfton) reprasent the lifty-two weeks ended
December 28, 2007, and Decamber 29, 2006. Statistics for all The Ritz-Cariton properties
and propertias focated outsioa of tha continental United States and Canada reprasent tha
twalve months ended Decembar 31, 20067, and December 31, 2006.
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Comparable Company- Comparable
Operated North Systemwide North
Amoerican Propertias™ American Propertias "

20068 Change vs. 2005 2006 Change vs. 2005

Comparable
Properties ™
2006 Change vs. 2005

Comparable Company-
Operated Properties
2006 Change vs. 2005

{CARIBBEAN AND LATIN AMERICA® 1

[MARRIOTT HOTELS & RESORTS ™ J Occupancy 74.9% 15%pts.  73.0% 0.5% pts.
Occupancy 72.3% -0.6% pts. 70.9% 0.2% pts. Avorage Dally Rate  $159.93 9.7% $150.93 9.2%
Average Daily Rate  $168.11 8.1% $154.37 8.3% RevPAR $119.81 12.0% $110.1 9.9%
RevPAR $121.58 8.3% $100.48 8.6% [CONTINENTAL EUROPE® 1

\RENAISSANCE HOTELS 8 RESORTS J Oceupancy 726% 20%pts.  70.7% 1.9% pts.

Occupancy 72.8% 0.6% pts. 72.2% 1.1% pis. Average Daily Rate ~ $147.28 6.6% $150.58 7.2%
Average Daily Rate  $162.96 B.7% $151.91 B.A% RevPAR $106.95 9.6% $106.53 10.2%
RevPAR $118.57 2.6% $109.75 10.0% [UNITED KINGDOM @ ]
[COMPOSITE NORTH AMERICAN FULL-SERVICE®™ j Occupancy 79.6% 3.5% pts. 75.1% 3.1% pts.
Occupancy 72.4% -0.4% pts. 71.1% 0.3% pis. Average Daily Rate  $225.38 9.5% $204.99 8.6%
Average Dally Rate  $167.27 9.0% $153.90 8.3% RavPAR $179.44 14.6% $153.94 13.3%
RevPAR $121.10 B.5% $109.52 8.9% [MIDDLE EAST AND AFRICA® ]
[THE RITZ-CARLTON NORTH AMERICA ] Occupancy B8.9%  -03%pls.  69.0%  —0.7% pts,
Occupancy 72.9% 21%pts.  72.9% 2.1% pts. Average Daily Rate  $143.12  11.0% $134.95  11.5%
Average Daily Rate ~ $307.20 7.1% $307.20 7% RevPAR $ 98.58 10.5% $ 93.05 10.3%
RevPAR $223.88 10.3% $223.88 10.3% [ASIA PACIFICA & 1
[COMPOSITE NORTH AMERICAN FULL-SERVICE AND LUXURY % ] Occupancy 75.8% 1.0% pts. 76.9% 0.9% pts.
Qccupancy 72.4% -0.1% pts. 71.2% 0.5% pts. Average Daily Rate  $127.09 11.3% $120.26 9.8%
Average Daily Rate  $180.17 8.9% $163.03 8.3% RevPAR $ 96.28 12.7% $ 08.46 11.2%
RevPAR $130.52 8.7% $116.11 9.0% [REGIONAL COMPOSITE . # ]
[RESIDENGE INN 1 Ocoupaney 74.6% 1.3%pts.  73.6% 1.1% pts.
Occupancy 78.3%  -18%ps. 792%  -05%pts Average Dally Rate  $148.13 9.5% $147.12 9.0%
Average Dally Rate  $117.99 9.2% $113.85 8.2% RevPAR $110.53 11.4% $108.32 10.7%
RevPAR $ 92.35 6.8% $ 90.15 7.6% [INTERNATIONAL LUXURY ™ 1
|COURTYARD b Occupancy 717%  -0.1% pts. 717%  -0.1% pts.
Occupancy 709%  04%pls. 725% 0.1% pts. Average Daly Rate  $241.90 9.2% $241.90 9.2%
Average Daly Rate  $119.30 10.9% $116.67 9.5% RevPAR $173.35 8.1% $173.55 9.1%
RevPAR $ 84.62 10.3% $ 8457 9.7% [TOTAL INTERNATIONAL ™ )|
[FAIRFIELD INN 1 Occupancy 74.0% 12%pts.  73.5% 1.0% pts.
Occupancy nm nm 707% 1.0% pts. Average Daily Rate  $153.99 9.4% $152.02 9.0%
Average Daily Rate nm nm % 8205 9.1% RevPAR $114,61 11.1% $111.78 10.5%
RevPAR nm nm % 58.01 10.6% - - — .
1) Financial results for aff properties are reported on a period-end basis, while statistics for prop-

MWNEPLACE SUITES } ertios located gutsida tha contingntal United Statas and Canada arg mponad ona fnonm-efvd

Occupancy 753%  -03%opts.  757%  -0.2%pts. basis. The statistics ara ”mﬁ"m";%mmf"w For the s ocated i il

Average Daily Rate  § 78.68  10.9% $7969  10.2% e uso cuTancias oiher 'S ol (o comparisen fo 2005 on & consiant LS.

RevPAR $ 59.28 10.4% % 60.35 9.9% (2] Regional information includes Marriolt Hotels & Resorts, Renalssance Holels & Resorts, and

@PRINGHILL SUITES } . Couﬂya;dpropemes iocatad outside of the continentaf United States and Canada.

Occupancy 72.3% -2.0% pts. 74.1% 0.2% pts. {4) includes Hawa.i..

Average Daily Rate  $102.86 10.7% $ 98.78 9.8% {5) Regional Composita statistics inciude all properties Jocated outside of the continental United

RevPAR $ 74.42 7.8% % 73.16 10.0% States and Canada for Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotals & Resorts, and

{COMPOSITE RORTH AMERICAN L)MITED-SERVICE® } @ mm“” The Fitz-Cartion propertis kocate outside of North America and Bukgar Holels &

Cccupancy 73.3% -0.8% pts. 74.2% 0.1% pts. FAosorts,

Average Daily Rate  $115.24 10.4% $105.65 9.0% {7) Total lnrgmatmnal includes Regional Composite statistics and statistics for The Ritz-Cartton

RevPAR $ B4.41 9.1% $ 78.34 9.2% Intemational andt Buigar Hotels & Resorts,

{COMPOSITE NORTH AMERICAN™ 1 Comparable Company- Comparable
Cccupancy 72.8% -0.4% pts. 73.0% 0.3% pis. Operated Properties mwide Properties
Average Daily Rate  $152.14 9.5% $128.07 8.7% 2006 Change vs. 2005 2006 Change vs. 2005
RevPAR $110.74 B8.9% $ 93.47 9.1%

{1} Statistics am for the fiiy-twe weeks anded Decarmber 29, 2006, and Decomber 30, 2065, [coMPQSITE LUXURY™ ]
axcept for The Ritz-Cantton fov which the SIatistcs are for the twetve months ended Ooccupancy 72.5% 1.4% pts. 72.5% 1.4% pts.
Deceniber 31, 2006, and Decamber ﬂs‘?‘{fwﬁ’am focated in Canada the Average Dally Rate  $289.50 7.5% $289.50 7.5%
companson o 2005 15 on & CONSIant U5, dolar bass RevPAR $209.88 9.7% $200.88 9.7%

(2) Marriott Hotels & Resorts includes JYW Mariot! Hoteds & Resorts.

(3) Compasita North Amaricen Full-Servica statistics include propérties located in the continental [TOTAL WORLDWIDE® |
Unitad States and Canada for Marriott Hotels & Rasarts end Renalissance Hotels & Resorts.

: o : ) Occupancy 73.2% 0.0% pts. 73.1% 0.4% pts.

e e o oy s Mamot Hotels § Resarts Average Daly Rate ~ $15263  9.5% $131.92  8.8%

(5) Cornpasiza North Aerican Limited-Sanice SIatistics include propertiss located in the conti- RevPAR $111.75 9.5% $ 96.33 9.4%

nental Unitod States and Canada for Residence Inn, Courtyard, Fairfield inn, TownePface
Suites, and SpringHill Suites,

5) Composita North American stalistics inclutia propertias located in the continantal Unitad
Statas ang Canada for Marriolt Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Holels & Resorts, Residenca
Inn, Courtyard, Fairfield Inn, TownePace Suites, SprngHiK Suitas, and The Ritz-Cartton.
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{1} Financial resuits fiv aff proparties are repdvtad on a panod-end basks, whike statistics for prop-
erties located outsice the continental United States and Cenada ara reported on & month-and
basss. For the propertias kcalad in couninas that use currancias other than the U.S. dolar,
the companson (o 2005 is on & constant ULS. dollar basis,

{2) Composite Luxury includes workdwiok properties for The Ritz-Cartton and Bulgzar! Hotels & Rasorts.

3) Total Woridwida statistics include aX propertias worldwida for Marriot! Hotals & Resorts,
Renaissanca Hotels & Rasorts, Rasidance Inn, Courtyard, Fairfiakd inn, TownePlace Suites,
SpringHil Suites, and The Ritz-Cartton. Statistics for propertias located in the continantal
United States and Canada {excep! for Tha Ritz-Carfton) reprasent the fifty-two woeks ended
Deacember 28, 2006, and Decemnber 30, 2005, Statistics for all The Ritz-Cartion properties
and properties located outsids of the continantal United States and Canada reprasent the
twelve months ended December 31, 2006, and Dacember 31, 2005.




North American Full-Service Lodging

North American Full-Service Lodging includes Marriott Hotels &
Resorts, Mamiott Conference Centers, JW Marmioft Hotels & Resorts,
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, and Renaissance ClubSport.

Annual Change

(% in miflions) .| 2007 | 2006 2005 2007/2006 2006/2005

Segment revenues | $5,476| $5,196 $5,116 5% 2%
$ 4arg|$ 455 § 349 5% 30%

Segment results

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

In 2007, across our North American Full-Service Lodging segment,
we added 13 properties (3,947 rooms) and six properties (2,853
rooms}) left the system.

In 2007, RevPAR for comparable company-operated North
American full-service properties increased by 6.8 percent to
$126.92. Occupancy for these properties increased by 0.9 percent-
age points to 72.7 percent, and average daily rates increased by
5.4 percent to $174.54,

The $23 million increase in segment results compared to 2006
reflects a $65 million increase in base management, incentive man-
agement, and franchise fees, partially offset by a $22 million decline
in gains and other income and a $20 million decrease in owned,
leased, and other revenue net of direct expenses.

The $65 million increase in feas was largely due to stronger
RevPAR and property-level margins, driven primarily by rate increases
and productivity improvements. [ncentive management fees for 2007
reflect the receipt of $12 milion and base management fees for 2007
reflect the receipt of $2 million, both of which were for business inter-
ruption insurance proceeds associated with Hurmicane Katrina, and
no similar fees in 2006. Additionally, 2006 reflected the recognition of
$3 million of base management fees that were calculated based on
prior periods’ results, but not earned and due until 2008, compared
to the recognition of no similar fees in 2007.

Gains and other income was $22 million lower in 2007, as com-
pared to 2006, and reflected a $37 million charge in 2006 associated
with a straight-line rent receivable, partially offset by the redemption of
preferred stock in a cost method investee that generated income of
$25 million in 2006 and $34 million of lower other gains in 2007, as
compared to 2006, The $34 million decrease in other gains com-
pared to the prior year reflects gaing in 2006 associated with the sale
of joint venture invastments and reat estate, while 2007 reflects limited
simitar activity. Owned, leased, and other revenue net of direct
expenses decreased by $20 million and reflected properties scld and
$10 million of hotel management and franchise agreement termina-
tion fees received in 2006, comparad to $3 million of such fees
received in 2007. General, administrative, and other expenses for
2007 were unchanged as compared to 2006 primarily reflecting $5
million of hotel management agreement performance cure payments
in 2006 offset by a guarantee charge in 2007 associated with one
property and the write-off of a deferred contract acquisition cost
associated with another property that left the system.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

In 2006, across our North American Full-Service Lodging segment,
we added 15 properties (4,971 rooms) and six properties (1,604
rooms} left the system.

In 2006, RevPAR for comparable company-operated North
American full-service properties increased by 8.5 percent to $121.10.
Occupancy for these properties decreased by 0.4 percentage points,
and average daily rates increased by 9.0 percent to $167.27.

Compared to the prior year, our 2006 results reflect a $59 million
increase in base management, incentive management, and franchise

fees. The increase in fees is largely due to stronger RevPAR, driven
primarily by rate increases and, {o a lesser extent, higher food and
beverage, meeting room rental and other revenue, and productivity
improvements, afl of which favorably impacted property-level house
profit margins. The growth in the number of rooms, year-over-year,
also contributed to the increase in fees. Incentive management fees
included $10 million for 2005 that were calculated based on prior
periods’ earnings but not earned and due until they were recog-
nized. Similarty, base management fees for 2006 included $4 milion
of fees that were calculated based on prior periods’ results, but not
earned and due until 2006. Owned, leased, and other revenue net of
direct expenses decreased by $8 million primarily as a result of prop-
erties sold in 2006 and tha receipt in 2005 of a $10 million hotel
agreement termination fes associated with cne property, partially off-
set by the receipt in 2006 of $10 million of hotel management and
franchise agreement termination fees.

General, administrative, and other expenses decreased by $69 mil-
lion as a result of, among other things, a $60 million chargs in 2005
associated with the CTF transaction, more fully discussed in the previ-
ous “Operating Income” discussion, as well as expenses of $14 milion
in 2005 related to cur bedding incentive program, partially offset by
increased expenses in 2006 reflecting costs related to unit growth and
development, systems improvements, and increases in ordinary costs
such as wages and benefits. In 2005, general, administrative, and
other expenses included $3 million of hotel management agreement
performance cure payments associated with one property. In 20086,
general, administrative, and other expensas included a $5 milion hotel
management agreement performance cure payment.

Gains and other income was $3 million higher than the prior year
and reflected the redemption of preferred stock in a cost method
investee that generated income of $25 million in 2006 and $15 mil-
lion of higher net gains and other income in 2006 reflecting gains in
2006 associated with the sale of joint venture investments and real
estate that were partially offset by lower gains in 2006 associated
with the sale or repayment before maturity of loans receivable asso-
ciated with several properties. Gains and cther income for 2006
reflected a $37 million non-cash charge to adjust the carrying
amount to net realizable value associated with land we own and
lease, as further described in the “Expected Land Salg” caption in
the “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations™ section of our 2006 Form 10-K. Equity
results decreased by $18 million versus the prior year and reflected
the recognition in 2005 of $16 million in equity earnings from two
joint ventures as a result of the ventures' sale of hotels and our sale
of some joint venture investments in 2005 and 2006, ofiset to some
extent by improved equity joint venture results reflecting the
stronger demand envircnment.

North American Limited-Service Lodging

North American Limited-Service Lodging includes Courtyard,
Fairfield Inn, SpringHill Suites, Residence Inn, TownePlace Suites,
and Marriott ExecuStay.

Annual Change
{% in millions) 2007 2006 2005 2007/2006 2006/2005
Segment revenues | $2,198 | $2,060 $1,886 7% 9%
Segment results  |$ 461|$ 380 $ 303 2% 25%

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Across our North American Limited-Service Lodging segment, we
added 156 properties {17,517 rooms) and 16 properties (1,853
rooms) left the system in 2007. The properties that left the system
were primarily associated with our Fairfield Inn brand.
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In 2007, RevPAR for comparable company-operated Morth
American Iimited-service properties increased by 4.8 percent to
$89.18. Occupancy for these properties decreased by 0.4 percent-
age points to 72.7 percent, and average daily rates increased by
5.4 percent to $122.63.

The $81 millicn increase in segment results, as compared to
2006, primarily reflects an $83 milion increase in base manage-
ment, incentive management, and franchise fees, a $5 million
increase in owned, leased, and other revenue net of direct
expenses, a $2 million increase in gains and other income, and a
$2 milion increass in joint venture equity earnings, partially offset by
$11 million of higher general, administrative, and other expenses.

In 2007, we recognized $15 million of incentive management
fees that were calculated based on prior years' results but not
earned and due until 2007 as compared to the racognition of no
similar fees in 2006. The additional increase in fees is largely dus
to higher RevPAR, driven by rate increases, which increased base
management and franchise fees, and to productivity improvements,
which increased property-level margins and incentive management
fess. Additionally, growth in the number of rooms contributed to the
increase in base management and franchise fees. The $5 million
increase in owned, leased, and other revenue net of direct
expenses is primarily a result of hotel franchise agreement termina-
tion fees of $6 milion received in 2007, which were associated with
properties, primarily our Fairfield Inn brand, that left our system and
$1 million of similar feas in 2006. The $11 million increase in gen-
eral, administrative, and other expenses in 2007 primarily reflects
the impact of unit growth and development and the write-off of
$3 million of deferred contract acquisition costs.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

Across our North American Limited-Service Lodging segment,

we added 91 properties (11,329 rooms) and 28 properties (3,647
rooms) left the system in 2006. The properties that [eft the system
were primarily associated with our Fairfield Inn brand.

In 2006, RevPAR for comparable company-operated North
American limited-service properties increased by 9.1 percent to
$84.41. Occupancy for these properties decreased by 0.8 percent-
age points to 73.3 percent, and average daily rates increased by
10.4 percent to $115.24.

Tha $77 miliion increase In segment results for 2006 primarily
reflects a $77 million increase in base management, incentive man-
agement, and franchise fees, $27 million of lower general, adminis-
trative, and other expenses, and $6 million of increased equity
results, partially offset by a $14 milion decrease in owned, leased,
and other revenue net of direct expenses and a $19 milion
decrease in gains and other income. The increase in fees is largely
due to higher RevPAR, driven by rate increases, which impacted
property-level house profits and, to a lesser extent, to 2006 produc-
tivity improvements and the growth in the number of rooms.
Stronger performance at our rengvated Courtyard properties, ver-
sus nonrenovated propsrties, alse contributed to the increase in
segment results over the prior year. The decrease in owned, leased,
and other revenue net of direct expenses reflects lower lease rev-
enue as a result of our sale, late in 2005, of a portfolio of land
undertying 75 Courtyard hotels, partialty offset by improved owned
and leased resuits in 2006 reflecting stronger demand.

The decrease in general, administrative, and other expenses of
$27 miflion is attributable to the recognition of expenses in 2005
totaling $11 million associated with our bedding incentive program,
a $6 million litigation charge and a $3 miflion guarantee charge.
improved equity results in 2006 versus 2005 reflect the impact of a
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stronger demand enwvironment in 2008, new joint ventures and

the impact of owning a 50 percent interest in the Courtyard Jeint
Venture through the first quarter of 2005 versus owning & 21 per-
cent interest thereafter. For additional information regarding the
Courtyard Joint Venture, see the “Courtyard Joint Venture™ caption
in the "Liquidity and Capital Rescurces” section in “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resutts of
Operations” of our 2005 Form 10-K. Gains and other income
decreased by $19 milion in 2006 as a result of the 2005 sale of a
portfolio of land that generated gains and other income of $17 mil-
lion, a $10 milicn gain in 2005 associated with the repaymant,
before maturity, to us of the loan we made to the Courtyard Joint
Venture, partially offset by higher other real estate and other gains
of $4 milllion in 2006 and increased income of $4 million in 2006
associated with cost method joint ventures.

International Lodging

International Lodging includes International Marriott Hotels &
Resorts, Intemational JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts, International
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts, International Courtyard, international
Fairfieid Inn, Infernational Residence Inn, Ramada International, and
Marriott Executive Apartments.

Annual Change
{% in mitlions) 2007 | 2006 2005 2007/2006 2006/2005

Segment revenues | $1,594 | $1.411 $1,017  13% 39%
Segmentresults  |$ 271|$ 237 $ 133 14% 78%

2007 COMPARED TO 2006
Across our International Lodging segment, we added 20 propertiss
(4,686 roorms) and 31 properties {4,678 rooms) left the system in 2007.

In 2007, RevPAR for comparable company-operated interna-
tional properties increased by 8.2 percent to $127.44. Occupancy
for these properties increased by 0.8 percentage points io 75.7
percent, and average dally rates increased by 7.0 percent to
$168.30. Results for our international operations were strong across
most regions. RevPAR increases as compared to the prior year
were particutarly strong in Central and South East Asia, South
America, the Middle East, and Eastern Europe.

The $34 milion increase in segment results in 2007 as com-
pared to 2006, reflects a $27 million increase in base management,
incentive management, and franchise fees, an $11 million increase
in gains and other income, and a $3 million increase in joint venture
equity earnings, partially offset by $7 million of higher general,
administrative, and other expenses. Incentive management fees
included $2 million for 2007 that were calcutated based on prior
periods’ earnings, but not earned and due until recognized, com-
pared to $10 million of similar fees in 2006.

The increase in fees is largely due to strong demand and higher
RevPAR, driven by rate increases and favorable exchange rates.
The $11 milion increase in gaing and other income reflects higher
gains in 2007 on real estate sales, as compared to the year-ago
period, offset by kower gains on the sale of joint ventures. The $7
million increase in general, administrative, and other expenses from
2006 is primarily attributable to costs related to our unit growth
and development, Owned, leased, and other revenue net of direct
expenses remained flat primarily reflecting hotel management and
franchise agreement termination fees of $8 million received in
2007 and $12 million of similar fees in 2006, entirely offset by the
improved performance of our owned and leased progerties in 2007,




2006 COMPARED TO 2005
Across our International Lodging segment, we added 22 properties
(5,242 rooms) and 10 properties (3,136 rooms) left the system in 2006.

In 2006, RevPAR for comparable company-operated interna-
tional properties increased by 11.1 percent to $114.61. Occupancy
for these properties increased by 1.2 percentage points to 74.4
percent, and average daily rates increased by 9.4 percent to
$153.99. Results for our international operations were strong across
most regions. China, Mexice, Australia, Germany, France, the
United Kingdom, and certain Middle Eastem countries all had
strong RevPAR increases.

The $104 milion increase in segment results for 2008 primarily
reflects a $43 million increase in base management, incentive man-
agement, and franchise fees, $37 million of lower general, adminis-
trative, and other expenses, $29 milion of increased owned, leased,
and other revenue net of expenses, and a $15 milion increase in
gains and other income, partially offset by $20 million of lower
equity results. Incentive management feas included $10 million and
$4 million for 2006 and 2005, respectively, that were calculated
based on prior periods’ earnings, but not earned and due until the
periods they were recognized. The increase in fees is largely due to
higher RevPAR, driven by rate increases, which impacted property-
level house profits and, to a lesser extent, to productivity improve-
ments and the growth in the number of rooms.

Equity results decreased by $20 million in 20086 versus 2005 and
reflected the recogniticn in 2005 of $14 millicn in equity earnings
from a joint venture as a result of the venture's sale of a hotel and
$4 million of increased equity losses in 2006 associated with one
joint venture's hotel that was closed for renovation. The increase
of $29 million in owned, leased, and cther revenue net of direct
expensas reflects $19 million of improved results for owned and
leased properties primarily due to the stronger demand environment
and an increase of $12 million for hotel agreement termination fees
for several properties. The $19 milicn improvement in owned and
leased results also reflects the impact of a $5 million charge in 2006
for depreciation expense associated with cne property that was
reclassified from “held for sale” to “held and used” as it was not
sold within one year of its classification as “held for sale,” as had
been expected.

The $15 million increase in gaing and other income is primarily
attributable to gains on tha sale of various joint ventures throughout
2006, partially offset by a decrease in cther income associated with
one of the soid cost method joint venture investments. The
decrease in general, adminisirative, and other expenses of $37 mil-
fion is attributable to the recognition of expenses in 2005 totaling $5
million associated with our bedding incentive program as well as a
$34 million charge in 2005 associated with the CTF transaction dis-
cussed moare fully in the previous operating income disclosure. Also
impacting general, administrative, and other expanses, in 2005 we
recorded expenses totaling $8 million associated with twa guaran-
tees and 2006 reflected $7 miliion of increased expenses related
to unit growth and development, systems improvements, and
increased ordinary costs such as wages and benefits.

Luxury Lodging
Luxury Lodging includes The Ritz-Carffon and Bulgan Hotels & Resorts.

i Annual Change
(% in millions) ' 2007 | 2006 2005 2007/2006 2008/2005

Segment revenues $1,576, $1,423 $1,333  11% 7%
Segmentresuts |$ 72:$ 63 $ 45  14% 40%

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Across our Luxury Lodging segment, we added 11 properties (2,529
rooms) and one property (273 rooms) left the systemn in 2007. In
addition, we added three residential products (347 units) in 2007.

In 2007, RevPAR for comparable company-cperated luxury
properties increased by 9.4 percent to $227.87. Occupancy for
these properties increased by 1.8 percentage points to 72.5 per-
cent, and average daily rates increased by 6.6 percent to $314.36.

The $9 million increase in segment results, as compared to
2008, reflected a $20 milion increase in base management and
incentive management fees, partially offset by $3 milion of lower
owned, leased, and cther revenue net of direct expenises, $8 million
of increased general, administrative, and other expenses, and
$2 million of lower equity joint venture results. Fiscal year 2006
included $2 milion of base management fees that were calculated
based on prior periods’ results, but not earmed and due until 2006,
as compared to no similar fees in 2007. The increase in fees over
the prior year reflects stronger RevPAR driven by rate increases,
new properties added to the system, the receipt in 2007 of $5 mil-
lion of business interruption insurance proceeds associated with
hurricanes in prior years, the year-over-year favorable impact asso-
ciated with the recpening, late in 2006, of two properties impacted
by the same aforementioned hurricanes and increased branding
faes. The $6 million increase in general, administrative, and other
expenses is primarily attributable to costs related to our unit growth
and development. The $3 million decrease in owned, leased, and
other revenue net of direct expenses reflected charges totaling $8
million in 2007 for depreciation expense associated with one prop-
erty that was reclassified from “held and used,” as the property no
longer satisfied the criteria to be classified as *held for sale,” par-
tially offset by a favorable $3 million impact associated with the
opening of a new leased property in 2007.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005
Across our Luxury Lodging segment, we added three properties
(424 rooms) and one property {229 rooms) left the system in 20086.

In 2006, RevPAR for comparable company-operated luxury
properties increased by 9.7 percent to $209.88. Occupancy for
these properties increased by 1.4 percentage points to 72.5 per-
cent, and average daily rates increased by 7.5 percent to $289.50.

The $18 million increase in segment results for 2006 primarily
reflects a $16 million increase in base management and incentive
management fees, $7 milion of lower general, administrative, and
other expenses and $1 million of higher owned, leased, and other
revenue net of direct expensas, partialty offset by $& million of lower
gains and other income. The increase in fees is largety due to higher
RevPAR, driven by rate increases, which impacted property-level
house profits and, to a lesser extent, to preductivity improvements,
the growth in the number of rooms, and the recognition of $2 mil-
lion of base management fees that were calculated based on prior
periods’ results, but not earned and due until 2006.

The decrease in general, administrative, and other expenses of
$7 million is attributable to a 2005 hotel management agreement
performance termination cure payment of $12 million associated
with one property, partially offset by a $5 millon increase in
expenses in 20086 reflecting costs refated to unit growth and devel-
opment and an increase in ordinary costs such as wages and ben-
efits. Gains and other income decreased by $5 milion in 2006 as a
result of a $9 milien gain in 2005 associated with the repayment
before maturity of a note receivable associated with one property,
partially offset by gains totaling $3 million associated with the 2006
sale of a preferred interest in one property.
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Timeshare

Timeshare includes our Marrott Viacation Club, The Ritz-Cariton
Ciub, Grand Residences by Marriott, and Horizons by Marriott
Vacation Ciub brands.

Annual Change
2006 2005 2007/2006 2008/2005

(% in miflions) 2007

Segment Revenues

Segment revenues | $2,065, 51,840 $1,721  12% 7%

Segment Results

Base management
fee revenue

Timeshare sales
and services, net 350 357 259

Joint venture equity 10 @ 1
Minority interest 1 - -

General, adminis-
trative, and other

$ 4318 343 32

expense {98) (109} {93)
Gains and cther
income — - 72
Segment resuits I$ 306|% 280 $§ 271 9% 3%
Sales and Services
Revenue
Development $1,208{$1,112 $1,208
Services 315} 286 151
Financing 195 171 72
Other revenue 29| 8 56

Sales and services

revenue $1,747 31,577 $1.487 11% 6%

Contract Sales

Timeshare $1,221{$1,207 $1,187
Fractional 44 42 10
Residential ) 5 22

Total company 1,256 1,254 1,310
Timeshare 33 28 49
Fractional 54 68 17
Residential 58 282 24

Total joint venture 145 378 80
Total contract sales | $1,401{$1,632 $1,400 -14%  17%

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

Timeshare contract sales, including sales made by our timeshare
joint venture projects, reprasent sales of timeshare interval, frac-
tional ownership, and residential ownership products before the
adjustment for percentage-of-completion accounting. Timeshare
contract sales decreased by 14 percent as compared to 20086,
reflecting fewer residential and fractional sales, partially offset by
increased timeshare sales. Contract sales in 2006 reflected particu-
larty strong joint venture residential sales associated with the launch
of our San Francisco and Kapalua, Hawail products.

The $225 million increase in Timeshare segment revenues from
$1,840 million to $2,065 million reflected a $170 million increase in
timeshare sales and services revenue, a $46 million increase in cost
reimbursements revenue, and $9 million of increased base manage-
ment fees. The increase in timeshare sales and services revenue
primarily reflects newer projects that reached reportability thresholds
in 2007 and increased services and financing revenue. Higher base
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management fees reflect the growing number of timeshare resorts
under management. Timeshare segment revenues include $50 mil-
fion and $41 milion of interest income for 2007 and 2006, respec-
tively, and note sale gains of $81 million and $77 million for 2007
and 2006, respectively, recorded in our Consolidated Statements of
Income on the “Timeshare sales and services” revenue line, associ-
ated with Timeshare segment notes receivable.

Segment resutts of $306 mifion in 2007 increased by $26 million
over 2006 and primarily reflected $9 million of increased base man-
agement fees, $12 million of increased joint venture equity results,
and $11 million of lower general, administrative, and other expenses,
partially offset by $7 million of lower timeshare sales and services rev-
enue net of expenses. Timeshare sales and services revenue net of
direct expenses of $350 million decreased by $7 million, as com-
pared to the prior year, primarily reflecting flat development revenue
net of product costs and marketing and selling costs and $12 million
of increased financing revenue net of financing expenses, partially off-
set by the $15 million reversal of contingency reserves in 2006 and
$4 million of lower services revenue net of services expenses. Rat
development revenus net of product costs and marketing and selling
costs reflected newer projects that reached reportability thresholds in
2007, offset by several other projects that were approaching sell-out.
The increase in financing revenue net of financing costs primarity
reflects increased accretion, interest income, and higher note sale
gains in 2007, as compared to 2008. As compared to the prior year,
the $12 milion ingrease in joint venture equity results primarity reflects
strong demand in 2007 for our products in Kapalua, Hawaii and
start-up costs in 2006 associated with that joint venture. The $11 mil-
lion decrease in general, administrative, and other expenses reflected
lower program and systems expenses in 2007.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

Timeshare contract sales increased by 17 percent in 2006.
Timeshare segment revenues of $1,840 million and $1,721 million in
2006 and 2005, respactively, include $41 million and $38 million for
2006 and 2005, respectively, of interest income, recorded in our
Consolidated Statements of Income on the “Timeshare sales and
services” revenue line, associated with Timeshare segment notes
receivable. The $119 million increase in Timeshare segment rev-
enues reflects a $90 million increase in Timeshare sales and serv-
ices revenue, a $27 million increase in cost reimbursements
revenue, and $2 million of increased base management fees. The
$90 miilion increase in Timeshare sales and services revenue prima-
rity reflects $77 million of revenue in 2006 from note securitization
gains. As detalled earlier in the “Cumulative Effect of Change in
Accounting Principle” narrative, note securitization gains of $69 mil-
lion for 2005 are not reflected in revenue, but instead are a compo-
nent of gains and other income.

HISTORICAL INFORMATION
The following graphs show the number of Timeshare segment owners
and the Timeshare segment results for each of the last five fiscal years.
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Segment results of $280 million in 2006 increased by $9 million
over 2005. The $9 million increase includes an increase of $98 mil-
lion for Timeshare sales and services revenue net of direct expenses
and a $2 million increase in base management fees, partially offset
by a decline of $72 million in gains and other income, a $16 million
increase in general, administrative, and other expenses, and
$3 millicn of lower joint venture equity earnings. The increase in
Timeshare sales and services revenue net of direct expenses of
$98 million largely reflects $77 million of revenue in 2006 from note
securitization gains. Note securitization gains of $69 million for 2005
are not reflected in revenue, but instead are a component of gains
and other incoma. Also reflected in the $98 million variance, devel-
opment revenue net of expenses increased by $14 million primarily
reflecting lower development expenses in 2006 associated with
projects in the early stages of development that dic not reach rev-
enue recognition thresholds and the timing of expenses associated
with SOP 04-2, implemented in 2006. Additionally, the $38 million
variance reflacted a $15 million reversal of marketing related contin-
gency reserves and $12 million of higher financing revenue net of
expense, partially offset by $21 million of lower senvices revenue net
of expenses. The $3 million decline in equity income primarily
reflects start-up fosses associated with several new jcint ventures,
partially offset by improved performance at cther joint ventures. The
$72 million decling in gains and cther income primarily reflected $69
million of note securitization gains in 2005 versus the recerding of
note securitization gains in revenue for 2006, while the $16 million
increase in general, administrative, and other expenses reflected
higher program and joint venture development expenses, and cus-
tomary increases in ordinary costs such as wages and benefits,

Investment in Leveraged Lease

Historically, we had a $23 million investment in an aircraft leveraged
lease with Delta, which we acquired in 1994. The gross investment
was comprised of rentals receivable and the residual value of the
aircraft offset by unearned income. On September 14, 2005, Delta
filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of the U.S.
Bankruptcy Code and informed us that it wished to restructure

the lease. As a result, our investment was impaired and we had
recorded pretax charges of approximately $18 million through 2006,
We recorded an additional $5 million loss related to this investment
in fiscal 2007. We have no remaining exposure related 1o this histor-
ical investment,

Effective Tax Rate

Tax credits contributed by our synthetic fuel operations have signifi-
cantly reduced our effective tax rate during the last several years.
As we exited the business in November 2007 our future effective
tax rate is likely to increase significantly, thereby reducing our after-
tax profits.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Synthetic Fuel

The tax credits provided under Internal Revenue Code Section 45K
werg only available for the production and sale of synthetic fuels
produced from coal through December 31, 2007. Given high oil
prices during 2007 and the anticipated and related phase-cut of a
significant portion of tax credits available for synthetic fuel produced
and sold in 2007, we permanently ceased operations at our syn-
thetic fuel facilities on November 3, 2007 and report this business
as a discontinued operation. See Footnote No. 2, “Discontinued
Operations,™ and Footnote No. 17, “Contingencies,” in this report
for additional information regarding the Synthetic Fuel segment.

2007 COMPARED TO 2006

For 2007, the synthetic fuel operation generated revenue of $352
million versus revenue of $165 million for the prior year, primarily
reflecting higher production in 2007, Production in 2006 reflected
production suspensions instituted in response to high oil prices.
Income from the Synthetic Fuel segment declined from $5 million in
2006 to a loss of $1 million in 2007, primarily reflecting increased
operating losses associated with higher production in 2007, partially
offset by increased revenue and increased tax credits associated
with higher production and, on the increased operating losses, a
higher tax benefit. Results for 2007 also reflect an estimated 70.71
percent phase-out of tax credits due to high oil prices versus a
phase-out that was estimated at year-end 2006 to be 39 percent for
2006. Additionally, results in 2007 reflect interest costs of $8 million
associated with hedges entered into in response to high oil prices.

2006 COMPARED TO 2005

For 2006, the synthetic fuel operation generated revenue of $165
milion versus revenue of $421 millicn for the prior year, primarily
reflecting significantly lower production in 2006 as a result of pro-
cuction suspensions instituted in respense to high ail prices.
Income from the Synthetic Fuel segment declined from $125 milion
in 2005 to $5 million in 2006, primarily as a resuft of both lower pro-
duction in 2006 and the estimated 39 percent phase-out of tax
credits at year-end 2006 due to high cil prices in 2006. Additionally,
results in 2006 reflect interest costs of $4 million associated with
hedges entered into in response to high oil prices. Segment results
for 2006 also reflect a $5 million ¢charge reflecting the write-down of
assets at the Alabama preduction facility as the adjacent mine was
closed at year-end and we did not anticipate operating the facility
again at this location.

Distribution Services
In 2005, we had income, net of tax, of $1 million associated with
the distribution services business that we exited in 2002,

New Accounting Standards

FASB interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
income Taxes™

We adopted FASB interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty
in Income Taxes,” (“FIN 48"} on December 30, 20086, the first day of
our 2007 fiscal year. FIN 48 is an interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which seeks 1o standardize
practices associated with certain aspects of measurement and
recognition in accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement requirement for the financial
statement recognition of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken on a tax return. Additionally, FIN 48 provides guidance on
de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure, and transition. Under FIN 48, an entity
may only recognize or continue to recognize tax positions that meet
a “rnore likely than not" threshold. We recorded the cumulative effect
of applying FIN 48 of $155 milion as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings and additional paid-in-capital on
December 30, 2008, the first day of our 2007 fiscal year. See
Footnote No. 3, “Income Taxes,” for additiona) information.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 156, “Accounting for
Servicing of Financial Assets-an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 1407

We adopted FASB's FAS No. 156 on December 30, 2006, the first
day of our 2007 fiscal year. FAS No. 156 requires that all separately
recognized servicing assets and liabilities initially be measured at fair
value, if practicable. It also allows an entity to subsequently elect fair
value measurement for its senvicing assets and liabilities. We
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recorded the cumulative effect of applying FAS No. 156, of $1 mil-
lion, net of tax, as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings on December 30, 2006. See Footnote No. 11, “Asset
Securitizations,” for additional information.

Future Adoption of Accounting Standards

EITF Issue No. 06-8, “Applicability of the Assessment of a
Buyer’s Continuing Investment under FASB Statement No.
66, Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, for Sales of
Condominiums”

In November 2008, the Emerging Issues Task Force of FASB
{("EITF") reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-8, "Applicability
of the Assessment of a Buyer's Continuing Investment under FASB
Statement No. 66, Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, for Sales of
Condeminiums” (“EITF 06-8"). EITF 06-8 will require condominium
sales to meet the continuing investment criterion in FAS No. 66 in
order to recognize profit under the percentage of completion
method. EITF 06-8 will be effective for annual reporting periods
beginning after March 15, 2007, which for us begins with our 2008
fiscal year. The cumulative effect of applying EITF 06-8, if any, will
be recorded as an adjustment to the opening batance of retained
earnings in the year of adoption. We do not expect the impact of
adoption of EITF 06-8 to be material.

FAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”

In September 2008, the FASB issued FAS No. 157, "Fair Value
Measurements” ("FAS No. 1577). This standard defines fair value,
establishes a methedology for measuring fair value, and expands
the required disclosure for fair value measurements. FAS No, 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which
for us begins with our 2008 fiscal year. Provisions of FAS No. 157
must be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the first fiscat
year in which FAS No. 157 is applied. In Novernber 2007, the FASB
agreed to partially defer the effective date, for one year, of FAS

No. 157, for non-financial assets and liabilities, except those that
are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements
on a recurring basis. We are currently evaluating the impact that
FAS No. 157 will have on our financial statements.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115"

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (“FAS Ne. 159%). This
standard permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value and is effective for
the first fiscal year beginning after November 15, 2007, which for us
begins with our 2008 fiscal year. We do not expect to elect the fair
value measurement opticn for any financial assets or liabilities at the
present time.

EITF Issue No. 07-6, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate
Subject to the Requirements of FASB Statement No. 66,
‘Accounting for Sales of Real Estate,” When the Agreemeant
Inciudes a Buy-Sell Clause”

In Becemper 2007, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue
No. 07-6, “Accounting for Sales of Rea! Estate Subject to the
Requirements of FASB Staterment No. 66, 'Accounting for Sales of
Real Estate,” When the Agreement Includes a Buy-Sell Clause”
{'EITF 07-8"). EITF 07-6 clarifies whether a buy-sell clause is a pro-
hibited form of continuing involverment that would preclude partial
sales treatment under FAS No. 66. EITF 07-6 is effective for new
arrangements entered into and assessments of existing transactions
ofiginally accounted for under the deposit, profit-sharing, leasing, or
financing methods for reasons other than the exercise of a buy-sell
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clause performed in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007,
which for us begins with our 2008 fiscal year. We do not expect
EITF 07-6 to have a material impact on our financial statements.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (Revised 2007),
“Business Combinations”

On December 4, 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141 (Revised
2007), "Business Combinations” (“FAS No. 141{R)". FAS No. 141(R)
will significantly change the accounting for business combinations.
Under FAS No. 141(R), an acquiring entity will be required to recog-
nize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumead in a transaction
at the acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions. FAS

No. 141(R) also includes a substantial number of new disclosure
requirements. FAS No. 141(R) applies prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the begin-
ning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
December 15, 2008, which for us begins with our 2009 fiscal year.
We are currently evaluating the impact that FAS No. 141(R) wil have
on our financial statements.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 160, “Non-controlling
Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements-an
Amendment of ARB No. 51"

Cn December 4, 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, “Non-
controfling Interests in Consolidated Financia! Statements-an
Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin ("ARB") No. 51" (“*FAS
No. 160"). FAS No. 160 establishes new accounting and reporting
standards for a non-controliing interest in a subsidiary and for the
decensolidation of a subsidiary. Specifically, this staterent requires
the recognition of a non-controlling interest {minority interest) as
equity in the consolidated financial statements separate from the
parent’s equity. The amount of net income attributable to the non-
controlling interest will be included in consolidated net income on
the face of the income statement. FAS No. 160 clarifies that
changes in a parent's ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in deconsolidation are equity transactions if the parent retains
its controlling financial interest. In addition, this statement requires
that a parent recognize a gain or loss in net income when a sub-
sidiary is deconsolidated. Such gain or loss will be measured using
the fair value of the non-contrelling equity investment on the decon-
solidation date. FAS No, 160 also includes expanded disclosure
requirements regarding the interests of the parent and its non-con-
trolling interest. FAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15,
2008, which for us begins with our 2009 fiscal year. We are cur-
rently evaluating the impact that FAS No. 160 will have on our
financial staternents.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Requirements and Our Credit Facilities

We are party to a multicurrency revolving credit agreement that pro-
vides for borrowings and letters of credit and supports our commer-
cial paper program. On May 14, 2007, we amended and restated
this facility to increase the aggregate borrowings available under the
facility from $2 billion to $2.5 billion and extended the expiration of
the facility from 2011 to 2012. The material terms of the amended
and restated credit agreement were otherwise unchanged.
Borrowings under the facility bear interest at the Londen Interbank
Cffered Rate (LIBOR} plus a spread based on our public debt rat-
ing. Additionally, we pay annual fees on the facility at a rate also
based on our public debt rating. We do not anticipate that fluctua-
tions in the availability of the commercial paper market will affect our
liquidity because of the flexibility provided by cur credit facility. We
classify commercial paper as long-term debt based on our ability
and intent to refinance it on a long-term basis.




At year-end 2007, our available borrowing capacity amounted to
$2.151 billion and reflected borrowing capacity of $2.5 billion under
tha credit facility, plus our cash balance of $332 million, less letters
of credit outstanding totaling $96 million, and Jess $585 milion of
outstanding commercial paper supported by the facility. We con-
sider these resources, together with cash we expect to generate
from operations, adequate to meet our short-term and long-term
liquidity requiremants, finance our long-term growth plans, meet
debt service, and fulfill other cash requirements, We periodically
evaluate oppertunities to issue and sell additional debt or equity
saecurities, obtain credit faciliies from lenders, or repurchase,
refinance, or otherwise restructure our long-term debt for strategic
reasons, or to further strengthen our financial position.

We issue short-term commercial paper in the United States and
in Europa. Our commercial paper issuances are subject to the then-
current demand for our commercial paper in each of these markets,
as we have no commitments from buyers 1o purchase our commer-
cial paper. We reserve unused capacity under our credit facility to
repay outstanding commercial paper borrowings in the event that
the commercial paper market is not available t¢ us for any reascn
when outstanding borrowings mature.

We monitor the status of the capital markets and regularty evalu-
ate the effect that changes in capital market conditions may have
on cur ability to execute our announced growth plans. We expect
that part of our financing and liquidity needs will continue to be met
through commercial paper borrowings and access to ong-term
committed credit facilities. If conditions in the lodging industry dete-
riorate, or if disruptions in the commercial paper market take place
as they did in the immediate aftermath of September 11, 2001, we
may be unabte to place some or all of our commercial paper on a
temporary or extended basis and may have to rely more on borrow-
ings under the credit facility, which may or may not carry a higher
cost than commercial paper.

Cash from Operations
Cash from operations, depreciation expense, and amortization
expense for the last three fiscal years are as follows:

% in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Cash from operations $778 $970 $840
Depreciation expense 162 155 156
Amortization expense 35 33 28

Our ratio of curent assets to current liabilities was roughly 1.2 to
1.0 at year-end 2007 and 1.3 to 1.0 at year-end 2006. We minimize
working capital through cash management, strict credit-granting
policies, aggressive collection efforts, and high inventory tumaover.
We also have significant borrowing capacity under our revolving
credit facility should we need additional working capital.

Our ratios of earnings to fixed charges for the last five fiscal
years, the calculations of which are detailed in Exhibit 12 to this
report, are as follows:

Fiscal Years
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
4.3x 5.3x 4.6x 4.9x 3.9x

White our Timashare segment generates strong operating cash
flow, year-to-year cash flow varies based on the timing of both cash
outlays for the acquisition and development of new resorts and
cash received from purchaser financing. We include timeshare
reportable sales we finance in cash from operations when we collect

cash payments or the notes are sold for cash. The following table
shows the net operating activity from our Timeshare segment
{which does not include the portion of income from continuing oper-
ations from our Timeshare segment):

{$ in millions) | 2007 | 2008 2005
Timeshare segment development

(in excess of) less than cost of sales ¢ $ (55), $ (83) $ 40
New Timeshare segment mortgages, ‘

net of collections | (559)| (537) (441)
Note repurchases (30): (55} {23)

Financially reportable sales (in excess of) | !
less than closed sales (16) 81 (57)

Note sale gains (81) 77 (69)
Note sale proceeds 515 508 399

Collection on retained interests in notes
sold and servicing fees

Cther cash (outflows) inflows

106 96 g0
(35) ] (17) 26

Net cash outflows from Timeshare
segment activity

$(155) | $(104) $ (35)

Our ability to seli Timeshare segment notes is dependent upon
continued liquidity within the asset-backed and broader structured
credit markets, While the recent dislocation in the capital markets
has resulted in a general reduction in liquidity for new asset-backed
issuances, we believe that demand remains sufficient for our contin-
ued sale of Timeshare segment notes, albeit at somewhat less
favorable terms. If the liquidity of the markets decreases further, or
the underlying quality of any future Timeshare segment notes we
originate were to deteriorate, we might have increased difficulty or
be unable to consummate such sales, although we do not expect
such deterioration.

Investing Activities Cash Flows

Capital Expenditures and Other Investments. Capital expendi-
tures of $671 milion in 2007, $529 million in 2008, and $780 million
in 2005 included expenditures related to the development and con-
struction of new hotels and acquisitions of hotel properties, as well
as improvements to existing properties and systems initiatives.
Timeshare segment development expenditures, which are included
in “Cash from Qperations,” as noted in that section’s narative, are
not reflected in these numbers. Over time, we have sold lodging
properties under development subject to long-term management
agreements. The abillity of third-party purchasers to raise the neces-
sary deht and equity capital depends in part on the perceived risks
inherent in the lodging industry and other constraints inherent in the
capital markets as a whole. Although we expect to continue to con-
summate such real estate sales, if we were unable to do so, our lig-
uidity could decrease and we could have increased exposure to the
operating risks of owning real estate. We monitor the status of the
capital markets and regularly evaluate the potential impact on our
business operations of changes in capital market conditions. We
also expect to continue to make other investments in connection
with adding units to our ledging business. These investments
include loans and minority equity investments.

Fluctuations in the values of hotel real estate generally have little
impact on the overall resuits of our Lodging segments because: (1)
we own less than 1 percent of the total number of hotels that we
operate or franchise; (2) management and franchise fees are gener-
ally based upon hotal revenues and profits rather than current hotel
property values; and (3} our management agreements generally do
not terminate upon hotel sale.
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At the end of 2007, we were party to a venture that developed and
marketed fractional ownership and residential interests. Subsequent to
year-end 2007, we purchased our partner's interest in the joint ven-
ture. Concurrent with this transaction, we purchased additional land
from our partner as well, Cash consideration for this transaction
totaled $37 miiicn and we acquired assets and liabilities totaling $74
million and $37 milion, respectively, on the date of purchase,

Dispositions. Property and asset salas generated cash pro-
ceeds of $745 million in 2007, $798 million in 2006, and $298 mil-
lion in 2005. In 2007, we closed on the sales of 13 properties and
five joint venture investments. Cash proceeds of $30 million for a
parcel of land sold in 2007 are not reflected in the $745 million as
the proceeds were initially recorded as a deposit because of a con-
tingency. Accordingly, these proceeds impacted the “Other investing
activities” section of our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
rather than “Dispositions.™

Loan Activity. We have made loans to owners of hotels that we
operate or franchise, typically to facilitate the development of a new
hotel. Based on historical experience, over time we expect these
owners to repay the loans in accordance with the loan agreements,
or earlier as the hotels mature and capital markets permit. Loan col-
lections and sales, net of advances during 2007, amounted to $75
million. Lodging senior loans outstanding totaled $7 milion {which
included a current portion of $4 milion) at year-end 2007 and $9
million {which included a cument portion of $1 million) at year-end
2006. Lodging mezzanine and other loans totaled $206 million
(which included a current portion of $18 million) at year-end 2007
and $268 million (which included a current portion of $32 million) at
year-end 2008. In 2007 our notes receivable balance associated
with Lodging senior loans and Lodging mezzanine and other loans,
declined by $64 million and primarily reflects the repayment or sale
of several loans and the reserve against an underperforming loan.

Equity and Cost Method Investments. Cash outflows of $40
million in 2007 associated with equity and cost method investments
primarily reflects our investments in two joint ventures. Cash out-
flows of $85 million in 2008 associated with equity and cost method
investments primarily reflects our investments in three joint ventures.
Cash outflows of $216 million in 2005 associated with equity and
cost method investments primarily reflects our establishment in
2005 of a 50/50 joint venture with Whitbread PLC (“Whitbread”). For
additional information regarding Whitbread see Footnote No. 10,
“Marriott and Whitbread Joint Venture” in our 2006 Form 10-K.

Cash from Financing Activities
Debt. Debt increased by $1,132 million in 2007, from $1,833 million
to $2,965 miillion at year-end 2007, due to the issuance of $346
million (book valug at issuance) of Series | Senior Notes (described
more fully below), the issuance of $397 million (book value at
issuance) of Series J Senior Notes {described maore fully below), a
net increase in commercial paper outstanding of $270 million and
other debt increases of $119 million, Debt increased by $96 million
in 20086, from $1,737 million to $1.833 million at year-end 20086,
due to the issuance of $349 million (book value at issuance) of
Series H Senior Notes, partially offset by a net reduction in com-
mercial paper outstanding of $184 million, and other debt
decreases of $69 million.

In 2007, we issued $350 million of aggregate principal amount
of 6,375 percent Series | Senior Notes due 2017. The offaring of
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the notes closed on June 25, 2007. We received net proceeds
before expenses of approximately $346 million from this offering,
after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated expenses
of the offering. We used these proceeds for general corporate pur-
poses, including the repayment of commercial paper barrowings.
Interest on these notes will be paid on June 15 and December 15
of each year, and commenced on December 15, 2007. The notes
will mature on June 15, 2017, and are redeemable, in whols or in
part, at any time and from time to time under the terms provided in
the form of note.

Also in 2007, we issued $400 milion of aggregate principal
amount of 5.625 percent Series J Senior Notes dus 2013. The
offering of the notes closed on October 19, 2007, We received net
proceeds before expenses of approximatety $396 million from this
offering, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated
expenses of the offering. We used these proceeds for general cor-
porate purposes, including working capital, acquisitions, stock
repurchases and the repayment of commercial paper borrowings.
Interest on these notes will be paid on February 15 and August 15
of each year, and commenced on February 15, 2008. The notes will
mature on February 15, 2013, and are redeemable, in whole or in
part, at any time and from time to time under the terms provided in
the form of note.

Both the Series | Senior Notes and the Series J Senior Notes
ware issued under an indenture with The Bank of New York, succes-
sor to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. (formerly known as The Chase
Manhattan Bank}, as trustee, dated as of November 18, 1998,

Qur financial objectivas include diversifying our financing
sources, optimizing the mix and maturity of our long-term debt and
reducing our working capital. At year-end 2007, our long-term debt
had an average interest rate of 6.0 percent and an average maturity
of approximately 5.9 years. The ratio of fixed-rate long-term debt to
tota! jong-term debt was 0.8 to 1.0 at year-end 2007. At the end of
2007, we had long-term public debt ratings of BBB from Standard
and Peor's and Baa2 from Moody's.

Subsequent to year-end 2007, on January 15, 2008, we made a
%94 million cash payment of principal and interest to retire, at matu-
rity, all of our outstanding Series E Senior Notes.

Share Repurchases. We purchased 41.0 million shares of our
Class A Common Stock in 2007 at an average price of $43.32
per share, 41.5 million shares of our Class A Common Stock in
2006 at an average price of $38.13
per share, and 51.4 milion shares
of our Class A Common Stock in
2005 at an average price of $32.12
per share. We purchase shares in
the open market and in privately
negotiated transactions, As of
year-end 2007, 33.2 million shares
remained available for repurchase
under authorizations from our
Board of Directors.

The adjacent graph shows our
diluted weighted average shares
count at year-end for each of the
last five fiscal years.

Dividends. In April 2007, our Board of Directors increased the
quarterly cash dividend by 2 percent to $0.0750 per share.
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Contractual Obligations and Off Balance

Sheet Arrangements

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of
year-end 2007:

Payments Due by Period

Less
Than 1-3 35 After
Gontractual Obligations Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
% in millions)
Debt $3,855 $300 $405 $596 $2,554
Capital lsase obligations " 12 1 2 2 7
Operating leases where we
are the primary obligor:
Recourse 1,394 121 256 219 798
Non-recourse 43¢ 21 30 30 358
Operating leases where we
are secondarily liable 166 30 60 43 33
Cther long-term liabilities 110 3 14 5 88

Total contractual obligations $5,976 $476 $767 $895 $3,838

(1) Includes principal as wel as interest payments.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of year-end
2007 was $132 milion and is not reflected in the Contractual
Obligations table. As a large taxpayer, we are under continual audit
by the Internal Revenue Service and other taxing authorities on sev-
eral open tax positions, and it is possible that the amount of the lia-
bility for unrecognized tax benefits could ¢hange during the next
52-week period. While it is possible that one or more of these exam-
inations may be resolved in the next year, it is not anticipated that a
significant impact to the unrecognized tax benefit balance will oceur.
See Footnote No. 3, “Income Taxes,” for additional information.

The following table summarizes our commitments as of year-
end 2007:

Amount of Commitment
Expiration Per Period

Other Total Less

Commercial Amounts Than 1-3 3-5 After
Commitments Committed 1 Year Years Years 5 Years
(% in millions)

Total guarantees where we
are the primary obligor $315 $21 $ 89 $ 49 $156

Total guaraniees where we
are secondarily liable 322 46 g1 112 73

Total other commercial

commitments $637 $67 $180 $161 3229

Our guarantees where we are the primary obligor of $315 million
listed in the preceding table include $41 million of operating profit
guarantees that will not be in effect until the underlying properties
open and we begin to operate the properties.

The guaraniees where we arg secondarily liable of $322 million in
the preceding table include $245 million of guarantees that expire in
the years 2011 through 2013, related to Senior Living Services lease
obligations and lifecare bonds for which we are secondarily liable.
Sunrise Senior Living, Inc. (“Sunrise”) is the primary obligor of the
leases and a portion of the lifecare bonds, and CNL Retirement
Properties, Inc, ("CNL"}, which subsequently merged with Health
Cars Property Investors, Inc., is the primary obligor of the remainder
of the lifecare bonds. Prior to our sale of the Senior Living Services
business in 2003, these preexisting guarantees were guarantees by

us of cbligations of consolidated Senior Living Services subsidiaries.
Sunrise and CNL indemnified us for any guarantee fundings we may
be called on to make in connection with these lease obfigations and
lifecare bonds. We do not expect to fund under the guarantees.

The guarantees in the preceding tabte for which we are second-
arily fiabe include lease obligations for which we became secondarily
liable when we acquired the Renaissance Hotel Group N.V. in 1897,
consisting of annual rent payments of approximately $7 million and
total remaining rent payments through the initial term of approxi-
mately $77 milion. Most of these obligations expire at the end of
the 2023 calendar year. CTF has made available €35 million in cash
collateral in the event that we are required to fund under such guar-
antees {approximately €7 million [$11 million) remained at year-end
2007). As CTF obtains releases from the landiords and these hotels
exit the system, our contingent lability exposure of approximately
$77 million will decline. Since the time we assumed these guaran-
tees, we have not funded any amounts and we do not expect to
fund any amounts under these guarantees in the future.

Furthermore, in addition to the guarantees noted in the preced-
ing table, we have provided a project completion guarantee o a
lender for a project with an estimated aggregate total cost of $586
million. Payments for cost overruns for this project will be satisfied
by the joint venture via contributions from the partners, and we are
liable on a several basis with our partners in an amount equal to our
pro rata ownership in the joint venture, which is 34 percent. We do
not expect to fund under this guarantee. We have also provided a
project completion guarantee to ancther lender for a project with an
estimated aggregate total cost of $80 milion. Payments for cost
overruns for this project will ba satisfied by the joint venture via con-
tributions from the partners, and we are liable on a several basis
with our partners in an amount equal to our pro rata ownership in
the joint venture, which is 25 percent. We do not expect to fund
under this guarantee. The carrying value of the liabilities associated
with these two project completion guarantees is $7 million.

In addition to the guarantees described above, in conjunction
with financing obtainad for specific projects or properties owned by
joint ventures in which we are a party, we may provide industry
standard indemnifications to the lender for loss, liabllity or damage
occurming as a result of the actions of the other joint venture owner
or our own actions.

in addition to the guarantees noted previcusly, as of year-end
2007, we had extended approximately $4 million of loan commit-
ments to owners of lodging properties, under which we expect to
fund approximately $2 million within one year, We do not expect to
fund the remaining $2 million of commitments, which expire after
five years.

At year-end 2007, we atso have commitments to invest up to
$44 million of equity for minority interests in partnerships that plan
to purchase North American full-service and limited-service proper-
ties or purchase or develop hotel anchored mixed-use real estate
projects, which expire as follows: $14 milion in one to two years;
and $30 million in three to five years. As of year-end 2007, we also
have a commitment to invest up to $25 millicn in a joint venture of
which we have funded $12 milion and have $13 million remaining
that we expect to fund within one year. As of year-end 2007, we
also had a commitment 1o invest up to $29 million {€20 million) in a
joint venture in which we are an investor. We currently do not
expect 1o fund under this commitment.

At year-end 2007, we had $96 milion of letters of credit outstand-
ing on our behalf, the majority of which related to our self-insurance
programs. Surety bonds issued on our behalf as of year-end 2007
totaled $468 million, the majority of which were requested by federal,
state or local governments related to our lodging operations, includ-
ing our Timeshare segment and self-insurance programs.

Marriott Intemational, Inc. 2007 39




o

In the normal course of the hotel management business, we
enter into purchase commitments to manage the daily operating
‘ needs of hotels we manage for owners. Since we are reimbursed
from the cash flows of the hotels, these obligations have minimat
impact on our net income and cash flow.

| RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Equity Method Investments
We have equity method investments in entities that own properties
‘ for which we provide management and/or franchise services and

receive fees. In addition, in some cases we provide loans, preferred
equity or guarantees to these entities. Our ownership interest in
these equity method investments generally varies from 10 to 50
percent. The amount of consolidated retained earnings that repre-
sents undistributed earnings attributable to our equity investments
totaled $9 million at year-end 2007.

The following tables present financial data resulting from trans-
actions with these refated parties:

Income Statement Data

(% in mitiions) 2007 | 2006 2005
Base management fees $ 56 % $ 82 $ 83
Franchise fees 11 2 2
Incentive management fees 26 22 14
Cost reimbursements 510 649 936
Owned, leased, corporate housing,

and other revenue - - 18

Total revenue $593 l $735  $1054
General, administrative, and other $ @ 3 (1) % (19
Reimbursed costs | (510} (649) (836)
Gains and other income 25 28 54
Interest expense {1) {1) -
Interest income 4 4 31
(Provision for) reversal of provision for

loan losses (12) 1 —
Equity in eamings 15 3 36

Balance Sheet Data

At Year-| At Year-

End End

(3 in millions} 2007 2006
Current assets-accounts and

notes receivable $ 42} 3 76
Deterred development 2 -
Contract acquisition cosis 33 34
Equity and cost method investments 316 377
Loans to equity method investees 21 27
Long-term deferred tax asset, net 1 4
Current liabilities:

Other payables and accruals 2} (2)
Other long-term liabilities (16) (13)
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) reguires man-
agement to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts and refated disclosures. Management considers an
accounting estimate to be critical if:

® it requires assumptions o be made that were uncertain at
the time the estimate was made; and

= changes in the estimate, or different estimates that could
have been selected, could have a material effect on our
consolidated results of operations or financial condition.

Management has discussed the development and selaction of
its critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors, and the Audit Committee has reviewed the dis-
closure presented below relating to them.

Marriott Rewards

Marrictt Rewards is our frequent guest loyalty program. Marriott
Rewards members earn points based on their monetary spending
at cur lodging operations, purchases of timeshare interval, fractional
ownership, and residential products and, to a lesser degres, through
participation in affiliated partners’ programs, such as those offered
by car rental and credit card companies, Points, which we track on
members’ behalf, can be redeemed for stays at most of our lodging
operations, airiine tickets, airine frequent flyer program miiles, rental
cars, and a variety of other awards; however, points cannot be
redeemed for cash. We provide Marriott Rewards as a marketing
program to participating properties. We charge the cost of operating
the program, including the estimated cost of award redemption, to
properties based on members’ qualifying expenditures.

We defer revenue received from managed, franchised, and
Marrigtt-owned/leased hotels and program partners equal to the
fair value of our future redemption obligation. We determing the fair
value of the future redemption obligation based on statistical formu-
tas that project timing of future point redemption based on historical
levels, including an estimate of the “breakage” for points that will
never be redeemed, and an estimate of the points that will eventu-
ally be redeemed. These judgment factors determine the required
liability for outstanding points.

Our management and franchise agreements require that we be
reimbursed currently for the costs of operating the program, includ-
ing marketing, promotion, communication with, and performing
member services for the Mamiott Rewards members. Due to the
requirement that properties reimburse us for program operating
costs as incurred, we receive and recognize the balance of the rev-
enue from properties in connection with the Marrictt Rewards pro-
gram at the time such costs are incurred and expensed. We
recognize the compenent of revenue from program partners that
corresponds to program maintenance services over the expected life
of the points awarded. Upon the redemption of points, we recognize
as revenue the amounts previously deferred and recognize the corre-
sponding expense refating to the costs of the awards redeemed.

Valuation of Goodwill

We evaluate the fair value of goodwill to assess potential impair-
ments on an annual basis, or during the year if an event or other
circumstance indicates that we may not be able to recover the car-
rying amount of the asset. We evaluate the fair value of goodwill at
the reporting unit level and make that determination based upon
future cash flow projections that assume certain growih projections
which may or may not ocour. We record an impairment loss for
goedwill when the carrying value of the intangible asset is less than
its estimated fair value.




Loan Loss Reserves

Lodging Senior Loans and Lodging Mezzanine and

Other Loans

We measure loan impairment based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's original effective
interest rate or the estimated fair value of the collateral. For impaired
loans, we establish a specific impairment resarve for the difference
between the recorded investment in the locan and the present value
of the expected future cash flows, that assumes certain growth pro-
jections which may or may not occur, or the estimated fair value of
the collateral. We apply our loan impairment policy individually to all
loans in the portfolio and do not aggregate ioans for the purpose of
applying such pelicy. Where we determine that a loan is impaired,
we recognize interest incoma on a cash basis. At year-end 2007,
our recorded investment in impaired loans was $112 million. We
had a $92 million allowance for credit losses, leaving $20 million

of our investment in impaired {oans for which there was no related
allowance for credit losses. At year-end 2006, our recorded invest-
ment in impaired loans was $92 million. We had a $70 million
allowance for credit losses, leaving $22 millior: of our investment in
impaired [oans for which there was no refated allowance for credit
{osses. During 2007 and 20086, our average investment in impaired
loans totated $102 million and $138 million, respectively.

Loans to Timeshare Owners

In accordance with the adoption of SOP 04-2 in 2006, we record
an estimate of expected uncellectibility on notes receivable that we
raceive from timeshare purchasers as a raduction of revenue at

the time we recognize profit on a timashare sale. We assess uncol-
lectibility based on pools of receivables, because we hold large
numbers of homogeneous timeshare notes receivable. We estimate
unccliectibles based on historical activity for similar timeshare notes
receivable over the past three years. We use a technique referred to
as static pool analysis, which tracks uncollectibles for each vear's
sales over the life of those notes. At year-end 2007 and year-end
2006, our allowance for credit losses associated with “Loans to
timeshare owners” totaled $19 million and $23 million, respectively.

Legal Contingencies

We are subject to various legal proceedings and claims, the out-
comes of which are subject to significant uncertainty. We record
an accrual for loss contingancies when a loss is probable and the
amount of the toss can be reasonably estimated. We review these
accruals each reporting pericd and make revisions based on
changes in facts and circumstances.

Income Taxes
We record the current year amounts payable or refundable, as waell
as the consequences of events that give rise to deferred tax assets
and liabilities based on differences in how those events are treated
for tax purposes. We base our estimate of deferred tax assets and
liabilities on current tax laws and rates and, in certain cases, busi-
ness plans and other expectations about future outcomes.
Changss In existing laws and rates and their related interpreta-
tions, and future business results may affect the amount of deferred
tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets over time. Our
accounting for deferred tax consequences represents manage-
ment’s best estimate of future events that can be appropriately
reflected in the accounting estimates.

OTHER MATTERS

Inflation
Inflation has been moderate in recent years and has not had a sig-
nificant impact on our businesses.

QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT
MARKET RISK

We are exposed 1o market risk from changes in interest rates, for-
eign exchange rates, and debt and equity prices, and with respect
to our synthetic fue! business, changes in oil prices. We manage
our exposure to these risks by monitoring available financing alter-
natives, through development and application of credit granting
policles and by entering into derivative arrangements. Wa do not
foresee any significant changes in either our exposure to fluctua-
tions in interest rates or foreign exchange rates or how such expo-
sure is managed in the future.

We are exposed 1o interast rate risk on our floating-rate notes
receivable, our residual interests retained in connection with the sale
of Timeshare segment notes receivable and the fair value of our
fixed-rata notes receivable. Changes in interest rates also impact
our floating-rate long-term debt and the fair value of our fixed-rate
long-term debt.

We are also subject to risk from changes in debt and equity
prices from our investments in debt securities and commoen stock,
which have a carrying valua of $55 million at year-end 2007, which
we account for as available-for-sale securities under FAS No. 115,
“Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities.”

We use derivative instruments as part of our overall strategy to
manage our exposure to market risks associated with fluctuations in
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. As a matter of
policy, we do not use derivatives for trading or speculative purposes.

At year-end 2007, we were party to the following derivative
instruments:

® An interest rate swap agreement under which we receive a
floating rate of interest and pay a fixed rate of interest. The
swap modifies our interast rate exposure by effectively con-
verting a note receivable with a fixed rate to a floating rate.
The aggregate notional amount of the swap was $92 million
and it matures in 2010.

s Four outstanding interest rate swap agreements to manage
interest rate risk assoclated with the residual interests we
retain in conjunction with our timeshare note sales.
Historically, we have been required by purchasers and/or
rating agencies to utilize inierest rate swaps to protect the
excess spread within our sold-note pocls. The aggregate
notional amount of the swaps was $157 million, and they
expire through 2022,

s Option contracts to hedge the potential volatility of earnings
and cash flows associated with variations in foreign
exchange rates during 2008. The aggregate dollar equivalent
of the notional amounts of the contracts was approximately
$86 million, and they expire throughout 2008.

a  Forward contracts to hedge forecasted transactions for con-
tracts denominated in foreign currencies. The aggregate dol-
lar equivalent of the notional amounts was approximately $58
million, and they expire in 2008 and 2010,

» Forward foreign exchange contracts to manage the foreign
currency exposure related to certain monetary assets. The
aggregate dollar equivalent of the notional amounts of the
forward contracts was $133 million at year-end 2007.

= Qil price hedges to manage the volatility associated with oil
prices and the uncertainty surrounding the potential phase-
out of tax credits in 2007. The hedges cover 18 million bar-
rels of oil and expired on December 31, 2007.
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The following table sets forth the scheduled maturities and the total fair value of our derivatives and other financial instruments as of year-

end 2007:
Maturities by Period
Total Total
Carrying Fair
(% in miflions) 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Amount Value
Assets — Maturities represent expected principal receipts,
fair values represent assets.
Timeshare segment notes receivable $ 68 § 47 $42 $38 $ 38 $ 243 § 476 § 476
Average interest rate 12.70%
Fixed-rate notes receivable $317 % 4 §$88 - & — S 25 § 134 % 138
Average interest rate 12.05%
Floating-rate notes receivable $ 4 § - $4 S$20 $19 $ 32 % 9 § 79
Average interest rate 7.04%
Residual interests $8 $5 $36 $24 $16 B 26 $ 238 § 238
Average interest rate 9.02%
Liabilities — Maturities represent expected principal
payments, fair values reprasent liabilities,
Fixed-rate debt $137)  $(113)  $47y  $14)  $(354) $(1.639)  $(2.304) 3(2,338)
Average interest rate 6.12%
Floating-rate debt $(34 §& - $ - - $ - § 585 % 619 $ (619
Average interest rate 5.53%
NOTE: We classify commercial paper as long-term
debt based on our ability and intent o refinance
it on a long-term basis.
Derivatives — Maturities represent notional amounts,
fair values represent assets (liabilities).
Interest Rate Swaps:
Fixed to variable $ - $ - $93 $-—- %238 $ 123 $ (M &
Average pay rate 4.02%
Average receive rate 3.64%
Variable to fixed $ - $- $- - $ - & 38 $ - & -
Average pay rate 5.23%
Average receive rate 4.1 %
Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts:
Fixed (EUR) to Fixed (USD) $69 % - $ - $ - $ - $5 - $8 - 3 -
Average exchange rate 1.47
Fixed (GBP) to Fixed (USD) $ 46 5 - & - $ - $ - 3 - 3 - 3 -
Average exchange rate 2.00
Fixed (HKD) to Fixed (USD) $ 38 §$ — $— $— $ - 5 - 5 - 5 -
Average Exchange Rate 0.13
Fixed (MXN) to Fixed (USD) $43 $- - $- & - & - & - & -
Average Exchange Rate 0.09
Fixed (JPY) to Fixed (USD) $) 3 $- - - $ - % - & - 8 -
Average Exchange Rate 0.01
Fixed (CAD) to Fixed (USD) $43 $ - $- - & - & — % - & -
Average Exchange Rate w2
Fixed (THB) to Fixed {(USD) $ 3 % - $25 § - 3 — $8 - ¥ - 5 -
Average Exchange Rate 0.03
Oil Price Hedges:
Contract Amount $14 $ - $- $- & - & - & 4 § 4

(Contract volume is 19 mitlion barrels)
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Consolidated Statements of income

Fiscal Years 2007, 2006, and 2005 | 2007 2006 2005

3 in millions, except per share amounts)

REVENUES
Base management fees $ 620 $ 553 $ 497
Franchise fees 439 390 329
Incentive management fees " 369 281 201
Owned, leased, corporate housing, and other revenus ™ 1,240 1,119 944
Timeshare sales and services (including note sale gains of
$81 million for 2007 and $77 million for 2006) 1,747 1,577 1,487
Cost reimbursements 8,575 8,075 7,671
| 12,900 11,995 11,128
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Owned, leased, and corporate housing-direct 1,062 936 778
Timeshare-direct 1,397 1,220 1,228
Reimbursed costs™ 8,575 8,075 7,871
General, administrative, and other! 768 | 677 753
11,802 | 10,908 10,430
OPERATING INCOME 1,188 ! 1,087 699
Gains and other incoma® 97 | 74 149
interest expensa ™ {184) (124 (108)
Interest income 38 49 79
(Provision for) reversal of provision for loan losses ™ (17 3 (28)
Equity in earnings ™ 15 3 36
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE
INCOME TAXES AND MINORITY INTEREST 1,137 1,092 829
Provision for income taxes (441) (380) (284)
Minority interest 1 - {2)
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 697 712 543
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax - {109) —
Discontinued operations, net of tax I {1} 5 126
NET INCOME { $ 696 $ 608 $ 669
EARNINGS PER SHARE-Basic '
Earnings from continuing operations $ 185 $ 178 $ 1.26
L osses from cumulative effect of accounting change - 0.27) -
Earnings from discontinued operations - | oo 0.29
Earnings per share $ 1.85 | $ 150 $ 1.55
EARNINGS PER SHARE-Diluted
Earnings from continuing operations $ 175 $ 165 $ 1.7
Losses from cumutative effect of accounting change - (0.29) -
Earnings from discontinued operations - 0.01 0.28
Earnings per share $ 175 $ 144 $ 145
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE | $0.2875 $0.2400 $0.2000

(1) See Footnote No. 21, “Relatad Party Transactions,” of the Notes to Consofidated Financial Statements for disciosure of refated party amounts.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Fiscal Year-End 2007 and 2006 2007 2008
(% in millions)
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and equivalents $ a3 $ 191
Accounts and notes receivable® 1,148 1,060
Inventory 1,557 1,186
Current deferred taxes, net 185 200
Assets held for sale 123 411
Discontinued operations 53 a1
Other 174 180
3,672 3,319
Property and equipment 1,329 1,233
Intangible assets
Goodwill 921 921
Contract acquisition costs® 635 575
1,556 1,496
Equity and cost method investments® 343 402
Notes receivable
Loans to equity method investees ™ 21 27
Loans to timeshare owners 408 316
Other notes receivable 1M 217
600 560
Other long-term receivables 176 178
Deferrad taxes, net™ 678 665
Other 668 | 735
$8,942 | $ 8,588
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY i
Current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt $ 175 $ 15
Accounts payable" 789 658
Accrued payroll and benefits 642 614
Liability for guest loyalty program 421 384
Liabilities of assets held for sale - 102
Timeshare segment deferred revenue 101 178
Liabilities refated to discontinued operations 13 55
Other payables and accruals ™ 735 516
2,876 2,522
Long-term debt 2,790 1,818
Liability for guest loyalty program o971 E 847
Self-insurance reserves 182 , 184
Other long-term liabilities ™ 694 599
Shareholders’ equity
Class A Common Stock 5 5
Additional paid-in-capital 3,531 3,617
Retained earnings 3,332 2,860
Treasury stock, at cost {5,490) (3,908}
Accumulated other comprehensive income 51 44
{1,429 | 2,618
| $8,942 | $ 8,588

(1) See Footnota No. 21, “Related Party Transactions,” of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for disclosure of related party amounts.
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Fiscal Years 2007, 20086, and 2005 [ 2007 2006 2005
(% in miflions)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 696 $ 808 $ 669
Adjustments to reconcile to cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciaticn and amortization 197 188 184
Minority interest (3) {7 {44)
Income taxes {150) (76) (86)
Timeshare activity, net {155) (104} (35}
Liability for guest loyalty program 122 113 125
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle - 109 —
Working capital changes and other 71 139 27
Net cash provided by operating activities 778 970 840
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures 671) (529) (780)
Dispositions 745 798 298
Loan advances (31) (59} (56)
Loan collections and sales | 106 121 706
Equity and cost methed investments ! (40} (95) {216)
Purchase of available-for-sale securities - (27) (15)
Sale of available-for-sale securities 43 - -
Other 27m {90) (67)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 125 119 (130)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Commaercial paper, net 258 (188} 499
Issuance of long-term debt 820 352 356
Repayment of long-term debt (153) (17 (523)
Debt exchange consideration, net - - (29
Issuance of Class A Common Stock 203 378 125
Dividends paid (105) 93) {84)
Purchase of treasury stock (1,757) (1,546) (1,844)
Other {28} 15 26
Net cash used in financing activities (762) (1,099) (1,274)
INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 141 (10 {564)
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 1 201 785
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS, end of year $ 332 $ 191 $ 20

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Staterments

Marriott International, Inc. 2007 45




Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Fiscal Years 2007, 2006, and 2005 2007 2006 2005
(¥ in millions)}
Net income $696 $608 $669
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 35 28 (25}
Other derivative instrument adjustments @ - 2)
Unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities 8 27 7
Reclassification of gains upon sale of available-for-sale securities (18) - —
Total other comprehensive income {oss} 7 55 20
Comprehensive income $703 $663 $649
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
. y .
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity
Fiscal Years 2007, 2008, and 2005
(in millions, except per share amounts) Accumulated
Common Class A Additional Treasury Other
Shares Common Paid-in Deferred Retained Stock, at Comprehensive
Qutstanding Stock Capital Compensation Earnings Cost Income (Loss)
451.6 Balance at fiscal year-end 2004 85 $3,423 $(108) $1,951 $(1,197) $ 9
- Net income - - — 669 - —
- Dividends ($0.2000 per sharg) - - - (87} - —
11.6 Employee stock plan issuance and cther - 141 (29) (33} 180 (20)
(51.4) Purchase of treasury stock — — — — {1,650) —
411.8 Balance at fiscal year-end 2005 5 3,562 (137 2,500 (2,667) (1)
- Net income - - — 808 — -
— Dividends (30.2400 per share) — — — {96) - —
19.2 Employee stock plan issuance and other — 192 - (152) 343 55
- Impact of adoption of FAS No. 123(R) - (137) 137 - - -
{41.5) Purchase of treasury stock - - — — (1,584) —
389.5 Balance at fiscal year-end 20068 5 3,617 - 2,860 (3,908) 44
— Impact of adoption of FAS No. 156 - — - 1 — -
- Impact of adoption of FIN 48 — {121) — (34) - —
389.5 Opening balance fiscat year 2007 5 3,496 - 2,827 {3,908) 44
- Net income — - — 696 — —
- Dividends ($0.2875 per share) — - — {107 — —
8.6 Employee stock plan issuance and other - 35 - (B84) 195 7
41.0 Purchase of treasury stock — — — - (1,777) -
357.1 Balance at fiscal year-end 2007 $5 $3,531 $ — $3,332  $(5,490) %51

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

.]] SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements present the results of opera-
tions, financial position, and cash flaws of Marriott International, Inc.
{together with its subsidiaries, “we," “us,” or the "Company").

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles {“GAAP") requires manage-
ment to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial state-
ments, the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting periods, and the disclosures of contingent tabilities.
Accordingly, uttimate results could differ frorm those estimates.

As a result of the discontinuation of our synthetic fuel business
on November 3, 2007, the balances and activities of the synthetic
fuel reportable segment have been segregated and reported as
discontinued operations for all pericds presented.

At the beginning of our 2006 fiscal year, we adopted Statement
of Position 04-2, “Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing
Transactions,” (*SOP 04-2") as issued by the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The American Resort Development
Association, a timeshare trade association of which we are a mem-
ber and the Staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC") had communications regarding SOP 04-2 and the income
statement presentation of timeshare note securitization gains. As a
result of those communications, we now classify Timeshare segment
note securitization gains within our “Timeshare sales and services”
revenue caption. Accordingly, Timeshare sales and services revenue
reflects Timeshare segment note securitization gains of $81 million
and $77 million for 2007 and 20086, respectively. Gains from the
sale of imeshare notes raceivable totaling $69 milion for 2005,
are classified within the “Gains and other income” caption in cur
Consolidated Statements of Income.

We have reclassified certain prior year amounts to conform to
our 2007 presentation. In our opinion, the accompanying censocli-
dated financial statements reflect all normal and recurring adjust-
ments necessary to present fairly our financial position at fiscal
year-end 2007 and fiscal year-end 2006 and the results of our oper-
ations and cash flows for fiscal years 2007, 2006, and 2005. We
have eliminated all material intercompany transactions and balances
between entities consolidated in these financial statements.

Fiscal Year

Our fiscal year ends on the Friday nearest to December 31. Unless
otherwise specified, each referance to a particular year means the
fiscal year ended on the date shown in the foliowing table, rather
than the corresponding calendar year:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Year Year-end Date Year Year-end Date

2007  December 28, 2007 2003 January 2, 2004
2006 December 29, 2006 2002 January 3, 2003
2005 December 30, 2005 2001 December 28, 2001
2004 December 31, 2004 2000  December 29, 2000

Revenue Recognition

Our revenues include: (1) base management and incentive manage-
ment fees; (2) franchise fees; (3) revenues from lodging properties
and other businesses owned or leased by us; (4) timeshare sales

and services, which also includes resort rental revenus, interast
income associated with our “Loans to timeshare owners,” and for
2006 and 2007, Timeshare segment note securitization gains, as
noted in the “Basis of Presentation” caption eariier; and {(5) cost
reimbursements. Management fees comprise a base fee, which is a
percentage of the revenues of hotels, and an incentive fee, which is
generally based on hotel profitability. Franchise fees comprise initial
application fees and continuing royalties generated from our fran-
chise programs, which permit the hotel owners and cperators tc
use certain of our brand names. Cost reimbursements include
direct and indirect costs that are reimbursed t¢ us by ledging prop-
erties that we manage or franchise.

Base Management and Incentive Management Fees: Weo
recognize base management fees as revenue when earned in
accordance with the contract. In interim pericds and at year-end,
we recognize incentive management fees that would be due as if
the contract were to terminate at that date, exclusive of any termi-
nation fees payable or receivable Dy us.

Franchise Fee Revenue: We recognize franchise fees as revenue
in each accounting period as fees are earned from the franchisee.

Owned and Leased Units: We recognize room sales and rev-
enues from other guest services for our owned and leased units
when rooms are occupied and services have been rendered.

Timeshare and Fractional Intervals and Condominiums: \We
recognize sales when: {1) we have received a minimum of 10 per-
cent of the purchase price; (2) the purchaser's period to cancel for
a refund has expired; (3) we deem the receivables to be collectible;
and (4) we have attained certain minimum sales and construction
levels. We defer all revenue using the deposit method for sales that
do not meet all four of these criteria. For sales that do not qualify for
full revenue recognition as the project has progressed beyond the
preliminary stages but has not yet reached completion, all revenue
and profit are deferred and recognized in earnings using the per-
centage of completion method.

Timeshare Residential {Stand-Alone Structures): We recog-
nize sales under the full accrual method of accounting when we
receive our proceeds and transfer title at settlement.

Cost Reimbursements: We recognize cost réimbursements
from managed, franchised, and timeshare properties when we incur
the related reimbursable costs.

Other Revenue includes third-party licensing fees, other brand-
ing fees, land rental income, and other revenue.

Ground Leases

We are both the lessor and lessee of land under long-term operat-
ing leases, which include scheduled increases in minimum rents.
We recognize these scheduled rent increases on a straight-line
basis over the initial lease term.

Real Estate Sales

We account for the sales of real estate in accordance with Financial
Accounting Standards (“FAS"} No. 66, “Accounting for Sales of Real
Estate” (‘FAS No. B6"). We reduce gains on sales of real estate by
the maximum exposure to loss if we have continuing involvement
with the property and do not transfer substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership. In sales transactions where we retain a
management contract, the terms and conditions of the manage-
ment contract are generally comparable to the terms and conditions
of the management contracts obtained directly with third-party
owners in competitive bid processes.
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Profit Sharing Plan

We contribute to a profit sharing plan for the benefit of employees
meeting certain eligibility requirements and electing participation in
the plan. Contributions are determined based on a specified per-
centage of salary deferrals by participating employees. We recog-
nized compensation casts from profit sharing of $107 million in
2007, $86 miilion in 2008, and $69 million in 2005.

Self-Insurance Programs

We are self-insured for certain levels of property, liability, workers’
compensation and employee medical coverage. We accrue esti-
mated costs of these self-insurance programs at the present value
of projected setilements for known and incurred but not reported
claims. We use a discount rate of 4.7 percent to determine the
present value of the projected settlements, which we consider to be
reasonable given our history of settled claims, including payment
patterns and the fixed nature of the individual settlements.

We are subject to a variety of assessments related to our insur-
ance activities, including those by state guaranty funds and work-
ers' compensation second-injury funds. Our liabilities recorded for
assessments are reflected within the amounts shown in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets on the self-insurance reserves ling,
are not discounted, and totaled $5 milion for both year-end 2007
and year-end 2008. Our fiability of $5 million as of year-end 2007
for assessments is expected to be paid by the end of 2008.

Marriott Rewards

Marriott Rewards is our frequent guest Joyalty program. Marmioit
Rewards members eamn points based on their monetary spending at
our Jodging operations, purchases of timeshare interval, fractional
ownership, and residential preducts and, to a lesser degree, through
participation in affilated partners' programs, such as those offered
by airlines and credit card companies. Points, which we track on
members' behalf, can be redeemed for stays at most of our lodging
operations, airline tickets, aifine frequent flyer program miles, rental
cars, and a vartety of other awards; however, points cannot be
redeemed for cash. We provide Marriott Rewards as a marketing
program to participating properties. We charge the cost of operating
the program, including the estimated cost of award redemption, to
properties based on members’ qualifying expenditures.

We defer revenue received from managed, franchised, and
Marriott-owned/leased hotels and program partners equal to the
fair value of our future redemption obligation. We determine the fair
value of the future redemption obligation based on statistical formu-
las that project timing of future point redemption based on historical
levels, including an estimate of the “breakage” for points that will
never be redeemed, and an estimate of the points that will eventu-
ally be redeemed. These judgment factors determine the required
ligbility for outstanding points.

Our management and franchise agreements require that we be
reimbursed currently for the costs of operating the program, includ-
ing marketing, promotion, communication with, and performing
member services for the Marriott Rewards members. Due to the
requirement that hotels reimburse us for program operating costs
as incurred, we receive and recognize the balance of the revenue
from properties in connection with the Marriott Rewards program at
the time such costs are incurred and expensed. We racognize the
componenit of revenus from program partners that corresponds to
program maintenance services over the expected life of the points
awarded. Upan the redemption of points, we recognize as revenue
the amounts praviously deferred and recognize the coresponding
expense relating to the costs of the awards redeemed. Our liability
for the Marrictt Rewards program was $1,392 milion at year-end
2007 and $1,231 million at year-end 20086.

48 Marriott International, Inc. 2007

Guarantees

We record a liability for the fair vaiue of a guarantee on the date a
guarantee Is issued or modified. The offsetting entry depends on
the circumstances in which the guarantee was issued. Funding
uncler the guarantee reduces the recorded liability. When no funding
is forecasted, the liability is amortized into income on a straight-line
basis over the remaining term cf the guarantee.

Rebates and Allowances

We participate in various vendor rebate and allowance arrangements
as a manager of hotel properties. There are three types of programs
that are common in the hotel industry that are sometimes referred to
as “rebates” or “allowances,” including unrestricted rebates, market-
ing {restricted) rebates and sponsorships. The primary business pur-
pose of these arrangements is to secure favorable pricing for our
hetel owners for various products and services or enhance
resources for promotional campaigns co-sponsored by certain ven-
dors, More specifically, unrestricted rebates are funds returned to
the buyer, generally based upon volumes or quantities of goods pur-
chased. Marketing (restricted} allowances are funds allocated by
vendor agreements for certain marketing or other joint promotional
initiatives. Sponsorships are funds paid by vendors, generally used
by the vender {0 gain exposure at meetings and events, which are
accounted for as a reduction of the cost of the evant.

We account for rebates and allowances as adjustments of the
prices of the vendors' products and services. We show vendor
costs and the reimbursement of those costs as reimbursed costs
and cost reimbursements revenus, respectively; therefore, rebates
are reflected as a reduction of these line items.

Cash and Equivalents
We consider all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of
three months or less at date of purchase to be cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash

Restricted cash, totaling $153 milion and $117 milion at year-end
2007 and year-end 20086, respectively, is recorded in the “Other
long-tarm assets” line in the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets. Restricted cash primarily consists of deposits received on
timeshare interval, fractional ownership, and residential sales that
are held in escrow until the contract is closed.

Assets Held for Sale
We censider properties (other than Timeshare segment interval,
fractional ownership, and residential products, which we classify as
inventory) to be assets held for sale when all of the following criteria
are met:
& management commits to a plan to sell a property;
u it is unlikely that the disposal plan will be significantly modi-
fied or discontinued;
= the property is available for immediate sale in its present con-
dition;
= gctions required to complete the sale of the property have
been initiated;
s sale of the property is probable and we expect the com-
pleted sale will occur within one year; and
s the property is actively being marketed for sale at a price that
is reasonable given its current market value,
Upon designation as an asset held for sale, we record the
carrying value of each property at the lower of its carrying value
or its estimated fair value, less estimated costs to sefl, and we
cease depreciation.




Assets held for sale totaled $123 million at year-end 2007
and consisted of property and equipment. The $123 million total
reflected the following segment composition: North American Full-
Service-$17 million; North American Limited-Service-$17 million;
and Luxury-$89 million. There were no liabilities of assets held for
sale at year-end 2007,

Assets held for sale totaled $411 million at year-end 2006 and
consisted of property and equipment of $391 million, accounts
receivable of $10 milion, cash of $6 million, and other assets of $4
million. The $411 million total reflected the following segment com-
position: International Lodging-$295 million; Luxury Lodging-$73
million; and North American Full-Service Lodging-$43 million.
Liabilities of assets held for sale totaled $102 million at year-end
2006 and consisted of debt totaling $81 million, accounts payable
of $11 million, accrued payrolt and benefits of $8 million, and other
payables and accruals of $2 million.

In 2007 we reclassified the balances associated with one prop-
erty, in conformity with other “held and used” properties, as the
property no longer satisfied the criteria to be classified as “held for
sale.” In conjunction with thai reclassification, we recorded depreci-
ation expense of $4 million in 2007 that would have besn recog-
nized in 2006 and $4 million in late 2007 that would hava been
recognized earlier in 2007 had the asset been continuously classi-
fied as *held and used.”

Loan Loss Reserves

Lodging Senior Loans and Lodging Mezzanine

and Other Loans

We measure loan impairment based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s original effective
intergst rate or the estimated fair value of the collateral. For impaired
loans, we establish a specific impairment reserve for the difference
between the recorded investment in the loan and the present value
of the expected future cash flows or the estimated fair value of the
collateral. We apply our loan impairment policy individually to all
loans in the portfolio and do not aggregate loans for the purpose of
applying such policy. For loans that we have determinsd to be
impaired, we recognize interest income on a cash basis.

Loans to Timeshare Owners

We record an estimate of expected uncollectibility on notes receiv-
able that we receive from timeshare purchasers as a reduction of
revenue at the time we recognize profit on a timeshare sale. We
assass uncollectibility based on pools of receivables because we
hold large numbers of homogeneous timeshare notes receivable.
We estimate uncollectibles based on historical activity for similar
timeshare notes recsivable over the past thres years. We use a
technique referred to as static pool analysis, which tracks uncol-
lectibles for each year's sales over the life of those notes.

Valuation of Goodwill

We evaluate the fair value of goodwill to assess potential impairments
on an annual basis, or during the year if an event or other circumstance
indicates that we may not be able to recover the carrying amount of
the asset. We evaluate the fair value of goodwil at the reporting unit
leved and make that determination based upon future cash flow projec-
tions that assuma certain growth projections which may or may not
ocecur. Wa record an impairment loss for goodwill when the carmying
value of the intangible asset is less than its estimated fair value.

Investments

We consolidate entities that we control, We account for investments
in joint ventures using the egquity method of accounting when we
exercise significant influence over the venture. If we do not exercise
significant influence, we account for the investment using the cost

method of accounting. We account for investments in limited part-
nerships and limited liability companies using the equity method of
accounting when we own more than a minimal investment. Our
ownership interast in these equity method investments varies gener-
ally from 10 percent to 50 percent.

The fair value of our available-for-sale securities totaled $55 mil-
lion and $107 million at year-end 2007 and year-end 2006, respec-
tively. We included net unrealized holding gains on available-for-sale
securities of $9 million at year-end 2007 and $35 million at year-end
2006 in accumulated other comprehensive income. The amount of
net gains reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive
income as a result of the sale of available-for-sale securities totaled
$18 milion and zero for 2007 and 2006, respectively. We determined
the cost basis of the securities sold using specific identification.

Costs Incurred to Sell Real Estate Projects

We charge the majority of sales and marketing costs we incur to
sell imeshares to expense when incurred. Selling and marketing
costs capitalized were $6 milian at year-end 2007 and $16 million
at year-end 2006 and are included in the accompanying
Consolidated Batance Sheets in the “Other” caption within the
“Current assets” section. If a contract is canceled, we charge unre-
coverable direct selling and marketing costs to expense and racord
deposits forfeited as income.

Residual Interests

We periadically sell notes receivable originated by our Timeshare seg-
ment in connection with the sale of timeshare interval and fractional
products. We continue to service the notes and transfer ali proceeds
collected to special purpose entities. We retain servicing assets and
other interests in the notes and account for these assets and interests
as rasidual interests. The interests are limited to the present value of
cash available after paying financing expenses and program fees and
absorbing credit losses. Prior to the start of the 2007 fiscal year, we
measured servicing assets at the date of sale at their allocated previ-
ous carrying amount based on relative fair value, classified those
assets as held to maturity under the provisions of FAS No. 115,
*Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities”
(“FAS No. 115", and recorded those asssts at amortized cost. On
Decamber 30, 2006, the first day of fiscal year 2007, we adopted FAS
No. 1586, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets-an Amendment
of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 1407
(“FAS No. 1567). FAS No. 156 requires that all separatsly recognized
senvicing assets and liabilities be initially measured at fair value, if prac-
ticable. it alsc allows an entity to subsequently elect fair value meas-
urement for its servicing assets and liabilities. In conjunction with the
adoption of FAS No. 156, we elected to subsequently measure our
servicing assets using the fair value method. Under the fair value
method, we carry servicing assets on the balance sheet at fair valus
and report the changes in fair value, primarily due to changes in valua-
tion inputs and assumptions and to the collection or realization of
expected cash flows, in earnings in the period in which the change
occurs. For additional information regarding the adoption of FAS No.
158, see Footnote No. 11, “Asset Securitizations.”

We treat the residual interests, including servicing assets, as
“trading" securities under the provisions of FAS No. 115. At the
dates of sale and at the end of each reporting period, we estimate
the fair valus of the residual interests, including servicing assets,
using a discounted cash flow modsl. We report changas in the fair
values of these residual interests, including servicing assets, through
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

The rate of prepayment of loans serviced is the most significant esti-
mate involved in the measurement process. Estimates of prepayment
rates are based on management’s expectations of future prepayment
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rates, reflecting our histarical rate of loan repayments, industry trends,
and other considerations. Actual prepayment rates differ from those
projected by management due to changes in a variety of economic
factors, including prevaling interest rates and the availability of attema-
tive financing sources to borrowers. If actual prepayments of the loans
being serviced wera 1o occur more slowly than had been projected, the
camrying value of servicing assets could increase, and servicing income
would excead previously projected amounts. Accordingly, the senvicing
assets actually realized, could differ from the amounts initially recorded.

Derivative Instruments

We use derivative instruments as pant of our overall strategy to man-
age our exposure to market risks associated with fluctuations in
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. As a matter of
policy, we do not use derivatives for frading or speculative purposes.

We record all derivatives at fair value either as assets or liabili-
ties. We recognize, currently in earnings, changes in fair value of
derivatives not designated as hedging instruments and of deriva-
tives designated as fair value hedging instruments. We record
changes in the fair value of the hedged item in a fair value hedge as
an adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item and rec-
ognize the change in the fair value of the derivative in earnings in
the same income statement line item.

We record the effective portion of changes in fair value of deriva-
tives designated as cash flow hedging instruments as a component
of other comprehensive income and report the ineffective portion
currently in earnings. We reclassify amounts included in other com-
prehensive income into earnings in the same period during which
the hedged item aifects earnings.

Foreign Operations

The U.S. doftar is the functional currency of our consolidated and
unconsolidated entities operating in the United States. The functional
currency for our consolidated and unconsolidated entities operating
outside of the United States is generally the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity primarily generates and
expends cash, We translate the financial statements of consclidated
entities whosa functional currency is not the U.S. dollar into U.S. dol-
lars, and we do the same, as needed, for unconsolidated entities
whose functicnal currency is not the U.S. dollar. We translate assets
and liabiities at the exchange rate in effect as of the financial state-
ment date and translate income statement accounts using the
weighted average exchange rate for the period. We include translation
adustments from foreign exchange and the effect of exchange rate
changes on intercompany transactions of a long-term investment
nature as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. We report
gains and losses from foreign exchange rate changes related to inter-
company receivables and payables that are not of a long-term invest-
ment nature, as well as gains and losses from foreign currency
transactions, currently in operating costs and expenses, and those
amounted to a $2 million loss in 2007, a $6 milion gain in 2008, and a
35 million loss in 2005. Gains and other income for 2007 included $6
milion attributable to cumency translation adjustment gains, net of
losses, from the sale or complete or substantially complete équidation
of investments. There were no similar gains or losses in 2006 or 2006.

New Accounting Standards

FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes”

We adapted FASB Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty
in Inccme Taxes,” {“FIN 48" on December 30, 2006, the first day of
our 2007 fiscal year. FIN 48 is an interpretation of FASB Staterent
No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” which seeks to standardize
practices associated with certain aspects of measurement and
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recognition in accounting for income taxes. FIN 48 prescrbes a
recognition threshold and measurement requirement for the financial
statement recognition of a tax position taken or expected to be
taken on a tax return. Additionally, FiN 48 provides guidance cn
de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in
interim periods, disclosure, and transition. Under FIN 48, an entity
may only recognize or continue to recognize tax positions that meet
a “more likety than not" threshold. We recorded the cumulative effect
of applying FIN 48 of $155 million as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings and additional paig-in-capital on
December 30, 20086, the first day of our 2007 fiscal year, See
Footnote No. 3, “Income Taxes,” for additional information.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 156, “Accounting for
Servicing of Financial Assets — an Amendment of FASB
Statement No. 140"

We adopted FASB's FAS No. 156 on December 30, 2008, the first
day of our 2007 fiscal year. FAS No. 156 requires that all separatgly
recognized servicing assets and liabilities initially be measured at fair
value, if practicable. It also allows an entity to subsequently elect
fair value measurement for its servicing assets and liabilities. We
recorded the cumulative effect of applying FAS No. 156, of $1 mil-
lion, net of tax, as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings on December 30, 2008. See Footnote No. 11, “Asset
Securitizations,” for additional information,

Future Adoption of Accounting Standards

EITF Issue No. 06-8, “Applicability of the Assessment of

a Buyer's Continuing Invesitment under FASB Statement
No. 66, Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, for Sales

of Condominiums”

In November 2008, the Emerging Issues Task Force of FASB (“EITF")
reached a consensus on EITF Issue No. 06-8, “Applicability of the
Agsessment of a Buyer's Continuing Investment under FASB State-
ment No. 66, Accounting for Sales of Real Estate, for Sales of Condo-
miniums” (“EITF 06-8"). EITF 06-8 will require condominium sales to
meet the continuing investment criterion in FAS No. 66 in order to rec-
ognize profit under the percentage of completion method. EITF 06-8
will be effective for annual reporting periods beginning after March 15,
2007, which for us begins with our 2008 fiscal year. The cumulative
effect of applying EITF 08-8, if any, will be recorded as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings in the year of adoption.
Woe do not expect the impact of adoption of EITF 06-8 1o be material.

Financial Accounting Standards No, 157, “Fair Value
Measuremenis”

In September 2006, the FASE issued FAS No. 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“FAS No. 1577). This standard defines fair value,
establishes a methodology for measuring fair value, and expands
the required disclosure for fair value measurements. FAS No. 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, which
for us begins with our 2008 fiscal year. Provisions of FAS No. 157
must be applied prospectively as of the beginning of the first fiscal
year in which FAS No. 157 is applied. In November 2007, the FASB
agreed to partially defer the effective date, for one year, of FAS No.
157, for non-financial assets and liabilities, except those that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a
recurring basis. We are currently evaluating the impact that FAS No.
157 will have on our financial statements.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 159, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Including an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115"

In February 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 158, “The Fair Value
Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Including an




Amendment of FASB Statement No. 115" (*FAS No. 159"). This
standard permits entities to choose to measure many financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value and is effective for
the first fiscal year beginning afier November 15, 2007, which for us
begins with our 2008 fiscal year. We do not expect to elect the fair
value measurement option for any financial assets or liabilities at the
present time.

EITF Issue No. 07-6, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate
Subject to the Requirements of FASB Statement No. 66,
‘Accounting for Sales of Real Estate,’ When the Agreement
Includes a Buy-Sell Clause”

In December 2007, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF Issue
No. 07-6, “Accounting for Sales of Real Estate Subject to the
Requirements of FASB Statemant No. 86, ‘Accounting for Sales

of Real Estate,” When the Agreement Includes a Buy-Sell Clause”
{(“EITF 07-6™. EITF Q7-6 clarifies whether a buy-sell clause Is a pro-
hibited form of continuing involvement that would preclude partial
sales treatment under FAS No. 66. EITF 07-6 is effective for new
arrangements entered into and assessments of existing transactions
originally accounted for under the deposit, profit-sharing, leasing, or
financing methods for reasons other than the exercise of a buy-sell
clause performed in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007,
which for us begins with our 2008 fiscal year. Wa do not expect EITF
07-6 to have a material impact on our financial statements.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 141 (Revised 2007),
“Business Combinations”

On December 4, 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 141 (Revised
2007), “Business Combinations” {“FAS No. 141(R)"). FAS No.
141(R) will significantly change the accounting for business combi-
nations. Under FAS No. 141(R}, an acquiring entity will be required
to recognize all the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a
transaction at the acquisition-date fair value with limited exceptions.
FAS No. 141(R) also includes a substantial number of new disclo-
sure requirements. FAS No. 141(R) applies prospectively to busi-
ness combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
December 15, 2008, which for us begins with our 2009 fiscal year.
We are currently evaluating the impact that FAS No. 141(R) will have
an our financial statements.

Financial Accounting Standards No. 160, “Non-controlling
interests in Consolidated Financial Statements — an
Amendment of ARB No. 517

On December 4, 2007, the FASB issued FAS No. 160, “Non-control-
ling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements-an Amendment of
Accounting Research Bulletin {(*ARB") No. 51" (“FAS No. 1607. FAS
No. 160 establishes new accounting and reporting standards for a
non-controlling interest in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of
a subsidiary. Specifically, this statement requires the recognition of a
non-controlling interest {minority interast) as equity in the consoli-
dated financial statements separate from the parent's equity. The
amount of net income attributable to the non-controlling interest will
be included in consolidated net income on the face of the income
statement. FAS No. 160 clarifies that changes in a parent's owner-
ship interest in a subsidiary that do not result in deconsclidation are
equity transactions if the parent retains its controlling financial inter-
est. [n addition, this statement requires that a parent recognize a
gain or loss in net income when a subsidiary is decensolidated.
Such gain or loss will be measured using the fair valus of the non-
controlling equity investment on the deconsclidation date. FAS No.
160 also includes expanded disclosure requirements regarding the
interests of the parent and its non-controlling interest. FAS No, 160

is affective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal
years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008, which for us
begins with our 2009 fiscal year. We are currently evaluating the
impact that FAS No. 160 will have on our financial statements.

2 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Our synthetic fuel operations consisted of four coal-based synthetic
fue! production facilities (the “Facilities”). Because tax credits under
Section 45K of the Internal Revenue Code are not available for the
production and sale of synthetic fuel produced from coal after cal-
endar year-end 2007, and because high oil prices during 2007 will
result in the phase-out of a significant portion of the tax credits
available for synthetic fuel produced and sold in 2007, on
November 3, 2007, we shut down the Facilities and permanently
ceased production of synthetic fuel. Accordingly, we now report this
business segment as a discontinued operation. The book value of
the Facilities was zero at year-end 2007, as the Facilities have besn
transferred to third parties. Under the site leases for the Facilities,
we were required to restore the leased premises to substantially the
condition the premises were in when the leases were originally exa-
cuted. However, we executed agreements with the lessors of the
sites pursuant to which we transferred the Facilities to the lessors in
exchange for the retease of our obligations to restore the leased
premises to their original condition. Costs asscciated with shutting
down the synthetic fuel operaticn and transferring the Facilities to
the site lessors were not material.

The following table provides additional income statement and
balance sheet information relating to the discontinued operations:

Income Statement Summary

{® in miflions) ©o2007 2008 2005
Revenue ' $352 i i85 $ 421
Operating loss $(113) 1 ${76)  B(144)
Gains and other (expense) income ! {6} [ {15) 32
Interest expense : 8) : 4 —
Loss before income taxes and f
minority interest - (127 | (@5) (112}
Tax benefit L4 32 23
Tax credits [ 80! 62 167
Total tax benefit | 126 ' 94 190
(Loss) income before minority interest (| &l 78
Minority interest | - 6 47

{Loss) income on discontinued : .

synthetic fuel business, net of tax {1 5 125
Income on discontinued distribution ' !

services business, net of tax ) - l - 1

$126

Discontinuad operations, net of tax $ M’ 8§ 5

Balance Sheet Summary

A A

Year-end | Year-end
(8 in miliions) | 2007 < 2008
Property, plant, and equipment ! $ -1 85
Other assets . 53 |‘ 86
Liabilities {13) . {55)
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3 INCOME TAXES

Woe adopted the provisions of FIN 48, on Dacember 30, 2008, the
first day of fiscal year 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN
48, we recorded a $155 million increase in the net liability for unrec-
ognized tax positions, which was recorded as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings and additional paid-in-capital
on December 30, 2006. The total amount of unrecognized tax ben-
efits as of year-end 2007 was $132 million. Included in the balance
at year-end 2007 were $97 milion of tax positions that, if recog-
nized, would impact the effective tax rate. As a large taxpayer, we
are under continual audit by the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS"}
and other taxing authorities on several open tax positions, and it Is
possible that the amount of the liability for unracognized tax bensfits
could change during the next 52-week period, Whils it is possible
that one or maore af these exarminations may be resolved in the next
year, it is not anticipated that & significant impact to the unrecog-
nized tax benefit balance will ocour.

The unrecognized tax benefit reconciliation from beginning bal-
ance to ending balance is as follows:

{2 in millions) Amount
Unrecognized tax benefit at beginning
of year {December 30, 2006} $ 244
Change attributable to tax positions
taken during a prior period 163
Change attributabls 10 tax positions
taken during the current period 5
Decrease attributable to settlements
with taxing authorities {279
Decrease attributable to lapse
of statute of imitations 1)
Unrecognized tax benefit at
end of year (December 28, 2007) $132

In accordance with our accounting policy, we recognize accrued
interest and penaliies related to unrecognized tax benefits as a
component of tax expense. This policy did not change as a result
of the adoption of FIN 48. Qur Consolidated Statements of Income
for the year ended December 28, 2007, and our Consolidated
Balance Sheets as of that date include interest of $18 million and
$8 million, respectively.

We file income tax returns, including returns for our subsidiaries,
with federal, state, Jocal, and foreign jurisdictions. We are participat-
ing in the IRS Compliance Assurance Program (CAP) for the 2006
and 2007 tax years and we intend to participate for 2008. This pro-
gram accelerates the examination of key transactions with the goal
of resolving any issues before the tax return is filed. Our 2005 fed-
eral income tax return is currently being examined by the IRS in a
traditional audit process. In June 2007, we received IRS Revenue
Agents Reports for both the 2000 through 2002 and 2003 through
2004 examination cycles. We have fully resolved all issues and are
in the final stages of closing these years. Various state, local, and
foreign income tax returns are also under examination by taxing
autherities. We do not believe that the cutcome of any examination
will have a matenal impact on our financial statements.

As disclosed in our 2006 Form 10-K, the IRS was then auditing
the Company's federal tax returns for the 2000, 2001, and 2002
fiscal years. As part of that audit, the IRS reviewed a leveraged
employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”) feature of the Company's
Employees’ Profii Sharing, Retirement and Savings Plan {the “Plan”)
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that was implemented in a transaction {the "ESOP fransaction™ on
June 13, 2000. Principal and interest on the debt related to the
transaction was forgiven over a 26-month period as a mechanism
for funding Company contributions of elective deferrals and match-
ing contributions to the Plan. We claimed federal income tax deduc-
tions for the forgiven principal on the debt in the amount of $1
billion over that pariod, along with forgiven interest on the debt, The
benefit related to the tax deductions was reflacted in equity and did
not flow through the provision for income taxes.

On June 7, 2007, we reached a settlernent of issues raised dur-
ing the IRS’ and Department of Labor's examination of the ESOP
feature of the Plan. The settlement resutted in an after-tax charge in
the 2007 second quarter totaling $54 million and a reduction in
shareholders' equity of $115 million. The $54 million charge
included $35 million of excise taxes (impacting general, administra-
tive, and other expense}, $13 million of interest expense on those
excise taxes, and $6 milion of income tax expense primarily reflect-
ing additional interest. As a result of the settlement, we have made
cash payments to the U.S. Treasury and state tax jurisdictions of
$205 million through year-end 2007. The remaining cash payments
of approximately $1 million are expected to be made in 2008. The
payments reflect income taxes, excise taxes, and interest charges.
No penalties were assessed.

Total deferred tax assets and liabilities as of year-end 2007 and
year-end 2006, were as follows:

{% in millions) 2007 | 2006

Defarred tax assets $1,013 | $1,042

Deferred tax liabilities (150) (177}
Net deferred taxes s 863 | § 865

The tax effect of each type of temporary difference and canry-for-
ward that gives rise to a significant portion of deferred tax assets and
liakilities as of year-end 2007 and year-end 2006, were as follows:

(% in mitlions) 2007 2006
Seff-insurance $ 27 $ 36
Employee benefits ! 282 250
Deferred income 30 34
Other reserves 42 52
Frequent guest program 101 75
Tax credits 300 383
Net operating loss carry-forwards 132 126
Timeshare financing {47) (37
Property, equipment, and intangible assets | {45) ¢ {32)
Other, net [72 12
Deferred taxes i 894 899
Less: valuation allowance (31} (34)

Net deferred taxes | $863 $865

At year-end 2007, we had approximately $74 rnillion of tax cred-
its that expire through 2027, $226 million of tax credits that do not
expire, and $656 milion of net operating losses, of which $360 mil-
lion expire through 2027, The valuaiion allowance decreased due to
foreign net cperating losses that we believe will be realized and the
expiration of state net operating losses.

Woe have made no provision for U.S. income taxes or additional
foreign taxes on the cumulative unremitted earnings of non-U.S.
subsidiaries ($738 million as of year-end 2007} because we consider




these earnings to be permanently invested. These earnings could
become subject to additional taxes if remitted as dividends, loaned
to us or a U.S. affiliate or if we sold our interssts in the affliates. We
cannot practically estimate the amount of additional taxes that
might be payable on the unremitted earnings. We conduct business
in countries that grant a “holiday™ from income taxes for 10- and
30-year periods. The holidays expire through 2034. The aggregate
amount of taxes not incurred due to tax “holidays™ and the related
samings per share impacts are $22 milion ($0.08 per diluted share),
$22 million ($0.05 per dituted share), and $11 million ($0.02 per
diluted share) for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

The (provision for) benefit from income taxes consists of:

{3 in miliions) . 2007 | 2008 2005
Current — Federal © $(303) } $287)  $(328)
— State . (59) ‘ (61} {56)

— Foreign 'o61) (56} {35)
423 404) 419)

Deferred — Federal L0 ‘ 5 108
— State : 1. 1 19

— Foreign ] @ 18 8

R 135

| ${441) | $(380)  S[284)

The current tax provision does not reflect the benefits attributa-
ble to us refating to the exercise of employee stock options of
$115 million in 2007, $194 million in 2008, and $87 million in 2005.
Includled in the preceding table are tax credits of $4 million in each
of 2007 and 2006, and $5 million in 2005, The taxes applicable to
other comprehensive income are not material.

A recongciliation of the U.S. statutory tax rate to our effective
income tax rate for continuing operations follows:

2007 , 2006 2005

U.S. statutory tax rate - 35.0 % ' 350% 350%
State income taxes, net of U.S. | |

tax benefit P28 29 3.0
Nondeductible expenses bo1.4 : 0.3 0.3
Change in valuation allowance D - | (1.9 1.7
Foreign income 5 (0.9 {1.8) 4.4
Tax credits ' {0.3) {0.4) 0.6)
Other, net ‘o8 ' 01 0.4)

Effective rate | 388% ' 842% 346%

Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds, was $350 million in
2007, $169 million in 2006, and $182 million in 2005.

4 SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

Under our 2002 Comprehensive Stock and Cash Incentive Plan
(*the Comprehensive Plan”}, we award: (1) stock options to pur-
chase our Class A Commen Stock ("Stock Option Program™); (2)
share appreciation rights for cur Class A Common Stock; (3)
restricted stock units of our Class A Cammon Stock; and {4)
deferred stock units. We grant awards at exercise prices or strike
prices that are equal to the market price of our Class A Common
Stock on the date of grant.

We adopted FAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective
transition method at the beginning of our 2006 first quarter. In
accordance with the modified prospective transition method, we did
not restats our Consolidated Financial Statements for prior periods
to reflect the impact of FAS No. 123(R). For all share-based awards
granted after the date we adopted FAS No. 123(R} and for the
unvested poartion of previously granted share-based awards that
were outstanding on that date, FAS No. 123(R} requires that we
measure compensation costs refated to our share-based payment
transactions at fair value on the grant date and that we recognize
those costs in the financial statements over the vesting period dur-
ing which the employee provides service in exchange for the award.
Previously, under FAS No. 123 and APB Opinion No. 25, we
accounted for our share-based employee compensation plans
using the intrinsic value method under the recognition and measure-
ment principles of APB Opinion No. 25 and recognized share-
based compensation expense for all awards except for our Stock
Option Program awards. We recorded share-based compensation
expense related to award grants of $62 million in 2005,

Under FAS No. 123(R), we recorded share-based compensation
expense related to award grants of $104 million in 2007 and $108
million in 2006. Deferred compensation costs related to unvested
awards totaled $162 million at year-end 2007 and $168 million at
year-end 2008, and the weighted average period over which we
expact the deferred compensation costs at year-end 2007 to be
recognized is two years.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earn-
ings per share as if we had applied the fair value recognition provi-
sions of FAS No. 123 to share-based employee compensation in
2005. We have included the impact of measured but unrecognized
compensation costs and excess tax benefits credited 1o additional
paid-in-capital in the calculation of diluted pro forma shares. In
addition, we have included the estimated impact of reimbursements
from third parties. The reported and pro forma net income and
eamnings per share figures for 2007 and 2006 in the table are the
same because we calculate share-based compensation expense
under the provisions of FAS Ne. 123(R). We have included the 2007
and 2006 amounts in the table below to provide detail for compara-
tive purposes to the 2005 amounis.

2007 | 2008 2005
$696 | $608 $669

% in millions, except per share amounts}

Net income, as reported

Add: Share-based employse
compensation expense included
in reported net income, net of
refated tax effects

Deduct: Total share-based employee
compensation expense determined !
under fair value-based method for all
awards, net of related tax effects and
estimated reimbursed costs

|
67 } 70 40
|
\
|
|

_®n, 9. @

Pro forma net income ? $696 | $608 $648
Eamings per share: ;
Basic-as reported - $1.85 | $1.50 $1.55
Basic-pro forma $1.85 1| $1.50 $1.50
Diluted-as reported | $1.75 | $1.41  $1.45
Diluted-pro forma ' $1.75 | $1.41  $1.40
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FAS No. 123(R} reguires that share-based compensation Changes in our outstanding restricted stock unit grants in 2007
expense be recognized over the period from the grant date to the were as follows;
date on which the award is no longer contingent on the employee
providing additional service (the “substantive vesting period”). In Number of Weighted
periods prior to the adoption of FAS No. 123{R), we showed share- Restricted Average

. ) . Stock Units  Grant-Date

based compensation expense in our pro forma disclosure only for @in millions)  Fair Vatue
option awards to retirement-eligible employees over the awards’

stated vesting period. In periods prior to the adoption of FAS No. Outstanding at year-end 2006 76 $30
123(R), we recorded share-based compensation expense for our Granted during 2007 23 49
other awards to retirement-eligible employees over the awards' Distributed during 2007 (3.0) 26
stated vesting period. With the adoption of FAS No. 123(R), we Forfeited during 2007 0.2} 37
continue to follow the:‘ stated vesting pericd for the unvested portion Outstanding at year-end 2007 6.7 37
of awards granted prior to adoption of FAS No. 123(R} and icllow
the substantive vesting period for awards granted after the adoption
of FAS No. 123(R}. Employee stock options may be granted to officers and key
In accordance with FAS No. 123(R), we present the tax benefits employees at exercise prices or strike prices equal to the market
resuiting from the exercise of share-based awards as financing cash ~ price of our Class A Common Stack an the date of grant, Non-
flows. Prior to the adoption of FAS No. 123(R), we reported the tax qualified options generally expire 10 years after the date of grant,
benefits resulting from the exercise of share-based awards as oper- except those issued from 1990 through 2000, which expire 15
ating cash flows. Tax benefits resuliing from the exercise of share- years after the date of the grant. Most stock options under the
based awards totaled $115 million, $194 million, and $87 million for Stock Option Program are exercisable in cumulative installments of
2007, 2008, and 2005, respectively. one quarter at the end of each of the first four years following the
The aggregate amount of cash we received from the exercise of date of grant.
stock options granted under share-based payment arrangements We recognized compensation expense associated with
was $89 million, $184 million, and $125 million for 2007, 2006, and employee stock options of $12 million in 2007 and $22 million in
2005, respectively. 2006. We did not recognize any compensation expense associated
We issue restricted stock units under the Comprehensive Plan with employee stock options in 2005, At year-end 2007 and year-
to certain officers and key employees and those units vest generally end 2008, there was approximately $6 milion and $18 million,
over four years in annual installments commencing cne year after respectively, in deferred compensation costs related to employee
the date of grant. We recognize compensation expense for the stock options. Upon the exercise of stock options, we issue shares
restricted stock units over the service period equal to the fair mar- from treasury shares.
ket value of the stock units on the date of issuance. Upon vesting, Changes in our outstanding Stock Option Program awards in
restricted stock units convert to shares and are distributed from 2007 were as follows:
treasury shares. At year-end 2007 and year-end 2008, we had
approximately $145 million and $138 million, respectively, in Number of Weighted
Options Average

deferred compensation costs related to restricted stock units.

\ ) ) . {in millions)  Exercise Price
Share-based compensation expense associated with restricted

stock units was $82 milion, $77 million, and $52 milion for 2007, Qutstanding at year-end 2008 43.9 $17
2006, and 2005, respectively. The weighted average remaining term Granted during 2007 - 49
for restricted stock unit grants cutstanding at year-end 2007 was Exercised during 2007 {6.2) 14
two years, Restricted stock units converted and distributed during Forfeited during 2007 — 23

2007, 2006, and 2005, had aggregate intrinsic values of $147 mil-

lion, $78 million, and $52 million, respectively. The weighted aver-

age grant-date fair values of restricted stock units granted in 2007,

2006, and 2005 were $49, $35, and $32, respectively. Stock options issued under the Stock Option Program awards
outstanding at year-end 2007, wers as follows:

Outstanding at year-end 2007 377 17

Qutstanding Exercisable
Number of Weighted Average Weighted Number of Weighted Woeighted Average
Range of Stock Options Remaining Life Average Stock Options Average Remaining Life
Exercise Prices {in millions} {in years}) Exercise Price {in millions) Exercise Price (in years}
$6tcs 8 2.7 2 $7 2.7 857 2
$ 9to$12 1.4 4 10 1.4 10 4
$13t0318 21.8 6 15 21.8 15 6
$191tc3%25 10.3 7 22 9.4 22 7
$26 t0$50 1.5 8 33 0.7 32 8
$ 61t0%50 37.7 6 17 36.0 17 6
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The weighted average grant-date fair vatue of the 33,000
options granted in 2007 was $19 and the options had a weighted
average exercise price of $49. The weighted average grant-date fair
value of the 24,000 options granted in 2006 was $13 and the
options had a weighted average exercise price of $34. The total
intrinsic value of options cutstanding at year-end 2007 and year-
end 2006 was $1,279 milion and $1,368 million, respectively, and
the total intrinsic value for stock options exercisable as of year-end
2007 and year-end 2006 was $624 million and $1,233 million,
respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised dur-
ing 2007, 20086, and 2005 was approximately $206 million, $309
million, and $173 million, respectively.

Employee share appreciation rights ("Employee SARs") may be
granted to officers and key employees at exercise prices or strike
prices equal to the market price of our Class A Common Stock on
the date of grant. Employee SARSs expire t0 years after the date of
grant and generally both vest and are exercisable in cumulative
installments of one quarter at the end of each of the first four years
following the date of grant. Non-employee share appreciation rights
{“Non-employee SARs") may be granted to directors at exercise
prices or strike prices equal to the market price of our Class A
Common Stock on the date of grant. Non-employee SARs expire
10 years after the date of grant and vest upon grant; however, they
are generally not exercisable until one year after grant. We first
began issuing share appreciation rights in 2006. On exercise of
SARs, employees or Non-employee directors receive the number
of shares of Class A Common Stock equal te the number of share
appreciation rights that are being exercised multiplied by the quo-
tient of {a) the final value minus the base value, divided by (b) the
final value.

We recognized compensation expense associated with Employee
SARs and Non-employee SARs of $5 million in 2007 and $3 miflion in
2006. At the end of 2007 and 2006, we had approximately $7 million
and $4 million, respectively, in deferred compensation costs related
to share appreciation rights. Upon the exercise of share appreciation
rights, shares are issued from treasury shares. During 2007 and
2006, we granted 0.4 million and 0.5 million, respectively, Employee
SARs with a weighted average base value of $43 and $34, respec-
tively, and a weighted average grant-date fair value of $19 and $13,
respectively. During 2007 and 2006, we also granted 4,000 and
8,000, respectively, Non-employee SARs with a weighted average
base value of 346 and $37, respectively, and a weighted average
grant-date fair value of $20 and $18, respectively. No SARs have
expired or been forfeited in 2007. The total intrinsic value of SARs
outstanding at year-end 2007 and year-end 2006 was zero and $7
million, respectively, and the total intrinsic value of SARs exercisable
as of year-end 2007 and year-end 2006 were each zero. The total
intrinsic value of SARs exercised during 2007 was $100,000. No
SARs were exarcised in 2006.

We use a binomial method to estimate the fair value of each
stock option or SAR granted. The assumptions for stock options for
all years and employee SARs for 2007 and 2006 are noted in the
following table:

T 2007 | 2006 2005
Annual dividends $020 022 5018
Expected volatility | 28% | 30% 30%
Risk-free interest rate . 4.8% 4.5% 4.1%
Expected ife {in years) ' 7 7 8

For Non-employee SARs issued in 2007 and 2008, the only dif-
ferences in the assumptions versus employee SARs were the use of
risk-free interest rates of 4.6 percent and 5.0 percent, respectively,
and for each year’s issuances, an expected life of 10 years.

Estimated volatilities for 2007 and 20086 were based on the his-
torical share-price volatility for a period equal to the stock option’s
or share appreciation right’s expected lives, ending on the day of
grant, and calculated based on weekly data. The weighted average
expected stock option or share appreciation right terms for 2007
and 2006 were a product of the lattice-based binomial valuation
model that uses suboptimal exercise factors to calculate the
expected terms.

We also issue deferred stock units to Non-employee directors.
Thase Non-employee director deferred stock units vest within one
year and are distributed upon election. At year-end 2007 and year-
end 2006, there was approximately $227,000 and $152,000, respec-
tively, in deferred costs related to Non-employee director deferred
stock units. We recognized share-based expense associated with
Non-employee director deferred stock units of $666,000, $492,000,
and $416,000 for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively. During 2007
we granted 20,000 Non-employee director deferred stock units with
a weightaed average grant-date fair valus of $46. For 2008 and 2005,
we granted 18,000 and 21,000 Non-employes director deferred
stock units with weighted average grant-date fair values of $37 and
$32, respectively. The aggregate intrinsic value of Non-employee
director deferred stock units distributed during 2007, 2006, and
2005, was $0.3 milion, $1.7 million, and $0.2 milion, respectively. At
year-end 2007 and year-end 2008, there were 218,000 and 203,000,
respectively, Non-employes deferred stock units outstanding, and the
weighted average grant-date fair value of those outstanding deferred
stock units was $24 and $21, respectively.

Although the Comprehensive Plan also provides for issuance of
deferred stock bonus awards, deferred stock awards, and restricted
stock awards, our Compensation Policy Committee indefinitsly sus-
pended the issuance of deferred bonus stock commencing with our
2001 fiscal year and the issuance of both deferred stock awards
and restricted stock awards commencing with the 2003 fiscal year.
At year-end 2007 and year-end 2008, there was approximately $4
million and $8 million, respectively, in deferred compensation costs
related to these suspended award programs, and the weighted
average remaining term was two years for such award grants out-
standing at year-end 2007, Share-based compensation expense
associated with these suspended award programs was $4 million,
$6 million, and $10 million for 2007, 2006, and 2005, respectively.

At year-end 2007, 63 million shares were reserved under the
Comprehensive Plan including 38 million shares under the Stock
Option Program and Share Appraciation Right Program.
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5 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The table below illustrates the reconcliiation of the eamings and
number of shares used in the basic and diluted earnings per share
calculations.

7 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The following table details the composition of our property and
equipment balances at year-end 2007 and year-end 2006.

(% in mitiions) [ 2007 | 2006
{in millions, except per share amounts) 1 2007 | 2006 2005 Land i $ 399 : & 316
Computation of Basic Earnings Per Share Buildings and lsasehold improvements | 833 | 724
Income from continuing operations $697 | $712 $543  Furniture and equipment ' 800 | 837
n n ]
Waighted average shares outstanding 376.1 | 404.1 43277  Construction in progress | 216 | 215
Basic earnings per share from | 2,348 | 2,092
continuing operations $185( $1.76 $1.26 Accumulated depreciation I (1,019) 1 (859)
! [
Computation of Diluted Earnings Per Share | $1,329 |  $1,233
Income from continuing operations $697 | $712 $543
Weighted average shares outstanding 376.1 | 4041 4327 We record property and equipment at cost, including interest,
Effect of dilutive securities rent, gnd real estate tgxcals incurred during development anq con-
Employes stock option and share struction. Interest capitalized as a cost of property and equipment
pioyes slack op totaled $49 million in 2007, $32 million in 2006, and $30 million in
appreciation nghts plan 168, 202 190 . .
) ) 2005. We capitalize the cost of improvements that extend the use-
Deferred stock incentive plan 1.9 3.4 7.5 . . : o
Restricted stock unit 5 ful life of property and equipment when incurred. These capitalized
esiricied Sock units 25 | 5 31 osts may include structural costs, equipment, fixtures, floor, and
Shares for diluted earnings per share ' 397.3 | 430.2 462.3 wall coverings. We expense all repair and maintenance costs as
) ) incurred. We compute depreciation using the straight-line method
Diluted earnings per shars from over the estimated useful lives of the assets (three to 40 years), and
continuing operations $1.75 | 5165 $1.17 i , yearsk
we amontize leasehold improvements over the shorter of the asset

We compute the effect of dilutive securities using the treasury
stock method and average market prices during the period. We
determine dilution based on earnings from continuing operations.

In accordance with FAS No. 128, “Earnings per Share,” we have
not included the following stock options and SARs in our calculation
of diluted earnings per share because the exercise prices were
greater than the average market prices for the applicable periods:

{a} for the year ended December 28, 2007, 0.4 milion options

and SARs, with exarcise prices ranging from $45.91 to $49.03;

{b) for the year ended December 29, 2006, no options, and

{c) for the year ended December 30, 2005, no options.

6 INVENTORY

Inventory, totaling $1,557 milion and $1,186 million as of December
28, 2007, and December 29, 2006, respectively, consists primarity
of Timeshare segment interval, fractional ownership, and residential
products totaling $1,536 milion and $1,166 milion as of December
28, 2007, and December 29, 2008, respectively. Inventory totaling
$21 milion and $20 million as of December 28, 2007, and
December 29, 2008, respectively, relates to hotel operating supplies
for the limited number of properties we own or lease. We value
Timeshare segment interval, fractional ownership, and residential
products at the lower of cost or net realizable value and ganerally
value operating supplies at the lower of cost (using the first-in, first-
out method) or market. Consistent with recognized industry prac-
tice, we classify Timeshare segment interval, fractional ownership,
and residential products inventory, which has an operating cycle
that exceeds 12 months, as a current asset.
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life or lease term. Depreciation expense totalad $162 million in
2007, $155 millicn in 2006, and $156 million in 2005.

8 ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

2007 Acquisitions

During 2007, we acquired one fufl-service property, one limited-
service property, and one extended-stay property for cash consid-
eration of $199 milion. These three properties ware acquired in
conjunction with' a land assemblage for a large hotel complex that
is still in the formative development stage. In addition, we acquired
certain land parcels in 2007 for cash consideration of $52 million.
Also during 2007, we acquired the fee simple interest in the
improvements of three properties and the leasehold interest in the
ground undertying the three properties for cash consideration of
$58 million. The purchase included cne full-service property and
two limited-service properties, which were each sold later in the
same year.

During the first half of 2007, we were party to a venture that
developed and marketed fractional ownership and residential inter-
ests. In the second haif of 2007, we purchased our partner's inter-
est in the joint venture for $6 million. In conjunction with that
tfransaction, we acquired assets and liabilities totaling $90 million
and $84 million, respectively, on the date of the purchase. During
the first half of 2007, we were party to another venture that was
established to develop and markst timeshare and residential inter-
ests. In the second half of 2007, we purchased our partner's inter-
est in that joint venture, and concurrent with this transaction, we
purchased additional land and assets from our partner as well.
Aggregate cash and notes payable issued for these transactions
totaled $106 million, and we acquired assets and liabilities totaling
$182 million and $76 million, respectively, on the date of purchase.

At year-end 2007, we were party to a venture that developed and
marketed fractional and whole ownership interests. Subsequent to
year-end 2007, we purchased our partner's interest in that joint ven-
ture and concurrent with this transaction, we purchased additional




land from our partner as well. Cash consideration for this transaction
totaled $37 million and we acquired assets and liabilities totaling $74
million and $37 millicn, respectively, on the date of purchase.

2007 Dispositions
In 2007, we sold nine properties for cash proceeds of $601 million
and recognized gains totaling $24 million. We continue 10 operate
eight of the nine properties under long-term agreesments. Wa sold
two parcels of land for $55 million in cash proceeds that were under
davelopment and recognized a gain of $2 million. We also sold the
fee simple interest in the improvernents of three properties and the
lsasehold interest in the ground undertying the three properties, ini-
tially acquired in early 2007, for book value and received $58 million
in cash proceeds. We continue to manage the properties under
long-term agreements. Each of the aforementioned sales was
accounted for under the full accrual method in accordance with FAS
No. 66. During the year, we also sold our interests in five joint ven-
tures for cash proceeds of $30 milion and recognized gains totaling
$13 million. We had other asset sales during the year, which gener-
ated proceeds totafing $1 milion. Cash flows totaling $745 million
for all the preceding dispositions in 2007 are refiected in the
“Dispositions” ling in our Consclidated Statements of Cash Flows.

In 2007, we also sold land that was under devetopment. Due to
a contingency in the sales contract, this sale was accounted for
under the deposit method of FAS No. 566. Accordingly, the cash
proceeds, totaling $30 million, were reflected in “Other investing
activities" in our Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

2006 Acquisitions

During 2006, we acquired one full-service property for $130 million
including aggregate cash consideration of $46 milion plus the
assumption of debt. In addition we acquired three other full-service
properties for aggregate cash consideration of $134 milion. We
sold each of the four properties to third-party owners during the
2007 fiscal year.

2006 Dispositions
In 2006 we sold our interest in the 50/50 joint venturs with
Whitbread PLC {*Whithread”), which held 46 hotels consisting of
more than 8,000 rooms and we received approximately $164 million
in cash, net of transaction costs, which was approximately equal to
the investment's book value. We continue to manage the hotels
under the Marriott Hotels & Resorts and Renaissance Hotels &
Resorts brands. We also soid our minority interest in five other joint
ventures during 2006 for cash proceeds of $64 million and recog-
nized gains of $43 million, Additionally, one cost method investes
redeemed the prefermed stock we held for $81 million in cash consid-
eration and we recognized income of $25 million on the redemption.
During 2006 we also sold 10 full-service properties for cash pro-
ceeds of $487 million and recognized gains totaling $14 million. We
accounted for each of the sales under the full accrual meathod in
accordance with FAS No. 66 and will continue to operate eight of
the properties under long-term management agresments. The sold
properties included eight properties purchased in 2005 from CTF
Holdings Ltd. and certain of its affiliates {(collectively “CTF"}. For
additional information regarding the CTF transaction, see the “2005
Acquisitions” caption later in this footnote. Prior to the sale of one
property, balances associated with that property were reclassified in
conformity with other “held and used” properties, in the first half of
2006 as the property was not expected to be sold, within one ysar
of its classification as “held for sale.” In conjunction with that reclas-
sification, we recorded depreciation expense of $2 milion in the first
half of 2006 that would have been recognized had the asset been
continuously classified as “held and used.” Cash proceeds of $26

million for one hotel sold in 2006 are not reflected in the disposition
proceeds of $487 million as the proceeds were initially recorded

as a deposit because of a contingency and impacted the “Other
investing activities” section of our Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows rather than "Dispositions.” The contingency was subse-
quently resolved and sale accounting was achieved in 2006, Other
asset sales generated cash proceeds of $2 million.

Late in 2006, we sold a 75 percent interest in a joint venture to a
third party for its book value of $14 million. At the time of the sale, the
joint venture's only asset was a parcel of land. In conjunction with the
sale, we made a $25 milion bridge loan to the joint venturs, which
matured in earty 2007, Following the guidance found in EITF 98-8,
“Accounting for Transfers of Investrments That Are in Substance Real
Estate,” and FAS No. 66 due to our continuing involvement with the
joint venture, we consolidated the joint venture for the period of time
that the bridge loan was outstanding. Subsequent to the bridge loan's
repayment, we account for our remaining interest in the joint venture
under the equity method as required by APB Opinion No. 18, “The
Equity Method of Accounting for investments in Common Stock.”

In 1988, the Comparny as landlord, entered into a 58-year
ground lease with a lessee for land that was improved with a hotel
that is owned by the lessee, The hotel was previousty branded a
Marriott property. The lease contained contractual rental increases
over the term of the lease and annual ground rent on the land
totaled approximately $5 million in 2006. The lease also contained a
provision that permitted the lessee, under certain circumstances, to
purchase the land for a fixed price. We and the lessee had various
discussions in 2006 concerning the land as well as the hotel. During
the 2006 second quarter, it became probable that none of the pro-
posed transactions were acceptable te both parties and the lessee
indicated its intent to exercise its option to purchase the land.
Accordingly, in the 2006 second quarter, we reclassified the land
from the “Property and equipment” caption in our Consolidated
Balance Sheets to the “Assets held for sale” caption and recorded
a $37 milion non-cash charge to adjust the carrying amount to net
realizable value. We completed the sale of the land, at book value,
to the lessee in 2007 and this transaction is reflected in the figures
noted earlier for dispositions in 2007.

2005 Acquisitions
During the third quarter of 2005, we purchased from CTF and cer-
1ain of its affiliates 13 properties (in each case through a purchase
of real estate, a purchase of the entity that owned the hotel, or an
assignment of CTF’s leasshold rights) and certain joint venture intar-
ests from CTF for an aggregate price of $381 million. Prior to the
salg, all of the properties were operated by us or our subsidiaries.
At the purchase date, we planned to sell eight of the properties to
third-party owners and the balances related to thess full-service prop-
erties were classified within the “Assets held for sale” and “Liabilities
of assets held for salg" captions in our Consolidated Balance Sheets
at year-end 2005, All eight properties were sold in 2006. One operat-
ing lease terminated in 2005. At the purchase date we operated four
rernaining properties under leases, three of which expire by 2012,
Under the purchase and sale agreement we signed with CTF in the
second quarter of 2005, we were obligated to purchase two addi-
tional properties for $17 million, the acquisition of which was post-
poned pending receipt of certain third-party consents. We did not
purchass these additional two properties and the cbligation expired.
Cn the closing date we and CTF also modified management
agreements on 29 other CTF-leased hotels, 28 located in Europe
and one located in the United States. We became secondarily
liable for annual rent payments for certain of these hotels when
we acquired the Renaissance Hotel Group N.V. in 1897 At the
closing date, we continued to manage 16 of these hotels under
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new long-term management agreements; however, due to certain
provisions in the management agreements, we account for these
contracts as operating leases. CTF placed approximately $89 mil-
lion in trust accounts 1o cover possible shortfalls in cash flow nec-
essary to meet rent payments under these leases. In turn, we
released CTF from its guarantees in connection with these leases.
In 2007, the lease agreement associated with one of these proper-
ties was terminated. In 2007, we also entered into a transaction
whereby the landlord allowed us to assume the lease agreement for
another of the properties for which we then became the primary
obligor. In conjunction with becoming the primary obligor, we
received a $16 million distribution from the trust, and the balance
of the funds was distributed to the landlord. We accounted for cur
receipt of trust funds as a lease incentive, the reduction of which
will be recorded on a straight-line basis as an adjustment to lease
expense over the term expiring in 2033. At year-end 2007, approxi-
mately $38 million remained in these trust accounts for the 14 prop-
erties we still manage and account for as leases. Minimum lease
payments relating to these leases are as follows: $30 million in each
of 2008, 2008, and 2010; $26 milion in 2011; $17 milion in 2012;
and $33 million thereafter, for a total of $166 million.

For i3 European leased hotels, of the 29 properties mentioned in
the preceding paragraph, CTF may terminate management agree-
ments with us if and when CTF obtains releases from landlords of
our back-up guarantees. Pending completion of the CTF-landlord
agreements, we continue to manage these hotels under modified
management agreements and remain secondarily liable under certain
of these leases. We are also secondarily obligated for real estate
taxes and other charges associated with the leases. Third parties
have severally indemnified us for all payments we may be required to
make in connection with these obligations. Since we assumed these
guarantees, we have not funded any amounts and we do nct expect
to fund any amounts under these guarantees in the future. CTF had
originally made available €35 millicn in cash collateral in the event
that we were required to fund under such guarantees. At year-end
2007, we still managed five of the original 13 properties.
Approximately €7 million (311 milion} of cash collateral remained
available at year-end 2007. Our contingent liability exposure at year-
end 2007 associated with the five remaining properties totaled $77
million as also noted in Footnote No. 17, “Contingencies.” As CTF
obtains releases from the landlords and these remaining hotels exit
the system, our contingent liability exposurs will decline.

At the closing date, we continued to manage three other hotels
in the United Kingdom under amended management agreements
with CTF and continued to manage 14 other properties in Asia on
behalf of New World Development Company Limited and its affili-
ates. CTF's principals are officers, directors, and stockholders of
New World Development Company Limited. At the closing date, the
owners of the United Kingdom and Asian hotels agreed to invest
$17 milion to renovate those properties.

We and CTF also exchanged legal releases effective as of the
closing date and fitigation and arbitration that was outstanding
between the two companies and their affiliates was dismissed.

Simultaneousty with the closing on the foregoing transactions,
CTF alsc sold five properties and one minority joint venture interest
to Sunstone Hotel Investors, Inc. (“Sunstone™) for $419 million, eight
properties to Walton Street Capital, L.L.C. (*Walton Street”) for $578
milion, and two properties to Tarsadia Hotels ("Tarsadia”) for $29
million, in each case as substitute purchasers under our purchase
and sale agreement with CTF. Prior to consummation of the sales,
we also operated all of these properties. At closing, Walton Street
and Sunstone entered into new long-term management agreements
with us and agreed to invest a combined $68 million to further
upgrade the 13 properties they acquired. At the closing date, the
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two properties purchased by Tarsadia were operated under short-
term management and franchise agreements.

When we signed the purchase and sale agreement for the fore-
going transactions in the 2005 second guarter, we recorded a $94
million pretax charge primarily due to the non-cash write-off of
deferred contract acquisition costs associated with the termination
of the existing management agreements for properties involved in
these transactions, As described above, we entered into new long-
term management agreements with CTF, Walton Streat, and
Sunstene at the closing of the transactions.

In 2005 we alsc purchased two full-service properiias, one in
Paris, France and the other in Munich, Germany, for aggregate cash
consideration of $146 million. We planned to sell these two full-
sarvice properties to third-party owners and the balances related to
these properties were classified within the “Assets held for sale” and
“Liabilities of assets held for sale” line items on our Consolidated
Balance Sheets at year-end 2005. The property in Paris, France,
was sold in 2006 and the property located in Munich, Germany,
was sold in 2007. The balances associated with the Munich,
Germany, property were reclassified, in conformity with other “neld
arvd used” properties in the 2006 fourth quarter as the property was
not sold at that time, as expected, within one year of its classifica-
tion as “held for sale.” In conjunction with the 2006 reclassification,
we recorded depreciation expanse of $5 million in the 2006 fourth
quarter that would have been recognized had the asset been con-
tinucusly classified as “held and used.”

2005 Dispositions

Late in 2005, we contributed land underlying an additional nine
Courtyard hotels, worth approximately $40 million, to CBM Land
Joint Venture limited partnership (“CBM Land JV7), a joint veniure
the majority of which was owned, at the time of the transaction, by
a third party on behalf of an institutional investor, thereby obtaining
a 23 percent equity stake in CBM Land JV. At the same time we
completed the sale of a portfolio of land underlying 75 Countyard by
Marriott hotels for approximately $246 million in cash to CBM Land
JV. In conjunction with this transaction, we recognized a gain of $17
milliort in 2005, we deferred recognition of a $5 miflion gain due to
our minority interest in the joint venture, and we also deferred
recognition of a $40 million gain due to contingencies in the trans-
action documents. As those contingencies expire in subsequent
years, we will recognize additional gains. In each of 2007 and 2006,
we recognized gains of $4 milion, and at year-end 2007, the aggre-
gate remaining deferred gains totaled $37 million.

We also sold a number of other land parcels in 2005 for $38
million in cash, net of transaction costs and recognized gains total-
ing $6 million, and we sold two minority interests in joint ventures
for $14 million in cash and recognized gains totaling $7 million.

9 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table details the composition of our goodwill and
other intangible assets at year-end 2007 and year-end 2006.

(% in miliions) | 2007 2006
Contract acquisition costs and other 's sag l $ 809
Accumulated amortization o (264} (234)
'$ 635 $ 575
Goodwil . $1,048 © $1,049
Accumulated amortization : (128} | (128)
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Wea capitalize costs incured to acquire management, franchise,
and license agreements that are both direct and incremental. We
amortize these costs on a straight-line basis over the initial term of
the agreements, ranging from 15 to 30 years. We evaluate the car-
rying values of intangible assets for impairment under the provisions
of FAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Amortiza-
tion expense totaled $35 million in 2007, $33 milion in 2008, and
$28 million in 2005. Estimated aggregate amortization expense for
each of the next five fiscat years is as follows: $29 million for 2008;
$26 million for 2009; $26 million for 2010; $25 million for 2011; and
$25 million for 2012.

1() notes RecevaBLE

The following table details the composition of our notes receivable
balances at year-end 2007 and year-end 2006,

(% in mitlions) 2007 | 2006
Loans to timeshare owners $476 1 $386
t

Lodging senior loans 7. 9
Lodging mezzanine and other loans . 206 | 268
889 663
Less current portion {89) - {103)
$600  $560

We classify notes receivable due within one year as current
assets in the caption “Accounts and notes receivable” in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, including $68 million
and $70 million, as of year-end 2007 and ysar-end 2006, respec-
tively, related to “Loans to timeshare owners.”

Our notes receivable are due as follows: 2008-$89 million;
2009-$51 milion; 2010-$134 milion; 201 1-$58 milion; 2012-$57
milliony; and $300 million thereafter. The 2007 notes receivable bal-
ance is net of unamortized discounts totaling $25 milion and the
2006 notes receivable balance is net of unamortized discounts
totaling $28 milion. Gains from the sale of notes receivable totaled
approximately $82 milion, $79 miltion, and $34 million during 2007,
2006, and 2005, respectivaly.

Lodging Senior Loans and Lodging Mezzanine

and Other Loans

Interest income associated with “Lodging senicr loans” and
“l.odging mezzanine and other loans” is reflected in the accompa-
nying Consclidated Statements of Income in the “Interest income”
caption. We do not accrue interest on *Lodging senior loans” and
“Lodging mezzanine and other loans” that are impaired. At year-end
2007, our recorded investment in impaired “Lodging senior loans”
and “Lodging mezzanine and other loans” was $112 million and we
had a $92 million allowance for credit losses, leaving $20 million of
our investment in impaired loans for which there was no related
allowance for credit losses. At year-end 2006, our recorded invest-
ment in impaired "Lodging senior loans” and “Lodging mezzanine
and other loans™ was $92 million and we had a $70 milion
allowance for credit losses, leaving $22 million of our investment in
impaired loans for which there was no related allowance for credit

losses. During 2007 and 2006, our average investment in impaired
loans totaled $102 million and $138 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes the activity related to our
“Lodging senior loans” and “Lodging mezzanine and other ioans”
notes recelvable reserve for 2005, 2006, and 2007:

{3 in millions) Notes Receivable Reserve
Year-end 2004 balance § 92
Additions 1"
Reversals —
Write-offs @
Transfers and other 2]
Year-end 2005 balance 103
Additions _
Reversals (5)
Write-offs (38}
Transfers and other 10
Year-end 2006 balance 70
Additions i1
Reversals -
Write-offs -
Transfers and other 11
Year-end 2007 balance $ 92

Loans to Timeshare Owners
At year-end 2007, the waighted average interest rate for our “Loans
to timeshare owners™ was 12.7 percent and the stated interest
rates associated with these loans ranged from zero to 19.9 percent.
Wa reflact interest income associated with “Loans to timeshare
owners” of $50 million, $41 million, and $38 miiltion for 2007, 2008,
and 2005, respectively, in the accompanying Consolidated
Staternents of Income in the “Timeshare sales and services” rev-
enue caption. Wa do not accrue interest on “Loans to timeshare
owners” that are over 90 days past due. Cur recorded invesiment
in “Loans to timeshare owners” on nonaccrual status at year-end
2007 and year-and 2006 totaled $59 milion and $87 million,
respectively. We established the reserve for “Loans to timeshare
owners” notes receivable in 2006 in conjunction with the adoption
of SOP 04-2.

The following table summarizes the activity related 1o our “Loans
to timeshare owners™ notes receivable reserve for 2006 and 2007.

(B in millions) Notes Receivable Reserve

Year-end 2005 batance § -
Establishment of reserve 25
Additions for current year sales 20
Write-offs (16)

Year-end 2006 balance 29
Additions for current year sales 29
Write-offs (24)
Other (15)

Year-end 2007 balance $19
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11 ASSET SECURITIZATIONS

We periodically sell, without recourse, through special purpose enti-
ties, notes receivable originated by our Timeshare segment in con-
nection with the sale of imeshare interval and fractional products.
We continue to service the notes and transfer all proceeds collected
to special purpose entities. We retain servicing assets and other
interests in the notes and account for these assets and interests as
residual interests. The interests are fimited to the present value of
cash available after paying financing expenses and program fees
and absorbing credit losses. Prior to the start of the 2007 fiscal
year, we measured servicing assets at the date of sale at their allo-
cated previous carrying amount based on relative fair value, classi-
fied those assets as held to maturity under the provisions of FAS
No. 115 and recorded those assets at amortized cost,

On December 30, 20086, the first day of fiscal year 2007, we
adopted FAS No. 156. In conjunction with the adoption of FAS No.
156, we elected to subsequently measure our servicing assets
using the fair value method. Under the fair value method, we carry
servicing assets on the balance sheet at fair value, and report the
changes in fair value, primarity due to changes in valuation inputs
and assumptions and to the collection or realization of expected
cash flows, in earnings in the period in which the change occurs.

To determine the fair value of servicing assets, we use a valuation
model that calculates the present value of estimated future net servic-
ing income, which is based on the monthly fee we receive for servicing
the securitized notes. We use market assumptions in the valuation
modei, including estimates of prepayment speeds, default rates, and
discount rates, We have inherent rsk for changes in the fair value of
the senvicing asset but do not deem the risk significant and therefore,
do not use other financial instrurnents to mitigate this risk.

Effective December 30, 20086, upon the remeasurement of cur
servicing assets at fair value, we recorded a cumulative-effect adjust-
ment to the 2007 beginning balance of retained eamings of $1 mil-
lion after-tax ($2 millon pratax) in our Consolidated Statements of
Sharsholders’ Equity. Accordingly, senvicing assets totaled $11 mil-
lion at year-end 2006 and $13 milion on the first day of fiscal year
2007. At year-end 2007, servicing assets totaled $15 million.

The table below reconciles the servicing assets balance at year-
end 2008, to the beginning balance on Decamber 30, 2006.

(% in millions) Servicing Assels

Balance at year-end 2006 (December 29, 2006) $11

Remeasurement upon adoption of FAS No. 156 2
Beginning balance at December 30, 2006 $13

The changes in servicing assets, measured using the fair value
method, were:

(% in millions) Servicing Assets
Fair value, beginning of period

{December 30, 2006} $13
Servicing from securitizations 6
Changes in fair value® (4

Fair value, end of period (December 28, 2007) $15

(1) Principally represents changes dua tc collection/realization of expected cash flows
over time and changes in fair value due to changes in key variabilos listed below,

Contractually specified servicing fees, late fees, and ancillary
fees earned for 2007, 2006, and 2005 totaled $6 million, $5 million,
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and $4 million, respectively, and were reflected within the changes
in fair value to the servicing assets noted above.

We have included gains from the sales of timeshare notes
receivable totaling $81 million in 2007 and $77 million in 2006
within the “Timeshare sales and services” revenue caption in our
Consolidated Statements of Income. Gains from the sale of time-
share notes receivable of $69 million in 2005 are in the “Gains
and other income” caption in the accompanying Consolidated
Statements of Income. For additional information regarding the clas-
sification of gains from the sale of timeshare notes receivable, see
the “Basis of Presentation” caption in Footnote No. 1, *Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.” In addition, in September 2006, we
repurchased notes receivable with a principal balance of $31 million
and in November 20086, sold those notes, along with $249 million of
additional notes in a $280 milion note securitization. The gain on
the sale of these notes is included in the $77 million gain noted ear-
lier in this paragraph.

We had residual interests of $238 million and $221 million,
respectively, at year-end 2007 and year-end 2006, which are
recorded in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as other
iong-term receivables of $157 million and $137 million, respectively,
and other current assets of $81 million and $84 million, respactively.

At the dates of sale and at the end of each reporting period,
we estimate the fair value of residual interests, including servicing
assets, using a discounted cash flow model. These transactions
may wtilize interest rate swaps to protect the net interest margin
associated with the beneficial interest. We report in income,
changes in the fair value of residual interests, including servicing
assets, as they are considered trading securities under the prowi-
sions of FAS No. 115. During 2007, 2006, and 2005, we recorded
trading gains of $30 million, $19 million, and $2 millicn, respectively.
We used the following key assumptions to measure the fair value of
the residual interests, including servicing assets, at the date of sale
during 2007, 2006, and 2005: average discount rate of 9.02 per-
cent, 9.22 percent, and 8.56 percent, respeclively; average
expected annual prepayments, including defaults, of 25.02 percent,
25.22 percent, and 23.56 percent, respectively; expected weighted
average life of prepayable notes receivable, excluding prepayments
and defaults, of 75 months, 70 months, and 79 months, respec-
tively; and expected weighted average life of prepayable notes
receivable, including prepayments and defaults of 34 months, 32
menths, and 38 months, respectively. Our key assumptions are
based on experience.

We used the following key assumptions in measuring the fair
value of the residual interests, including servicing assets, in our 11
outstanding note sales at year-end 2007: an average discount rate
of 7.96 percent; an average expected annual prepayment rate,
including defaults, of 19.58 percent; an expected weighted average
life of prepayable notes receivable, excluding prepayments and
defaults, of 62 months; and an expected weighted average life of
prepayable notes receivable, including prepayments and defaults of
35 months.

Cash flows between us and third-party purchasers during 2007,
20086, and 2005, were as follows: net proceeds to us from new
timeshare note sales of $515 milion, $508 million, and $399 million,
respectively; repurchases by us of defaulted Joans {over 150 days
overdue) of $30 million, $24 million, and $23 million, respectively;
repurchases by us of other loans in 2006 of $31 milion; servicing
fees received by us of $6 million, $5 million, and $4 million, respec-
tively; and cash flows received from our retained interests of $100
million, $31 milion, and $86 million, respectively.

At year-end 2007, $1,263 milion of principal remained outstand-
ing in all sales in which we had a retained residual interest. Delin-
quencies of more than 90 days at year-end 2007 amounted to




$10 million. Existing reserves were adequate for defautted loans that
were resolved during 2007. We have been able to resell timeshare
units underlying defaulted loans without incurring material losses.

We completed a stress test on the fair value of the residual inter-
ests as of year-end 2007 with the objective of measuring the
change in value associated with independent changes in individual
key variables. The methodotogy used applied unfavorable changes
that would be considered statistically significant for the key variables
of prepayment rate, discount rate, and weighted average remaining
term. The fair value of the residual interests was $238 million at
year-end 2007, before we applied any stress test changes. An
increase of 100 basis points in the prepayment rate would decrease
the year-end valuation by $4 milion, or 1.9 percent, and an increase
of 200 basis points in the prepayment rate would decrease the
year-end valuation by $3 million, or 3.7 percent. An increase of 100
basis points in the discount rate weould decrease the year-end valu-
ation by $5 milion, or 2.3 percert, and an increase of 200 basis
points in the discount rate would decrease the year-end valuation
by $11 milion, or 4.4 percent. A decline of two months in the
weighted average remaining term would decrease the year-end val-
uation by $3 million, or 1.1 percent, and a decling of four months in
the weighted average remaining term would decrease the year-end
valuation by $5 million, or 2.3 percent.

12 ionc-term peeT

Our long-term debt at year-end 2007 and year-end 2006 consisted
of the following:

(® in mitlions} © 2007 | 2006
I
Senior Notes: ;
Series C, interest rate of 7.875%, face amount |
af $76, maturing September 15, 2009 |
(effective interest rate of 8.018%) i $ 786|¢% 78
|

Series E, interest rate of 7.000%, face amount
of $91, maturing January 15, 2008 (effective
interest rate of 7.194%) ; 21} 91

Series F, interest rate of 4.625%, face amount
of $350, maturing June 15, 2012 (effective
interest rate of 4.796%})

Series G, interest rate of 5.810%, face amount
of $427, maturing November 10, 2015
(effective interest rate of 6.5719%)

349 349

402 399

Serigs H, interest rate of 6.200%, face amount
of $350, maturing June 15, 2016 (effective
interest rate of 6.294%)

Series |, interest rate of 6.375%, face amount
of $350, maturing June 15, 2017 (effective
interest rate of 6.439%)

Series J, interest rate of 5.625%, face amount
of $400, maturing February 15, 2013
{effective interest rate of 5.661%)

349 349

397 -

Commercial paper, average interest rate of
5.4% at year-end 2007

Mortgage debt, average interest rate of 7.2% at
year-end 2007, maturing through May 1, 2025 196 1687

585 3156

Other L174 87
. 2,985 | 1833
Less current portion L (175) (15)
| $2,790 | $1.818

As of year-end 2007, all debt, other than mortgage debt and
%1 milion of other debt, is unsecured.

During 2007, we amended and restated our multicurrency
revolving credit agreement, originally entered into in 2005, to
increase the aggregate borrowings and letters of credit available
under the facility from $2 billion to $2.5 billion and to extend the
expiration of the facility from 2011 to 2012. The availability of revolv-
ing credit horrowings supports our commercial paper program.
Borrowings under the facility bear interest at the London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus a spread, based on our public debt rat-
ing. Additionally, we pay quarterty fees on the facility at a rate also
based on our public debt rating.

In 2005 we began issuing short-term commercial paper in
Europe in addition to our long-standing commercial paper program
in the United States. Our United States and European commercial
paper issuances are subject to the availability of the commercial
paper market, as we have no commitment from buyers to purchase
our commercial paper. We reserve unused capacity under our credit
facility to repay outstanding commercial paper borrowings in the
event that the commercial paper market is not available to us for
any reason when outstanding borrowings mature. We classify com-
mercial paper as long-term debt based on our ability and intent to
refinance it on a long-term basis.

During 2007, wa issued $350 million of aggregate principal
amount of 8,375 percent Series | Senior Notes due 2017. The offer-
ing of the Notes ciosed on June 25, 2007, We received net pro-
ceeds before expenses of approximately $346 million from this
offering, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated
expenses of the offering. We used these proceeds for general
corporate purposes, including the repayment of commarcial
paper borrowings. Interest on these notes is paid on June 15 and
December 15 of each year, and commenced on December 15,
2007. The notes will mature on June 15, 2017, and are redeem-
able, in whole ¢r in part, at any time and from time to time under
the terms provided in the form of note.

Also in 2007, we issued $40C million of aggregate principal
amount of 5.625 percent Series J Senior Notes due 2013. The
offering of the notes closed on Cctober 19, 2007. We received net
proceeds before expenses of approximately $396 mitiion from this
offering, after deducting the underwriting discount and estimated
expenses of the offering. We used these proceeds for general cor-
porate purposes, including working capital, capital expenditures,
acquisitions, stock repurchases, and the repayment of commercial
paper borrowings. Interest on these notes is paid on February 15
and August 15 of each year, and commenced on February 15,
2008. The notes will mature on February 15, 2013, and are
redeamable, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time
vnder the terms provided in the form of note.

Both the Series 1 Senior Notes and the Series J Senior Notes
were issued under an indenture with The Bank of New York, succes-
sor to JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. {formerly known as The Chase
Manhattan Bank), as trustee, dated as of November 16, 1998,

We are in compliance with covenants in our loan agreements,
which require the maintenance of certain financial ratios and mini-
murn shareholders’ equity and also include, among other things,
limitations on additional indebtedness and the pledging of assets.

Aggregate debt maturities are: 2008-$175 million; 2009-$118
million; 2010-$51 million; 2011-$19 milion; 2012-$360 million; and
$2,242 million thereafter.

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized, was $115 mil-
lion in 2007, $73 milion in 2006, and $87 million in 2005.

Subsequent to year-end 2007, on January 15, 2008, we made a
$94 million cash payment of principal and interest to retire, at matu-
rity, all of our outstanding Series E Senior Notes.
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1 SELF-INSURANCE RESERVE FOR LOSSES AND
LOSS ADJUSTMENT EXPENSES

The activity in the reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses
is summarized as follows:

(% in mitlions) 2007 | 2006
Balance at beginning of year $2M $264
Less: reinsurance recoverable (16) (24)
Net baiance at beginning of year 255 ] 240
Incurred related to:
Current Year 120 122
Pricr year (34) (20}
Total incurred 86 102
Paid related 1o:
Current Year {31) {37)
Prior year (50) {(50)
Total paid (e1) 87}
Net balance at end of year 260 255
Add: reinsurance recoverable 14 Y16
Balance at end of year $274 $271

The provision for unpaid loss and loss adjustment expenses
decreased by $34 milion and $20 million in 2007 and 2008,
respectively, as a result of changes in estimates from insured avents
of the prior years due to changes in underwriting experience and
frequency and severity trends. The year-end 2007 self-insurance
reserve of $274 million is comprised of a current portion of $32 mil-
lion and long-term portion of $182 million. The year-end 2006 self-
insurance reserve of $271 million is comprised of a current portion
of $87 million and a long-term portion of $184 million.

14 sHareHoLDERS’ EQUITY

Eight hundred million shares of our Class A Gommon Stock, with a
par value of $.01 per share, are authorized, and 10 million shares of
preferred stock, without par value, are authorized. As of the 2007
fiscal year-end, there were 357.1 million shares of our Class A
Common Stock outstanding and no shares of our preferred stock
waere outstanding.

On March 27, 1988, our Board of Directors adopted a share-
holder rights plan under which one preferred stock purchase right
was distributed for each share of our Class A Gormmoen Stock.
Each right entitles the holder to buy 1/1000th of a share of a newly
issued series of junior participating preferred stock of the Company
at an exercise price of $175. The rights may not presently be exer-
cised, but will be exercisable 10 days after a person or group
acquires beneficial ownership of 20 percent or more of our Class A
Common Stock or begins & tender or exchange for 30 percent or
more of cur Class A Common Stock. Shares owned by a person
ar group on March 27, 1998, and held continuously thereafter, are
aexempt for purposes of determining beneficial ownership under the
rights plan. The rights are nonvcting and will expire on March 27,
2008, unless previously exercised or redeemed by us for $.01 each,
If we are involved in a merger or certain other business combina-
tions not approved by the Beard of Directors prior to the expiration
of the rights, each right entitles its holder, other than the acquiring
person or group, 10 purchase common stock of either the Company
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or the acquirer having a value of twice the exercise price of the
right. The Company does not plan to extend the shareholder rights
plan or the rights beyond their March 27, 2008 expiration,

Accumulated other comprehensive income of $51 million at
year-end 2007 primarily consisted of gains totaling $6 milion asso-
ciated with available-for-sale securities and gains totaling $46 million
associated with foreign currency translation adjustments, partially
offset by net losses of $5 milion associated with interest rate swap
agreement cash flow hedges. Accumulated other comprehensive
income of $44 million at year-end 2006 primarily consisted of gains
totaling $35 million associated with available-for-sale securities and
gains totaling $12 milion associated with foreign currency transla-
tion adjustments.

15 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

We believe that the fair values of current assets and current liabili-
ties approximate their reported carrying amounts. The fair values of
non-current financial assets, liabilities, and derivatives are shown in
the fallowing table.

| At Year-end 2007 | At Year-end 2006

Camrying  Fair Carrying Fair
% in millions) Amount Value Amount Value

MNotes and other

long-term assets $ 996 $1002 ! 3% 993 $ 996

Long-term debt and other
long-term liabilities

$(2,967) ${3,050) | $(1,816) $(1,847)
Derivative instruments l $ M (Nn|s 6% b

We value notes and other receivables based on the expected
future cash flows discounted at risk-adjusted rates. We determine
valuations for long-term debt and other long-term liabilities based
on qucted market prices or expected future payments discounted
at risk-adjusted rates.

16 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

During 2007, we entered into interest rate swap agreements to
manage the volatility of the U,S. Treasury component of the interest
rate risk associated with the forecasted issuance of our Series | and
Series J Senior Notes. During 2006, we entered into an interest rate
swap agreement to manage the volatility of the U.S, Treasury com-
ponent of the interest rate risk associated with the forecasted
issuance of our Series H Notes. During 2005, we entered into two
similar instruments in conjunction with the forecasted issuance of
our Series F Notes and the exchange of our Series C and Series E
Senior Notes for new Series G Notes. All five swaps were desig-
nated as cash flow hedges under FAS No. 133, *Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities” (“FAS No. 133" and
were terminated upon pricing of the notes. All five swaps were
highly effective in offsetting fluctuations in the U.S. Treasury com-
ponent. Thus, there was no net gain or loss reported in earnings
during 2007, 2008, or 2005. The net losses for these swaps were
$4 million in 2007 associated with the Series I and Series J Senior
Notes, zero in 2006 associated with the Series H Senior Notes, and
$2 million in 2005 associated with the Series F and Series G Senior
Notas were recorded in other comprehensive income and are being
amortized to interest expense using the interest method over the life
of the notes.




At year-end 2007, we had four outstanding interest raie swap
agreements to manage interest rate risk associated with the resid-
ual interests we retain in conjunction with our timeshare note sales.
Historically, we were required by purchasers and/or rating agencies
to utilize interest rate swaps to protect the excess spread within our
sold note pools. The aggregate notional amount of the swaps is
$157 million, and they expire through 2022, These swaps are not
accounted for as hedges under FAS No. 133. The fair value of the
swaps was a net asset of $2 million at year-end 2007 and $5 mil-
lion at year-end 20086. For the outstanding interest rate swaps, we
recorded a $3 million net loss during 2007, a $1 million net loss
during 2006 and a $2 million net gain during 2005.

During 2007, 2006, and 2005, we entered into interest rate
swaps to manage interest rate risk associated with forecasted time-
share note sales. During 2007, five swaps were designated as cash
flow hedges under FAS No. 133 and were highly effective in offset-
ting interest rate fluctuations. The amount of the ineffectiveness was
immaterial. in 2007, we terminated two of those five swaps and
recognized no gain or toss from the sales of Timeshare segment
notes receivable. The aggregate notional amount of the remaining
threa swaps is $238 million at year-end 2007, and thay expire
through 2012. The fair value of the remaining three swaps was a
net liability of $7 million at year-end 2007, For the outstanding inter-
est rate swaps, we recorded in 2007 a $7 million net loss in other
comprehensive income. During 2008, two swaps (the “2006
swaps”) wera designated as cash fiow hedges under FAS No. 133
and were highly effective in offsetting interest rate fluctuations. In
2008, we terminated the 2006 swaps and recognized a net gain of
$1 million in the gains from the sales of Timeshare segment notes
receivable. During 2005, one swap was designated as a cash flow
hedge under FAS No. 133 and was highly effective in offsetting
interest rate fluctuations. The amount of the ineffectiveness was
immaterial and upon termination we recognized a net gain of $2
million in gains from the sales of Timeshare segment notes receiv-
able. The second swap entered into in 2005 did not qualify for
hedge accounting. The non-qualifying swap resulted in a loss of
$3 million during 2005, which was also recognized in gains from
the sales of Timeshare segment notes receivable.

During 2007, 2006, and 2005, we entered into forward foreign
exchange contracts to manage the foreign currency exposure
retated to certain monetary assets. The aggregate doflar equivalent
of the notional amount of the contracts was $133 million at year-
end 2007. The forward exchange contracts do not qualify as
hedges in accordance with FAS No. 133. The fair value of the for-
ward contracts was an asset of $2 million at year-end 2007 and
zero at year-end 2006. We recorded a $10 million loss during 2007,
a $34 million loss during 2006, and a $26 million gain in 2005, relat-
ing to these forward foreign exchange contracts. The net gains and
losses for all years were recorded as general, administrative, and
other expense and were offset by income and losses recorded from
translating the related monetary assets denominated in forelgn cur-
rencies into U.S. dollars.

During 2007, 2006, and 2005, we entered into foreign exchange
aption contracts to hedge the potential volatility of earnings and
cash flows associated with variations in foreign exchange rates. The
aggregate dollar equivalent of the notional amounts of the contracts
was $86 million at year-end 2007. These contracts have terms of
less than one year and are classified as cash flow hedges. Changes
in their fair values are recorded as a component of other compre-
hensive income. The fair value of the option contracts was approxi-
mately $1 milfion at year-end 2007 and zero at year-end 2006. We
recorded an immaterial amount in general, administrative, and other
expense due to changes in the time value of these contracts, which

is excluded from the assessment of cur hedge effectiveness. The
hedges were highly effective and there was no net gain or loss
reported in earnings for 2007, 2008, and 2005. As of year-end
2007, the deferred gains or losses on existing contracts accumu-
lated in other comprehensive income that we expect to reclassify
into earnings over the next year were zero.

Buring 2007, we entered into foreign exchange forward contracts
to hedge forecasted transactions for contracts denominated in for-
eign currencies. The aggregate dollar equivalent of the notional
amounts of the contracts was $58 million at year-end 2007, These
contracts have tarms of less than three vears and are classified as
cash flow hedges. Changes in their fair value are recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income. The fair value of the for-
ward contracts was zero at year-end 2007. We recorded an immate-
rial amount in general, administrative, and other expense due to
changes in the time value of these contracts, which is excluded from
the assessment of our hedge effectiveness. The hedges were highly
effective and there was no gain or loss reported in 2007, As of year-
end 2007, the deferred gains or losses on existing contracts accu-
mulated in other comprehensive income that we expect to reclassify
into earnings over the next thres years wera $1 million.

During 2007, 2006, and 20056, we entered into {orward foreign
exchange contracts to manage currency exchange rate volatility
associated with certain investments in foreign operations. The con-
tracts offset the gains and losses assoclated with translation adjust-
ments for various investments in foreign operations. One contract
was designated as a hedge in the net investment of a foreign oper-
ation under FAS No. 133 at year-end 2006. The hedge was highly
effective and resuited in a $1 milion net toss for 2007, no net gain
or loss for 2006, and a $1 million net loss for 2005 in the foreign
currency translation adjustment section of other comprehensive
income. Certain contracts did not qualify as hedges under FAS No.
133 and resulted in no gain or loss for 2007, a loss of $17 million
for 2006, and a gain of $3 milion for 2005, impacting our general,
administrative, and other expenses. No contracts remained at year-
end 2007, One contract remained at year-end 2006, which had an
aggregate dollar equivalent of the notional amount of $43 million
and a fair value of zero. Contracts remaining at year-end 2005 had
an aggregate dollar equivalent of the notional amount of $229 mil-
lion and a fair value of approximately zero.

During 2007 and 2008, in response to high oil prices and uncer-
tainty surrounding the potential phase out of tax cradits, we entered
into oil price hedges in conjunction with our synthetic fuel operation.
These hedges do not qualify as cash flow hedges under FAS No. 133.
Therefore, changes in the fair values of these instruments are marked-
to-market through interest income at each reporting period. Corres-
pondingly, we recorded a net loss of $8 million during 2007 and a net
loss of $2 milion during 2006. At year-end 2007, hedges with a total
fair value of $4 million remained outstanding. At year-end 2008,
hedges with a total fair value of $5 milien remained outstanding.

During 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement
under which wa receive a floating rate of interest and pay a fixed rate
of interest. The swap modifies our interest rate exposure by effec-
tively converting a note receivable with a fixed rate to a floating rate.
The aggregate national amount of the swap is $92 milion and it
matures in 2010. The swap is classified as a fair value hedge under
FAS No. 133 and the change in the fair value of the swap, as well as
the change in the fair value of the underlying note receivable, is rec-
ognized in interest income. The fair value of the swap was a $2 mil-
lion liability at year-end 2007, and a $1 million asset at year-end
2006 and 2005. The hedge is highly effective and, therefore, no net
gain or loss was reported during 2007, 2006, and 2005.
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17 contingencies

Guarantees
We issue guarantees to certain lenders and hotel owners primarily
to obtain long-term management contracts. The guaranteas gener-
ally have a stated maximum amount of funding and a term of three
to 10 years. The terms of guarantees to lenders generally require us
to fund if cash flows from hotel operations are inadequate to cover
annual debt service or to repay the loan at the end of the term.
The terms of the guarantees to hotel owners generally require us to
fund if the hotels do not attain specified levels of operating profit.
Guarantes fundings to lenders and hotel owners are generally
recoverable as loans repayable to us out of future hotel cash flows
and/or proceeds from the sale of hotels. We alse enter into project
completion guarantees with certain lenders in conjunction with
hotels and Timeshare segmert properties that we or our joint ven-
ture partners are building.

The maximum potential amount of future fundings for guarantees
where we are the primary obligor and the carrying amount of the lia-
bility for expected future fundings at year-end 2007 are as follows:

Maximum Liability for Future
Potential Amount Fundings at
Guarantee Type of Future Fundings Year-end 2007
(% in millions)
Debt service $ 35 $1
Operating profit 204 31
Other 76 7
Total guarantees where we
are the primary obligor $315 $39

Our guaraniees of $315 million listed in the preceding table
include $41 million of operating profit guarantees that will not be in
effect until the undertying properties open and we begin to operate
the properties.

The guarantees of $315 million in the preceding table do not
include $245 million of guarantees that expire in the years 2011
through 2013, related to Senior Living Services lease cbligations
and lifecare bonds for which we are secondarily liable. Sunrise
Senior Living, Inc. (“Sunrise”) is the primary obligor of the leases
and a portion of the lifecare bonds, and CNL Rstirement Properties,
Inc. (“CNL™, which subsequently merged with Health Care Property
Investors, Inc., is the primary obligor of the remainder of the lifecare
bonds. Prior to our sale of the Sanior Living Services business in
2003, these preexisting guarantees were guarantees by us of obli-
gations of consolidated Senior Living Services subsidiaries. Sunrise
and CNL have indemnified us for any guarantee fundings we may
be called on to make in connection with these lease obligations and
lifecare bonds. We do not expect to fund under the guarantess.

The table also dees nat include lease obligations for which we
became secondarity liable when we acquired the Renaissance Hotel
Group N.V. in 1997, consisting of annual rent payments of approxi-
mately $7 million and total remaining rent payments through the ini-
tial term of approximately $77 million. Most of these obligations
expire at the end of the 2023 calendar year. CTF had originally
rmade available €35 million in cash collateral in the event that we
are required to fund under such guarantees (approximately €7 mil-
lion [$11 million) remained at year-end 2007). As CTF obtains
releases from the landlords and these hotels exit the system, our
contingent liability exposure of approximately $77 million will
decline. Since the time we assumed these guarantees, we have not
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funded any amounts and we do not expect to fund any amounts
under these guarantees in the future.

Furthermore, in addition to the guarantees noted in the preced-
ing table, we have provided a project completion guarantee to a
lender for a project with an estimated aggregate total cost of $586
million. Payments for cost overruns for this project will be satisfied
by the joint venture via contributions from the partners, and we are
liable on a several basis with our partners in an amount equal to our
pro rata ownership in the joint venture, which is 34 percent. We do
not expect to fund under the guarantee. We have also provided a
project completion guarantee to another lender for a project with an
estimated aggregate total cost of $80 million. Paymants for cost
overruns for this project wilt be satisfied by the joint venture via con-
tributions from the partners, and we are liable on a several basis
with our partners in an amount equat to our pro rata ownarship in
the joint venture, which is 25 percent. We do not expect to fund
under this guarantee. The carrying value of the liabilities associated
with these two project completion guarantees is $7 million.

In addition to the guarantees described in the preceaing para-
graphs, in conjunction with financing cbtained for specific projects
or properties owned by joint ventures in which we are a party, we
may provide industry standard indemnifications to the lender for
loss, liability, or damage occurring as a result of the acticns of the
other joint venturs owner or our own actions.

Commitments and Letters of Credit

In addition to the guarantees noted previously, as of year-end 2007,
we had extended approximately $4 million of loan commitments to
owners of lodging properties, under which we expect to fund approx-
imately $2 million within one year. We do not expect to fund the
remaining $2 million of commitmants, which expire after five years,

At year-end 2007, we also have commitments to invest up to
$44 million of equity for mincrity interests in partnerships that plan
to purchase North American full-service and limited-service proper-
ties or purchase or develop hotel anchored mixed-use real estate
projects, which expire as follows: $14 milion in one to two years;
and $30 million in three to five years. As of year-end 2007, we also
have a commitment o invest up to $25 million in a joint venture of
which we have funded $12 million and have $13 million remaining
that we expect to fund within one year. As of year-end 2007, we
also had a commitment to invest up to $29 million (€20 million) in a
joint venture in which we are an investor. We currently do not
expect to fund under this commitment.

At year-end 2007, wa had $96 million of letters of credit out-
standing on our behalf, the majority of which related to our self-
insurance programs. Surety bonds issued on our behalf at year-end
2007, totaled $468 million, the majority of which were requested by
federal, state or local governments related to ocur lodging operations,
including our Timeshare segment and self-insurance programs.

Synthetic Fuel

The tax credits avallable under the Internal Revenue Code for the
production and sale of synthetic fuels were established by
Congress to encourage the development of alternative domestic
energy sources. Congress deemed that the incentives provided by
the tax credits would not be necessary if the price of oil increased
beyond certain thresholds as prices would then provide a more nat-
ural market for these alternative fuels. As a result, the tax credits
available under the Internal Revenue Code for the production and
sale of synthetic fuel in any given calendar year are phased out If
the Reference Price of a barrel of il for that year falls within a spec-
ified range. The Reference Price of a barrel of oil is an estimate of
the annual average wellhead price per barrel of domestic crude ail




and is determined for each calendar year by the Secretary of the
Treasury by April 1 of the following year. In 2005 and 2006, the
Reference Price was roughly equal to 89 percent and 80 percent,
respectively, of the average price in those years of the benchmark
NYMEX futures contract for a barrel of light, sweet crude oil. The
price range within which the credit is phased cut was set in 1980
and is adjusted annually for inflation. In 2008, the Reference Price
phase-out range was $55.06 to $69.12. Because the Reference
Price of a barret of oil for 2006 was within that range, at $59.68,
there was a 33 percent reduction of the tax credits available for
synthetic fuel produced and sold in 2006.

Assuming a 2.5 percent inflation adjustment factor for 2007, and
assuming the ratio of the Reference Price to the average price of
the benchmark NYMEX futures contract remains the same for
November and December 2007 as it has been in the five preceding
months, we currently estimate that the tax credits avallable for pro-
duction and sale of synthetic fuel in 2007 would begin to be phased
out if the average price of the benchmark NYMEX futures centract
in 2007 exceeds approximately $62 and would be fully phased out
if the average price of the benchmark NYMEX futures contract in
2007 exceads approximately $78. For the year ended December
28, 2007, our results reflect a provision for an estimated 70.71 per-
cent tax credit phase-out as a result of high ail prices. The average
price of the benchmark NYMEX futures contract for 2007, through
December 31, 2007, was approximatsly $72.41.

Late in 2006 and early in 2007, we entered into hedge agree-
ments to minimize operating losses that could occur if more than a
majority of the tax credits is phased out in 2007.

See Footnote No. 2, “Discontinued Operations,” earlier in this
report, for additional information refated to the synthetic fuel opera-
tions, including infermation related to the cessation of synthetic fuel
production permanently in November 2007,

Investment in Leveraged Lease

Historically, we had a $23 miliion investment in an aircraft leveraged
lease with Delta Air Lines, Inc. (“Delta”) which we acquired in 1994,
The gross investment was comprised of rentals receivable and the
residua! value of the aircraft offset by unearned income. Cn
September 14, 2005, Delta filed for bankruptcy protection under
Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and informed us that it
wished to restructure the lease. As a result, our investment was
impaired and we had recorded pretax charges of approximately
$18 million through 2006. Wa recorded an additional $5 million loss
refated to this investment in fiscal 2007. We have no remaining
exposure related to this historical investment.

18 Leases

We have summarized our future obligations under operating leases
at year-end 2007, below:

Fiscal Year Minimum Lease Payments
% in mitfons)
2008 $ 142
2009 147
2010 139
201 126
2012 123
Thereafter 1,156
Total minimum lease payments where
we are the primary obligor $1,833

Most leases have initial terms of up to 20 years and contain one
or more renewal options, generally for five- or 10-year perlods.
These leases provide for minimum rentals and additional rentals
based on our operations of the leased property. The total minimum
lease payments above include $439 million, representing obligations
of consolidated subsidiaries that are non-recourse to Marriott
International, Inc.

As discussed in Footnote No. 8, “Acquisitions and Dispositions,”
we became secondarily liable for annual rert payments for certain
hotels when we acquired the Renaissance Hotel Group N.V. in 1997.
At year-end 2007, we continued fo manage 14 of these hotels under
long-term management agreements; however, due to certain provi-
sions in the management agreements, we account for these con-
tracts as operating ieases. CTF placed funds into trust accounts to
cover possible shertfalls in cash flow necessary to meet rent pay-
ments under these leases. In turn, we released CTF affiliates from
their guarantees in connection with these leases. Approximately $38
milion remained in these trust accounts at year-end 2007. Minimum
lease payments relating to these leases, which are not reflected in
the $1,833 million in the preceding table are as follows: $30 million in
gach of 2008, 2009, and 2010; $26 milion in 2011; $17 milion in
2012; and $33 milion thereafter, for a total of $166 million.

The compaosition of rent expense for the last three fiscal years
associated with operating leases is detailed in the following table:

(® in millions) " 2007 2006 2005
Minimum rentals , 8272 : $253 321
Additional rentals L1000 | 109 109

sa72 | $362 3320

We have summarized our future obligations under capital leases
at year-end 2007, in the following table:

Fiscal Year Minimum Lease Payments

(% in millions)
2008 $1
2009 1
2010 1
2011 1
2012 1
Thereafter 7
2

Total minimum lease payments 1
Less: Amount representing interest (5)

Present value of net minimum lease payments § 7

The accompanying Consolidated Balance Shests for year-end
2007, included $7 milion in the “Long-term debt” caption that rep-
resented the present value of net minimum tease payments associ-
ated with capital leases.

19 BusiNess seamenTs

We are a divarsified hospitality company with operations in five busi-
ness segments:
s North American Full-Service Lodging, which includes
Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Marriott Conference Centers,
JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels & Resorts,
and Renaissance ClubSport properties located in the conti-
nental United States and Canada;
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n  North American Limited-Service Lodging, which includes
Courtyard, Fairfield Inn, SpringHill Suites, Residence Inn,
TownePtace Suites, and Marriott ExecuStay properties
located in the continental United States and Canada;

s International Lodging, which includes Marrictt Hotels &
Resorts, JW Marrictt Hotels & Resorts, Renaissance Hotels &
Resorts, Courtyard, Fairfield inn, Residence inn, Ramada
International, and Marriott Executive Apartments properties
located outside the continental United States and Canada:;

»  Luxury Lodging, which includes The Ritz-Carlton and
Bulgari Hotels & Resorts properties worldwide; and

= Timeshare, which includes the development, marketing,
cperation, and sale of timeshare, fractional ownership, and
residential properties worldwide under Marriott Vacation
Club, The Ritz-Carlten Ciub, Grand Residences by Marriott,
and Herizons by Marriott Vacation Club.

n addition to the segments above, in 2007 we exited the syn-
thetic fuel business, which was formerly a separate segment but
which we now repert under discontinued operations.

In addition to the brands noted above, in 2007 we announced
our new brand of family-friendly resorts and spas, “Nickelodeon
Resorts by Marrioft” and a new brand of lifestyle boutique hotels,
“Edition.” At year-end 2007, no properties were yet open under
either brand.

In 20086, we analyzed our internal reporting process and imple-
mented changes in the fourth quarter that were designed to
improve efficiency and, as part of this process, we evaluated the
impact ot segment reporting. Accordingly, we now repert five oper-
ating segments, and no longer allocate Indirect administrative
expenses to our segments. We reflect this revised segment report-
ing throughout this repert for all periods presented, and present
historical figures in a manner that is congistent with the revised seg-
ment reporting. See also the Form 8-K that we filed on March 19,
2007, furnishing quarterly Revenues and Income from Continuing
Operations for each of 2006 and 2005 in the new segment format.

We evaluate the performance of our segments based primarily
on the results of the segment without allecating corporate
expenses, interest expense, or indirect general, administrative, and
other expenses. With the exception of the Timeshare segment, we
do not allocate interest income to our segments. Because note
sales are an integral part of the Timeshare segment, we include
nete sale gaing in our Timeshare segment results. We include inter-
est income associated with Timeshare segment notes in our
Timeshare segment results because financing sales are an integral
part of that segment's business. We also allocate other gains or
losses as well as equity in earnings or losses from our joint ventures
and divisional general, administrative, and other expenses to each
of our segments. “Other unallocated corporate” represents that por-
tion of our revenues, general, administrative, and other expenses,
equity in earnings or losses, and other gains or losses that are not
allocable to our segments.

We aggregate the brands presented within our North American
Full-Service, North American Limited-Service, International, Luxury,
and Timeshare segments considering their similar economic charac-
teristics, types of customers, distribution channels, the regulatory
business environment of the brands and operations within each seg-
ment and our organizationat and management reporting structure.
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Revenues
(% in millions} 2007 | 2006 2005
North American Full-Service
Segment $5476 | $ 5196 $ 5116
North American Limited-Service
Segment 2,198 2,060 1,888
International Segment 1,594 1,411 1,017
buxury Segment 1,576 1,423 1,333
Timeshare Segment 2,065 1,840 1,721
Total segment revenues 12,909 11,830 11,073
Other unzliccated corporate 81 65 56
| $12,990 | $11.905 $11,120
Income from Continuing Operations
(% in millions) 2007 2006 2005
North American Full-Service
Segment $ 4187 % 455 § 349
North American Limited-Service
Segment 461 380 303
International Segment 2n 237 133
Luxury Segment 72 63 45
Timeshare Segment 306 280 27
Total segment financial results 1,588 1,415 1,101
Other unallocated corporate {287) (251) (219)
Interest income, provision for loan
losses, and interest expense {163} (72) 55)
Income taxes (441) (380) (284)
$ 697 (% 712 $ 6543
Equity in Earnings {Losses) of Equity Method Investees
{3 in miflions) 2007 2006 2005
North American Full-Service
Segment $ 3% 2 8 21
North American Limited-Service
Segment 2 - (6}
International Segment 3 - 20
Luxury Segment (4) (2) (1}
Timeshare Segment 10 2 1
Total segment equity in
earnings {losses) 14 {2) 35
Other unzllocated corporate 1 5 1
$ 153 3 & 36
Depreciation and Amortization
(% in millions) 2007 2006 2005
North American Full-Service
Segment $ 26.% 24 § 19
North American Limited-Service
Segment 23 24 24
International Segment 23 23 18
Luxury Segment 17 7 10
Timeshare Segment 39 39 46
Total segment depreciation
and amortization 127 17 117
Other unaliocated corporate 62 61 57
Discontinued operations 8 10 10
$ 197 (% 188 § 184




Assets
At A At
Year-end! Year-end Year-end
(% in millions) 2007 2006 2005
North Arnerican Full-Service ;

Segment $1,322 F $1,104  $1,309
North American Limited-Service i

Segment 486 | 565 613
International Segment 855 : 1,225 1,333
Luxury Segment 748 755 656
Timeshare Segment 3,142 2,560 2,454

Total segment assets { 6,553 l 6,209 6,365
QOther unallocated corporate I 2,338 E 2,288 2,062
Discontinued operations : 53 | o1 103

| $8,042 | 98,588 $8,530
Equity Method investments
At At At
Year-end| Year-end Year-end
(% in millions) 2007 2006 2005
North American Full-Service E

Segment $ 16 ; $ 18 § 21
North American Limited-Service I

Segment 75 35 50
International Segment 62 ! 73 119
Luxury Segment L ! 17 18
Timeshare Segment g9 168 115

Total segment equity method

investments 203 E 3N 323
Other unallocated corporate 23 | 21 26

$ 316 | $ 332 $ 349
Goodwill
At At At
Year-end | Year-end Year-end
® in millions) 2007 | 2006 2005
North American Full-Service ‘

Segment $ 406 $ 406 § 407
North American Limited-Service ,

Segment 12 72 72
International Segment 273 273 273
Luxury Segment 170 ; 170 172

Total segment goodwilt 3$ 921 | $ 921 3 924
Capital Expenditures
{8 in millions) i 2007 | 2006 2005
Morth American Full-Service |

Segment % M6 $ 75 5 197
Nerth American Limited-Service |

Segment | 36 38 16
International Segment 44 215 376
buury Segment 1] 35 | 104 B84
Timeshare Segment | 56 , 28 27

Total segment capital i ‘

expenditures 617 460 654
Other unallocated corporate l 54 69 86
|s 671 $ 529 §$ 780

Segment expenses include salling expenses directly related to
the operations of the businesses, aggregating $616 milion in 2007,
$600 million in 2006, and $609 milion in 2005. Approximately 89
percent for 2007 and 90 percent for each of 2006 and 2005 of
the selling expenses are related to our Timeshare segment.

The consolidated financial statements include the following
related to operations located outside the United States (which are
predominately related to our International Lodging segment):
Revenues of $2,287 million in 2007, $1,869 milion in 2006, and
$1,388 million in 2005; segment financial results of $341 million in
2007 (32 percent from Europe, 30 percent from the Americas
excluding the United States, 17 percent from Asia, 11 percent from
the United Kingdom, & percentt from the Middle East and Africa,
and 2 percent from Australia), $298 miflion in 2008, and $178 mit-
lion in 2005; and fixed assets of $257 million in 2007 and $684 mil-
lion in 2006. At year-end 2007, fixed assets totaling $257 miillion
located outside the United States are included within the “Property
and equipment” caption in our Censclidated Balance Sheets. At
year-end 20086, fixed assets totaling $684 million located outside
the United States include fixed assets of $336 million which are
included within the "Property and equipment” caption and $348 mil-
lion of fixed assets which are included within the “Assets held for
sale” caption in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. No individual
country, cther than the United States, constitutes a material portion
of our revenues, financial results or fixed assets.

20 VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

We currently consolidate a holding company that holds 10C percent
interest in four entities that are variable interest entities under FIN
46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities-revised” (“FIN 46(R)").
At year-end 2007, the combined capital in the four variable interest
entities is less than $1 million, which is used prirmarily to fund hotel
working capital. Our equity at risk was $3 million and we held 55
percent of the common equity shares of the holding company. The
creditors of the holding comparty do not have general recourse 1o
our credit.

We are party tc a venture that develops and markets fractional
ownership and residential interests. During the 2007 second quar-
ter, we issued a guarantee 10 the senior lender of the venture in
suppart of the senior loan facility and reevaluated our variable inter-
ests in the venture under FIN 46(R). At that time, we determined
that we were the primary beneficiary and as such, we also consofi-
dated this venture. During the 2007 third quarter, the guarantee was
replaced with the issuance of a loan facility for $40 million, of which
$36 million is receivable and outstanding at year-end 2007. Our
issuance of the loan facility was a reconsideration event under FIN
46(R); we again determined we were the primary beneficiary and
continue to consolidate the joint venture. At year-end 2007, the car-
rying amount of consolidated assets that are collateral for the vari-
able interest antity’s obligations totaled $141 million and comprised
$24 million of accounts receivable, $106 million of real estate held
for development, property, equipment, and other long-term assets,
and $11 million of cash. The creditors of the variable interest entity
do not have general recourse to our credit.

In conjunction with the transaction with CTF described more fully
in Footnote No. B, “Acquisitions and Dispositions,” under the cap-
tion “2005 Acquisitions" we manage certain hotels on behalf of four
tenant entities 100 percent owned by CTF, which lease the hotels
from third-party owners. At year-end 2007, the number of hotels
totaled 14. The entities have minimal equity and minimal assets
comerised of hotel working capital. CTF placed money in a trust
account to cover cash flow shorifalls and to meet rent payments.
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The terms of the trust require that the cash flows for the four tenant
entities be pooled for purposes of making rent payments and deter-
mining cash flow shortfalis. At year-end 2007, the trust account
held approximately $38 milion. The entities are variable interest enti-
ties under FIN 46(R). We do not consolidate the entities because
we do not bear the majority of the expected losses. We are sec-
ondarily liable for rent payments for gight of the 14 hotels in the
event that there are cash flow shortfalls and there is ne money left
in the trust. Future minimum lease payments through the end of the
lease term for these sight hotels totel approximately $122 miliion. in
addition, we are also secondarily liable for rent payments of up o
an aggregate cap of $44 million for the six other hotels in the event
that there are cash flow shortfalis.

21 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Equity Method Investments
We have equity method investments in entities that own properties
for which we provide management and/or franchise services and
receive fees. In addition, in some cases we provide loans, preferred
equity or guarantees to these entities. Our ownership interest in
these equity methaod investments generally varies from 10 to 50
percent. The amount of our consolidated retained earnings that rep-
resents undistributed earnings attributable to our equity investments
totaled $9 million at year-end 2007.

The following tables present financial data resulting from trans-
actions with these related parties:

Income Statement Data

% in millions) 2007 2006 2005
Base management fees $5 | $62 §$ &3
Franchise fees 1 2 2
Incentive management fees 26 22 i4
Cost reimbursements 510 843 236
Owned, leased, corporate housing,

and other revenue - — 19

Total revenue $503 | $735  $1,054
General, administrative, andother | 5 @] $ (1) $§ (19

Reimbursed costs (510) (649) (936)
Gains and other income 25 28 54
Interest expense 1 (n -
Interest income 4 4 31
{Provision for) reversal of provision

for loan losses (12) 1 -
Equity in earnings 15 3 356
Balance Sheet Data

At At
Year-end | Year-end

{3 in millions) 2007 2006
Current assets-accounts and

notes receivable $ 42| %76
Deferred development 2 -
Contract acquisition costs 33 34
Equity and cost method investments 316 377
Loans to equity method investees 21 27
Long-term deferred tax assets, net 1 4
Current liabiities:

Other payables and accruals 2) 2)
Other long-term liabilities {16) {13)
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Summarized infermation for the entities in which we have equity
method investments is as follows:

Income Statement Summary

& in millions) | 2007 | 2006 2005
Sales | s1,622 | $1479  $1975
Net income 1§13 | $ 170§ 250

Balance Sheet Summary

At At
Year-end | Year-end
{% in miflions} 2007 2006
Assets (primarily comprised of

$3,856 | $4,325
Liabilties | $2,536 | $2.830

hotel real estate managed by us)

22 RELATIONSHIP WITH MAJOR CUSTOMER

As of year-end 2007, Host Hotels & Resorts, Inc. (*Host"), known
as Host Marriott Corporation pricr to April 18, 2008, owned or
leased 149 lodging properties operated by us under long-term
agreements. We recognized revenues from lodging properties
owned or leased by Host (which are included in our North American
Full-Service, North American Limited-Service, and International seg-
ments) for the last three fiscal years as shown in the following table:

(® in millions) 2007 2008 2005
Revenues $2,580 $2,475 $2,427

Additicnaily, Host is a partner in several unconsolidated partner-
ships that own lodging properties operated by us under long-term
agreements. As of year-end 2007, Host was affiliated with 124 such
properties operated by us. The revenues associated with those
properties (which are included in our North American Full-Service,
North American Limited-Service, and International segrments) that
werea recognized by the Company for the last three fiscal years are
shown in the following table:

{$ in millians) { 2007 2008 2005

Revenues l $350 $353 $352




Shareholder Return Performance Graph — Unaudited

The following graph compares the performance of the Company's Class A Comman Stock from January 3, 2003 to the end of fiscal 2007
with the performance of the Standard & Poor's Carporation Composite 500 Index and the Standard & Poor's Hotels, Resorts and Cruise Lines
Index. The graph assumes an initial investment of $100 on January 3, 2003, and reinvestrment of dividends.

A
v

Gomparison of Shareholder Returns among Marrictt International, Inc.,
the S&P 500 Index and the S&P 500 Hotels, Resorts and Cruise Lines Index

250

200 ——t——  Marritt International, Inc.

150 / /. — & S&P 500 Hotels Index

[=]
[m}
- W
—p— S&P 500 Index
50
0
1/3/08 12104 12/31/04 12/30/05 12/29/06 12/28/07
Fiscal Year Ended
1/3/03 1/2/04 12/31/04 12/30/05 12/29/08 12/28/07
Marriott Internationat, Inc. 100.0 135.6 186.3 199.3 2859 205.8
S&P 500 Hotels Index 100.0 - 1458 2121 215.4 246.9 216.0
S&P 500 Index 100.0 124.2 138.1 144.9 167.8 178.3

NOTE: The S&P 500 Hotels, Resorts and Cruise Lines Index includes Carnival ple, Starwood Hotels & Resorts, the Company, and Wyndham Hotels and Resorts. In October of
2007 Hiton Hotols Corporation was delisted from the index.
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Quarterly Financial Data — Unaudited

Fiscal Year 2007 2

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
(% in miflions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Revenues® $2,836 $3,122 $2,943 $4,089 $12,990
Operating income & $ 237 $ 335 $ 210 $ 406 $ 1,188
Income from continuing oparations minority interest $ 164 $ 175 $ 122 $ 236 $ 697
Discontinued operations, net of tax 18 32 9 (60 (1}
Net income $ 182 $ 207 $ 1N $ 176 $ 696
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations $ 0.40 $ 0.43 $ 0.31 % 062 $ 175
Ciluted earnings per share from discontinued operations 0.04 0.08 0.02 (0.16) -
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.44 $ 0.51 $ 0.33 $ 0.48 $ 175

Figcal Year 2006 @

First Second Third Fourth Fiscal
(% in miliions, except per share data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
Revenues @ $2,648 $2,852 $2,697 $3,798 $11,885
Operating income® $ 230 $ 202 § 227 $ 338 $ 1,087
Income from continuing operations $ 167 $ 182 3 144 $ 219 3 72
Discontinued operations, after-tax 3 4 (3) 1 5
Curnutative effect of change in accounting principle, net of tax {109 - - - (109
Net income £ 61 $ 186 $ 141 £ 220 $ 608
Diluted earnings per shara from continuing operations $ (.38 $ 0.42 $ 0.34 $ 0.52 $ 185
Diluted losses per share from cumulative effect of accounting change (0.25) - - - {0.25)
Diluted earnings per share from discontinued operations 0.01 .01 (0.01) - 0.01
Dituted earnings per share $ 0.14 $ 0.43 $ 033 $ 0.52 $ 1.41

(1) The quarters consisted of 12 weeks, except for the fourth Guarters, which consistad of 16 weeks.
{2) Alf share and per shara amounts reflact the Jine 2006 stock split. The sum of the eamings per share for the four quarters differs from annual eamings per share due I the

required method of computing the weighted average shares in interim peniods.

{3} Balances do not reflect the impact of the synthetic fuel business as the impact of that business is now reflected in discontinued operations,
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Selected Historical Financial Data — Unaudited

The following table presents a summary of selected historical financial data for the Company derived from our financial statements as of and
for our last nine fiscal years.

Since the information in this table is onty a summary and does not provide all of the information contained in our financial statements,
including the related notes, you should read “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
our Consolidated Financlal Statements.

‘ ] Fiscal Year{
(% in millions, except per shara data} . 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Income Statement Data: 3
Revenues®@ $12,000 | $11,995 $11,129 $ 9,778 $ 8712 § 8,222 § 7,768 $ 7911 § 7,026
Operating income @ $1188 | $1,087 $ 699 $ 575 $ 481 § 455 § 420 § 762 § 621
Income from continuing operations $ 6973 712 % 543 % 487 $ 380 ¢ 365 § 269 § 490 § 399
Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle® - (109) - - - - - - -
Discontinued operations # {1} 5 126 109 122 (88) {33) {11) 1
Net income $ 696 | % 608 % 660 $ 596 % 502 § 277§ 236 % 479 § 400
Per Share Data:
Diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations $ 175: 3% 165 % 117 $ 101 $ 077 $ 072 $ 052 % 096 & 075
Diluted loss per share from cumulative
effect of accounting change - (0.25) - - - - - — -
Diluted earnings {toss) per share from
discontinued operations - 0.01 0.28 0.23 0.25 (0.17) {0.08) {0.02) -
Diluted earnings per share $ 175 % 141 % 145 $ 124 $ 102 $ 055 % 046 $ 094 § 075
Cash dividends declared per share $0.2875 | $0.2400 $0.2000 $0.1650 $0.1475 $0.1375 $0.1275 $0.1175 $0.1075
Balance Sheet Data (at end of year): |
Total assets $8942 ! $8588 $8530 $ 8668 $8177 § 8,206 § 9,107 $ 8,237 $ 7,324
Long-term debt® 2,790 1,818 1,681 83 1,3 1,553 2,708 1,908 1,570
Shareholders’ equity 1,429 2618 3262 4,081 3838 3573 3478 3267 2,908
Other Data:
Base management fees® $ 620({$ 553 % 497 % 435 ¢ 388 F 39§ 372 § 383 § 352
Franchise fees® 439 390 329 296 245 232 220 208 180
tncentive management fees @ 369 281 20 142 109 162 202 3186 268
Total fees $1428 | $ 1,224 $1027 $ 873 ¢ 742 8% 773§ 794 § 907 $ 800
Fee Revenue-Source: ‘
North America ® $1,115| $ 955 ¢ B80S $ 682 % 592 § 626 3 664 $ 779§ 690
QOutside North America 313 269 218 191 150 147 130 128 110
Total fees L $1,428 | $ 1,224 $1027 $ 873 % 742 % 773 % 794 % 907 § 800

(1) ARl fiscal years includad 52 weeks, axcept for 2002, which included 53 wesks,

(2} Balances do not reflact the impact of discontinued operations.

(3) Wa adopted Staternent of Position 04-2 *Accounting for Real Estate Time-Sharing Transactions, ” in our 2006 first quarter which we reported in our Consolidated Statements of
Incoms as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.

(4) In 2002, wa announced our intent 1o sell, and subsequently did sell, our Senior Living Services business and axited our Distribution Services business. in 2007, we exited our
synthatic fued businass. These businessas are now roffected as discontinied operstions.

(5} Incluties the continental United States and Canada.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measure Reconciliation — Unaudited

RETURN ON INVESTED CAPITAL

We report certain financial measures that are not prescribed or
authorized by U. S. generally accepted accounting principles
("GAAPT). We discuss management's reasons for reporting these
non-GAAPR measures below, and the accompanying table reconciles
the most directly comparable GAAP measures to the non-GAAP
measures {identified by a double asterisk} that wa refer to. Although
management evaluates and presents these non-GAAP measures for
the reasons described below, please be aware that these non-GAAR
measures are not allernatives to revenue, operating income, income
from continuing operations, net income, or any other comparable
operating measure prescribed by GAAP. In addition, these non-GAAP
financial measures may be calculated and/or presented differently
than measures with the same or similar names that are reported by
other companies, and as a result, the non-GAAP measures we report
may not be comparable to those reported by others,

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes. Earnings Before Interest
and Taxes ("EBIT"} reflects earnings excluding the impact of interest
expense and tax expense. EBIT is used by analysts, lenders, invastors
and cthers, as well as by us, to evaluate companies because it
excludes certain items that can vary widsly acress different industries
or ameng companies within the same industry. For example, interest
expense can be dependent on a company's capital structure, debt
levels and credit ratings. Accordingly, the impact of interest expense

on earnings can vary significantly among companies. Additionally, the
tax positions of companies can vary because of their differing abilities
to take advantags of tax benefits and because of the tax policies of
the jurisdictions in which they operate. As a result, effective tax rates
and tax expense can vary considerably among companies.

Retum on Invested Capital. Retum on Invested Capital (“ROICT is
calculated as EBIT, divided by average capita! investrment, We consider
RQOIC 1o be a meaningful indicator of our operating performance, and
we evaluate this metric because it measures how effectively we use the
money invested in our lodging operations. The calculation of EBIT adds
back to income from continuing operations: 1) the provision for income
taxes; 2) interest expense; and 3) timeshars interest representing pre-
viously capitalized interest that is a component of product cost. The
calculation of invested capital adds back to total assets, cumulative
goodwill amortization. Beginning with 2002, we stopped amortizing
goodwili in conjunction with the adoption of FAS No. 142, “Goodwil
and Other Intangible Assets.” The calculation of invested capital
deducts from total assets: 1} cument liabilities as they will be satisfied
in the short tarm; 2) assets associated with discontinued operations
net of liabilities because the ROIC metric we analyze is related to our
core lodging business {continuing operations); 3) deferred tax assets
net of liabilities because the numerator of the calculation is a pre-tax
number; and 4} timeshare capitalized interest because the numerateor
of the calculation is a pre-interest expense number.,

The reconciliation of income from continuing operations to earnings before income taxes and interest expense is as {ollows:

Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal
Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year
(% in millions) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Income from continuing operations $ 697 | % 712 § 543 § 487 $ 380 $ 385 $ 268 $ 490
Add:
Provision for income taxes 441 380 284 265 202 240 152 281
Interest expense 184 124 106 99 110 86 109 100
Goodwill amortization' - - - - - - 28 29
Timeshare interest? 24 21 24 21 21 17 12 B
Earnings before income
taxes and interest expense ** $1346 1 $1237 $ 957 $ 872 $ 713 $ 708 $ 570 $ 908

The reconciliation of assets to invested capital is as follows:

Year-End | Year-End Year-End Year-End Year-End Year-End Year-End Year-End Year-End

@ in millions) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Assets $8942 | 58588 $8530 $8668 $8177 $8296 $9107 $8237 $7.324
Add:
Cumulative goodwill amortization 128 128 128 128 128 128 128 100 71
Current liabilities — discontinued
operations 13 55 63 82 16 380 367 370 317
Less:
Current liabilities, net of current
portion of long-term debt (2,701}, @507 (2,086 {2011 (1,779 (2,043) (20420 (2,114) (1,969
Assets — discontinued operations (53) (91} (103) (116) (83) (692) (938) (953) (1,167
Deferred tax assets, net (863) (865) (765) {559) {466) {369) (128} {72) (84)
Timeshare capitalized interest (19) | (19) (20) 2%) (22) (26) (i7) {7) (4)

Invested capital™

$5447 | $5289 $5747 $6,171 $5971 $5674 $6477 $5561 $4,488

Average capital investment**

$5368 | $5518 $5959 $6071 §$5823 $6076 $6019 $5025

Return on invested capital™

25% 22%

** Denotes a non-GAAP financial measurs.

16% 14% 12% 12% 9% 18%

(1) Beginning with 2002, we stopped amortizing goodwill in conjunction with the adoption of FAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

For comparabifity, we add the amortized portion back for 2001 and 2000,

{2} Timeshare interes! represents previously capitalized interast that is & compaonent of product cost.

{3} Cakcuiated as “Invested capital” for the currant year and prior year, divided by two.
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

Management of Marriott International, Inc. is responsible for the
integrity and objectivity of the consolidated financial statements and
other financial information presented in this annual report. In meet-
ing this responsibility, we maintain a highly developed system of
internal controls, policies and procedures, including an internal
auditing function.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered public accaunting firm.
Its report expresses an informed judgment as to whether man-
agement's financial statements, considered in their entirety, fairly
present, in alt material respects, our financial position, operating
results and cash flows in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

‘The Board of Directors pursues its responsibility for the financial
statements through its Audit Committes, composed of three direc-
tors not otherwise employed by the Company. The committes
meets a minimum of four times during the year with the independ-
ent registerad public accounting firm, representatives of manage-
ment and the intermal auditors to review the scope and results of
the internal and external audits, the accounting principles applied in
financial reporting, and financial and operational controls. The inde-
pendent registered public accounting firm and internal auditors have
unrestricted access to the Audit Committee, with or without the
presence of management.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of Marriott International, Inc. (the “Company”) is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal con-
trod over financial reporting and for the assessment of the effective-
ness of internal control over financial reporting. As defined by the
Securities and Exchange Commissicn, internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
Company's principal executive and principal financial officers and
sffected by the Company’s Board of Directors, management, and
other personnel, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reli-
ability of financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated
financial statermenits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

The Company’s internat control over financial reperting is sup-
ported by written policies and procedures that: (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and
fairly reflact the Comparny’s transactions and dispositions of the
Company's assets; {2} provide reasanable assurance that transac-
tions are recorded as necessary 1o permit preparation of the con-
sclidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the Company are being made only in accordance with authoriza-
tions of the Company's management and diractors; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated finan-
cial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that cantrols may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may detariorats.

In connection with the preparation of the Company’s annual
consolidated financial statements, management has undertaken an
assassment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controf
over financial reporting as of December 28, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Crganizations of the Treadway
Commission (the “COSO Framework”). Management's assessment
included an evaluation of the design of the Company’s internal con-
trol over financial reporting and testing of the aperational effective-
ness of those controls.

Based on this assessment, management has concluded that as
of December 28, 2007, the Company's internal control over finan-
cial reporting was effective to provide reasonable assurance regard-
ing the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered public account-
ing firm that audited the Company’s consolidated financial state-
ments included in this report, has issued an attestation report on
internal control over financial reporting, a copy of which appears on
the next page of this annual report.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Marriott International, Inc.:

We have audited Marriott International, Inc.'s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 28, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Spensoring Qrganizations of the Treadway
Commission (“the COSO criteria”). Marriott International, Inc.’s man-
agement is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectivenass of
internal control over financial reporting- included in the accompany-
ing Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Qur responsibility Is to express an opinion on the com-
pany's internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rea-
sonable assurance about whether effective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial
reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing
and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other pro-
cedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinian.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial staternents for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the main-
tenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the com-
pany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
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recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of
the company; and {3} provide reasonable assurance regarding pre-
vention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or dis-
position of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projec-
tions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may becorme inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may detericrate.

In our epinion, Marrictt International, Inc. maintained in all mate-
rial respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
Decernber 28, 2007, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Pubtic Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), the
consolidated balance sheats of Marriott International, Inc. as of
December 28, 2007 and December 28, 2006, and the related con-
solidated statements of income, cash flows, comprehensive income
and shareholders’ equity for each of the three fiscal years in the
period ended December 28, 2007, of Marriott International, Inc. and
our report dated February 14, 2008 expressed an unqualified

opinion thereon.
énmvt v MLLP

McLean, Virginia
February 14, 2008




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Marriott International, inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of
Marriott International, Inc. as of December 28, 2007 and December
29, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash
flows, comprehensive income and shareholders’ equity for each of
the three fiscal years in the period ended December 28, 2007,
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility Is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial staterments are
free of material misstaternent. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the finan-
cial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
wall as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financia! position of
Marriott International, Inc. as of December 28, 2007 and December
29, 2006, and the consociidated results of its operations and its
cash flows for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended

December 28, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2007 the
Compary adopted the provisions of FASH Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes” and FASB Statement
No. 156, “Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets.” In 2006 the
Company changed its accounting for real estate time-sharing transac-
tions in connection with the adoption of Statement of Position 04-2,
*Accounting for Real Estate Time-sharing Transactions,” and changed
its accounting for stock-based compensation in connection with the
adoption of FASB Staternent No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment.”

W also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States), Marriott
international, Inc.’s intemal control over financial reporting as of
December 28, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
QOrganizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated
February 14, 2008, expressed an ungualified opinion thareon.

St ¥ MLLP

McLean, Virginia
February 14, 2008
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Directors and Officers:

Directors

J.W. MARRIOTT, JR.!
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Marriott International, inc.

JOMN W. MARRIOTT Ih

Vice Chairman of the Board,
Marmiott International, Inc., and
Chief Executive Officer

JWM Family Enterprises, L.P,

LAWRENCE W. KELLNER'2+*
Chaiman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
Continental Airlines, Inc.

DEBRA L. LEE**
Chairman and Chief Executive Cfiicer
BET Networks

FLORETTA DUKES MCKENZIE***

Senior Advisor, Amarican Institute for Research,
and Founder and Former Chairwoman

The McKenzie Group

GEORGE MUROQZ®*s

Principal

Murioz Investment Banking Group, LLC
HARRY J. PEARCE®

Chairmnan

Nortel Networks Corporation

STEVEN S REINEMUND?*

Retired Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Oificer

PepsiCo, Inc,

WILLIAM J, SHAW®
President and Chief Operating Officer
Marriott International, Inc.

LAWRENCE M. SMALL*
Fammer Secretary
The Smithsonian Institution

Director Emeritus
STERLING D. COLTON

Chairman Emeritus
The Ritz-Carlton Hotel
Company, L.L.C.

WILLIAM R. TIEFEL
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Senior Executive Officers

J.W. MARRIOTT, JR.Y
Chaiman of the Board and
Chief Exscutive Officer

WILLIAM J. SHAW?
President and Chief Operating Officer

EDWARD A. RYAN!
Executive Vice Prasident and
General Counsel

ARNE M. SORENSON!

Executive Vice President,

Chigf Financial Officer and
President—Continental European Lodging

JAMES M. SULLIVAN?
Executive Vice Presidant
Lodging Development

Executive Officers

CARL T. BERQUIST!

Executive Vice Prasident

Financial Information and Enterprise
Risk Management

A. BRADFORD BRYAN, JR.
Executive Vice Presidaent
Architecture and Construction

SIMON F. COOPER'
President and Chief Operating Officer
The Ritz-Cariton Hotel Company, L.L.C.

EDWIN D. FULLER!
President and Managing Director
Marriott Lodging—International

BANCROFT 5. GORDON
Vice President, Senior Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

CAROLYN B, HANDLONS
Executive Vice President - Finance
and Global Treasurer

DEBORAH MARRIOTT HARRISON
Senior Vice President
Government Affairs

MICHAEL E. JANNIN!
Executive Vice President
Globa! Brand Strategy and Innovation

STEPHEN P. JOYCE
Executive Vice President
Davelopment and

Owner and Franchise Services

KEVIN M. KIMBALL
Executive Vice President-Finance
Marriott Lodging

KATHLEEN MATTHEWS*
Executive Vice President
Global Communications and Public Affairs

ROBERT J. MCCARTHY!

President

North Amencan Lodging Operations and
Global Brand Management

AMY C. MCPHERSON?
Executive Vice President
Global Sales and Marketing

JIMMIE WALTON PASCHALL®
Global Divarsity Officer and
Senior Vice President, External Affairs

LAURA E. PAUGH
Senior Vice President-Investor Refations

DAVID A. RODRIGUEZs+
Executive Vice President
Global Human Resources

STEPHEN P. WEISZ!
President
Marriott Vacation Club International

CARL WILSON
Executive Vige Prasident and
Chief Information Officer

LEGEND

- All information as of March 10, 2008,

1 Executive Committea

2 Audit Comumittes

3 Compensation Policy Committee

4 Nomingting and Gorporate Governarce Comemitioe
§ Committee for Excellence

8 Dr. McKenzie retires from the Board on May 2, 2008,

T Executive officer as definad under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934




Corporate Information

Corporate Headquarters
Marriott Internaticnal, Inc.
10400 Fernwood Road
Bethesda, MD 20817
301/380-3000

Internet: Marriott.com

Common Stock Listings

The company's Class A common stock {ticker
syrmbol: MAR) is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and other exchanges.

Shareholders of Record

At January 25, 2008, there were 354,043,159
shares of Class A Common Stock outstanding
held by 48,288 shareholders of record.

Investor Relations
For information, call: 301/380-6500
internet: Marriott.com/investor

Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm

Ernst & Young LLP

MclLean, Virginia

Annual Meeting of Shareholders
May 2, 2008 —10:3C a.m.

JW Marriott Hotel

1331 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 20004

Registrar and Transfer Agent

Sharehelder inquiries regarding stock transfers,
dividend payments, address changes, enroliment
in the company’s direct investment plan, lost
stock certificates, or other stock account matters
should be directed to:

Mellon nvestor Services

480 Washington Bhvd., 28th Floor
Jersay City, NJ 07310
800/311-4816 (U.S. and Canada)
+1 201/680-6693 {International)
Internet; www.melloninvestor.com

Common Stock Prices
and Dividends
Dividends
Stock Price Declared
High  Low Per Share

2006- First quarter .......$35.35 $32.32 $0.0525

- Second quarter.. 38.38 3420 0.0625
- Third quarter ...... 38.44 34.30 0.0625
— Fourth guarter.... 48.31 37.19 0.0825

2007- First quarter .......$51.50 $44.79 $0.0625

- Second quarter.. 52,00 43.90 0.0750
- Third quarter...... 4885 39.70 0.0750
— Fourth guarter.... 4510 31.34 0Q.0750

Telephone Numbers

For reservations or information, call:
800/228-9290
800/468-3571

Marriott Hotels & Resorts ...........
Renaissance Hotels & Resorts ...
The Ritz-Cariton Hotel
Company, L.L.C. .......ccovv..., BOO/241-3333
JW Marrictt Hotels 8 Resorts ... 800/228-9290
Bulgari Hotels & Resorts ............ 301/547-490C
Courtyard ......oveevecivnensennnnnnnnn, 800/321-2211
SpringHill SUIES .....ocvvrverernno... BBB2B7-9400

Fairfield 1NN 800/228-2800
Residence Inn .......ccoeveeennee..... BO0/331-3131
TownePlace SUiles .......ooeveeene 800/257-3000
Marriott Executive Apartments ... 800/800-5744
Marriott ExecuStay .....................800/800-5744

Marriott Vacation Club.... ..866/300-3032
The Ritz-Carlton Club.......e...oe.- 800/941-4386
Grand Residences by Marriott.... 866/894-7263
Horizons by Marriott

Vacation Club ... 866/300-3032

Lodging Development Inguiries

TONY CAPUANO
Executive Vice President
North America Full Service ......... 301/380-3200

DARYL NICKEL
Executive Vice President
Select-Service and Extended-Stay,
North America ... 301/380-5237

KEVIN KEARNEY
Executive Vice President
Europe, the Middle East
and Affica ..oovvevvene e, 41-44-723-5100

PAUL FOSKEY
Executive Vice President
ASIAVPACHIC. .o B852-2918-6230

CARLTON ERVIN

Senior Vice President

Caribbean and Latin America. ..... 301/380-2340
STEPHEN MUDGE

Executive Vice President

Mixed Use Development ............ 301/380-8028

RICHARD HOFFMAN

Executive Vice President

Mergers, Acquisitions and
Business Develocpment ............ 301/380-1670

SCOTT MELBY

Exacutive Vice President

Davelopment, Planning and
Feasibility.......vvrieien e 301/380-3200

Internet; www.MarriotiDevelopment.com

CEO and CFO Certifications

As required by the New York Stock Exchange
listing rules, our Chief Executive Cfficer certified
to the New York Stock Exchange on May 21,
2007, that he was not awarse of any violation by
the company of the New York Stock Exchange
listing standards as of that date. In addition,
our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief
Financial Officer have provided certifications
with regpect 10 the company's public disclo-
sures as required under Rule 13a-14{a) and
Rule 13a-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act,
which certifications were either furnished or
filed as Exhibits 31.1, 31.2 and 32 to the com-
pany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal
year 2007 filed with the Securities and
Exchanga Commission.

Other Information

Any shareholder whe would ke a copy of the
company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal
year 2007 may obtain one, without charge, by
addressing a request to the Secretary, Marriott
International, Inc., Department 52/862, Marriott
Drive, Washington, DC 20058. The company's
copying costs will be charged if copies of
exhibits to the Annual Report on Form 10-K are
requested. You may also obtain a copy of the
Annual Report on Form 1G-K for fiscal year
2007, including exhibits, from the company’s
Web site at Marriott.com/investor, clicking on
“Comporate Information & SEC Filings.”

internet Users: We invite you to learmn
morg about Marriott's business and growth
opponunities at Marrott.com/investor. Our
investor site includas investor presentations,
eamings conference calls, press releases,
SEC filings, company histery, and informa-
ticn about the company's governance and
Board of Birectors. You may atso enroll in
our dvidend reinvestrnent plan.

Shareholders may also elect to receive
notices of shareholder meetings, proxy
materials and annual reports electronically
through the Internet. If your shares are reg-
istered in your own name, and not in “sireet
name” through a broker or other nomines,
simply log in to Investor ServiceDirect, the
Internet site maintained by our transfer
agent, Mellon Invastor Services LLC, at
www.melloninvestor.com/isd and the
step-by-step instructions will prompt you
through enrollment.

With our commitment to preserving the environment and all of its natural resources, this report is
printed with soy ink on recycled, Environmental Choice Certified paper. The FSC certification is
granted by the Forest Stewardship Council for supporting responsible use of forest resources.

Q° Mixed Sources
Product groap from well-mansged
forests, controlbed sources and
recycied woad or fiber

FSC www.fscorg Lert no SW-COC-002262
© 1396 Foreat Stewardchip Councll

Special thanks to the Crystal Gateway Marriott in Aington, Va., for hosting the phote shoot of our smployees featured in this report.
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2007 Awards

Marriott International, Inc.

100 Best Companies to Work For and One
of America's Most Admired Companies
(FORTUNE®)

Best Places to Launch a Carser
(BusinessWeek)

100 Best Companies for Working Mothers
(Working Mother)

Top 50 Companies for Diversity
(Diversitylnc)

Top 40 Companies for Diversity
{Black Enterprise)

Diversity Elite 60
{Hispanic Business)

100% Score on Corporate Equality Index
{Human Rights Campaign)

Top Hospitality and Travel Company
for Innovative Use of Technology
{infermationWeek)

2007 Extra Mile Award
{Budget Travel)

Best Hetel Chain Worldwide
{Business Traveller Germany}

2007 ENERGY STAR® Sustained Excellence Award
(The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency)

World Savers Award for Qutstanding Community
Engagement and Social Responsibility Programs
(Conde Nast Traveler)

N

arriott.

Marriott International, Inc.
Marriott Drive
Washington, D.C. 20058
Marriott.com

The Ritz-Cartton Hotel Company, L.L.C.
Best Luxury Hotel Chain

{Consumer Reports, Luxury Institute and
J.D. Power and Associates®)

Customer Service Elite
{BusinessWeek}

JW Marriott Hotels & Resorts
Top Upscale Hotel Brand
(Business Trave! News)

Customer Service Elite
{BusinessWeek)

Marriott Hotels & Resorts

Top Upscale Hotel Brand (Business Travel News)
Top Brand for Business Travelers

(TripAdvisor®)

Courtyard by Marriott
One of Top Five Hotel Chains
(TripAdvisor)

SpringHill Suites by Marriott
Top Mid-Priced Hotel Brand
(Business Travel News)

Marriott Vacation Club International

Best Customer Service Organization in America
(American Business Awards}

Marriott Rewards
Best Customer Service; Frequent Guest
Program-Americas (Freddie Awards)

COVER

Stephanie Ellis

Customer Care Sales Specialist

Global Reservations and Customer Care Center
Salt Lake City, Utah

With her extensive knowledge about Marriott, and
a friendly smile that almost radiates through the
phone, Stephanie will help you select the perfect
hotel for your next business trip or family vacation.




